FORMAL COOPERATIVE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

THIS AGREEMENT (Agreement) is made and entered into, effective on ______, by and between CITY OF FRESNO, a California municipal corporation (City), and THE DRALA PROJECT INC. dba THE REDESIGN GROUP, a California Corporation (Vendor).

AGREEMENT

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the foregoing and of the covenants, conditions, and promises hereinafter contained to be kept and performed by the respective parties, it is mutually agreed as follows:

- The Charter for the City allows for cooperative purchase agreements for materials, supplies, and equipment. The City may use another government agency's agreement, as an exception to the competitive bid process. The Parties agree that the Vendor has entered a contract with California NASPO Participating Addendum No. 7-23-70-55-01 under the Master Agreement No. 23026 NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Program (Original Government Contract). The solicitation for the Original Government Contract is attached as Exhibit A.
- Vendor's Obligation. Vendor shall provide those services and carry out that work described in the Original Government Contract, which is attached hereto as Exhibit B and is incorporated herein by reference, subject to all the terms and conditions contained or incorporated herein.
- 3. City's Obligation. City shall make to the Vendor those payments described in **Exhibits A and B**, subject to all the terms and condition contained or incorporated herein
- 4. Notwithstanding the requirements that the Original Government Contract is fully binding on the Parties, the parties have agreed to modify certain non-material provisions of the Original Government Contract as applied to this Agreement between the Vendor and the City, as follows:
 - a) City's Insurance and Indemnity provisions attached as **Exhibit C**.
 - b) Address change for the City: Notwithstanding the address and contract information for the government entity as set out in **Exhibit B**, the Vendor agrees that notices and invoices will be sent to:

City of Fresno Attention: Yee Vang 1910 E University Ave Fresno, CA 93703 Phone: (559) 621-5375

E-mail: Yee.Vang@fresno.gov

c) Notwithstanding anything in **Exhibits A** and **B** to the contrary, this Agreement shall be governed by, and construed and enforced in

- accordance with , the laws of the State of California, excluding however, any conflict of laws rule which would apply the law of another jurisdiction. Venue for purposes of the filing of any action regarding the enforcement or interpretation of this Agreement and any rights and duties hereunder shall be Fresno County, California.
- d) All other provisions in the Original Government Contract are fully binding on the parties and will represent the agreement between the City and the Vendor.
- 5. The City Manager, or designee, is hereby authorized and directed to execute and implement this Agreement. The previous sentence is not intended to delegate any authority to the City Manager to administer the Agreement, any delegation of authority must be expressly included in the Agreement.

[Signatures follow on the next page.]

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Agreement at Fresno, California, the day and year first above written.

CITY OF FRESNO,	THE DRALA PROJECT INC. dba THE
a California municipal corporation	REDESIGN GROUP, a California Corporation
By:	- 1
MELISSA PERALES	Signed by:
Purchasing Manager	By: Phil Sanginario6/17/2025
General Services Department	86C2F6D2D0DE4A6
·	Name: Phil Sanginario
APPROVED AS TO FORM:	
ANDREW JANZ	Title: President
City Attorney Signed by:	(If corporation or LLC., Board Chair, Pres or Vice Pres) Signed by:
By: Sukliman Siklion 7/24/2025 6917A7D9D8364A9DITTER Date	By: larry McDonald 6/17/2025
Deputy City Attorney	Name: Lacey McDonald
ATTEST:	
TODD STERMER, CMC	Title: Controller
City Clerk	(If corporation or LLC., CFO, Treasurer, Secretary or Assistant Secretary)
By:	VENDOR:
Deputy Date	THE DRALA PROJECT INC. dba THE
	REDESIGN GROUP
	Attention: Sarah Reynolds
	2629 Manhattan Ave, Suite 307
	Hermosa Beach, CA 90254
	Phone: (405) 831-8395
A44	E-mail: sreynolds@redesign-group.com
Attachments:	
Exhibit A - Original Covernment Contract	
Exhibit B - Original Government Contract	
Exhibit C - City's Insurance and Indemnity	

EXHIBIT A

Original Solicitation

The State of Minnesota





REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL

MINNESOTA NASPO VALUEPOINT

Master Agreement for: Computer Equipment

(Desktops, Laptops, Tablets, Servers, and Storage including Related Peripherals & Services)



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600

Fax: 651.297.3996

STATE OF MINNESOTA

REQUEST FOR PROPOSAL (RFP)

COMPUTER EQUIPMENT:
(DESKTOPS, LAPTOPS, TABLETS,
SERVERS, STORAGE,
INCLUDING RELATED PERIPHERALS & SERVICES)

ORIGINAL DUE DATE: JANUARY 11, 2021

REVISED DUE DATE (ADDENDUM 02): JANUARY 31, 2021

REVISED DUE DATE (ADDENDUM 03): FEBRUARY 26, 2021

REVISED DUE DATE (ADDENDUM 04): MARCH 18, 2021

TIME: 3:00 P.M., CENTRAL TIME

TABLE OF CONTENTS

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF WORK	4
A. INTRODUCTION	
B. OBJECTIVE	4
D. PARTICIPATING STATES	
E. PRODUCT BANDS	
F. CONFIGURATION LIMITS	
G. PRODUCT RESTRICTIONS	7
SECTION 2: MASTER AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS	8
A. SOLICTATION TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND INSTRUCTIONS	
B. NASPO VALUEPOINT TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
C. MINNESOTA TERMS AND CONDITIONS	
SECTION 3: RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS	37
A. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: PRODUCT DEPLOYMENT	
B. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: ABILITY TO PERFORM	
C. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: ENVIRONMENTAL	
D. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: BUSINESS CAPABILITIES	
SECTION 4: COST PROPOSAL	
SECTION 5: EVALUATION PROCESS	
CHECKLIST	48
SECTION 6: ATTACHMENTS	49
A. SOLICITATION QUESTION FORM	
B. SOLICITATION RESPONSE FORMS	
C. SAMPLE NASPO ValuePoint MASTER AGREEMENT	
D. PARTICIPATING STATES E, ACTION REQUEST FORM SAMPLE	
F. PRODUCT AND SERVICE SCHEDULE	
G. DETAILED REPORTING SAMPLE	
H. PRICE WORKBOOKS	
I. BULK/VOLUME PRICING EXAMPLES	
J. MNIT MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS FOR BANDS 1 AND 2	
N. IVIINI I IVIINIIVIOIVI ACCET IADLE STANDANDS FON DAND S	

SECTION 1: SCOPE OF WORK

A. INTRODUCTION

The State of Minnesota, Department of Administration, Office of State Procurement is requesting proposals on behalf of the State of Minnesota and NASPO ValuePoint. The purpose of this Request for Proposal ("RFP") is to establish Minnesota-led NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement(s) with qualified manufacturers for Computer Equipment (Desktops, Laptops, Tablets, Servers, Storage and Ruggedized Devices including related Peripherals & Services).

This RFP and any resulting contract are for qualified manufacturers only – responders that cannot provide verification that they are a manufacturer will not be considered. Manufacturers that do not sell products directly may receive a Contract Award, but they must clearly specify their relationship with sales partners as directed in the RFP.

This RFP describes a relationship to be established between the Lead State and a responder and also specifies contractual conditions and details the basis for the responses, the subsequent review, and the final selection process. Detailed Contract obligations and measures of performance may be further defined in the final negotiated Contracts. The RFP shall not be construed to limit the Lead State's right to issue or not issue any Contract, to reject all proposals, or to negotiate with more than one responder.

Sealed responses must be received in the office of the Director of the Office of State Procurement and time-stamped no later than the date and time specified, at which time the names of the contractors responding to this RFP will be read. Late responses cannot be considered. The laws of Minn. Stat. Ch. 16C apply to this RFP.

For the purpose of this RFP, there are three product Bands identified below which may be awarded. Responders must only respond to Bands in which they manufacture the defined product. "Re-branding" a product that is manufactured by another company does not meet this requirement. The State of Minnesota ("Lead State") intends to establish multiple awards per Band. The Lead State reserves the right to eliminate any Bands from the final award.

- Band 1: Personal Computing Devices Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 2: Personal Computing Devices Non-Windows Operating System: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 3: Servers and Storage

The Master Agreement(s) resulting from this RFP will replace the current Minnesota WSCA/NASPO Computer Equipment Contracts awarded in 2015. Information on these contracts is available at: http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/wsca/wsca.htm.

All authorized governmental entities in any State or participating US Territory are welcome to use the resulting Master Agreements through NASPO ValuePoint with the approval of the State Chief Procurement Official. Upon final award of the overarching Master Agreements, Contractors are able to sign Participating Addendums (PA) at the option of Participating States. Participating States reserve the right to add State specific terms and conditions and modify the scope of the contract in their Participating Addendum as allowed by the Master Agreement.

Subject to the approval of the awarded Contractor(s), Canadian provincial governments and provincially funded entities may use the resulting Master Agreement, as set forth in Section 2.B.5.a.

This RFP will result in a Master Agreement. The Master Agreement contract terms will begin on the date of contract execution, to 24 months after the date of contract execution, with the option to extend up to 36 months, upon agreement by both parties. Participating States will have the option to participate and further refine their Terms and Conditions through a Participating Addendum.

B. OBJECTIVE

The objectives of this RFP are to:

- Obtain greater volume-based price discounts for quantity one purchases by leveraging the purchasing power of multiple states and their political subdivisions
- Reduce contracting costs for each Participating Entity through a cooperative competitive procurement process
- Obtain better contract terms for states through centralized negotiation on behalf of multiple states and their political subdivisions
- Obtain competitive pricing for specific standard configurations through a Premium Saving Package (PSP) program. Participation in PSP is not required, but is encouraged.

Proposers will provide an initial minimum discount for a quantity of one unit, plus minimum discounts based on volume purchasing tiers. Proposers are to base discounts on the collective volume of potential purchases by the numerous state and local government entities. The objective of the procurement is to consolidate spend for participating entities to receive highly competitive pricing at the quantity one unit. Further bulk/quantity savings are obtained when additional quantities are requested. Participating States and political subdivisions are encouraged to continually obtain competitive quotes from multiple manufacturers for further quantity discounts among the awarded contractors to obtain the lowest price.

The awarded contractors should realize significant savings by managing a single comprehensive Master Agreement establishing common terms, conditions, pricing and administrative structure.

After award of a Master Agreement, Contractors may provide promotions for deeply discounted products based on their inventory and sales. Promotions will also provide increased savings to States and other Participating Entities. The Contractors will be responsible to market these offers. These promotions may be included in the PSP.

C. NASPO VALUEPOINT BACKGROUND INFORMATION

NASPO ValuePoint, a division of the National Association of State Procurement Officials ("NASPO"), is a cooperative purchasing program of all 50 states, the District of Columbia and the territories of the United States. NASPO is a non-profit association dedicated to strengthening the procurement community through education, research, and communication. It is made up of the directors of the central purchasing offices in each of the 50 states, the District of Columbia and the territories of the United States. NASPO ValuePoint facilitates administration of the cooperative group contracting consortium of state chief procurement officials for the benefit of state departments, institutions, agencies, and political subdivisions and other eligible entities (i.e., colleges, school districts, counties, cities, some nonprofit organizations, etc.) for all states, the District of Columbia, and territories of the United States. For more information consult the following websites www.naspovaluepoint.org and www.naspo.org.

The total spend in calendar year 2019 from Participating Entities in 45 states was approximately \$2,347,190,605. It is estimated that approximately \$1,595,000,000 of this spend will be Band 1 or Band 2 under this RFP, \$359,000,000 will be Band 3 under this RFP, and the remaining spend will be peripherals and accessories that cannot definitively be placed in Band 1, 2, or 3.

D. PARTICIPATING STATES

In addition to the Lead State conducting this RFP, the Participating States listed below have requested to be named in this RFP as potential users of the resulting Master Agreement. Other entities may become Participating Entities after award of the Master Agreement.

Some states may have included special or unique terms and conditions for their state that will govern their state Participating Addendum. These terms and conditions are being provided in Section 6 of this RFP as a courtesy to proposers to indicate which additional terms and conditions may be incorporated into the state Participating Addendum after award of the Master Agreement. The Lead State will not address questions or concerns or negotiate other Participating Entity's terms and conditions. The Participating States will negotiate these terms and conditions directly with the contractor.

Individual Participating Addendums may use the contractor's minimum discount percentage off and offered catalog as a base and may elect to negotiate an adjusted (i.e., greater) minimum discount.

Intent to Participate Notices have been received to date from the following states:

Alaska	Louisiana	South Carolina
Arizona	Maine	South Dakota
California	Maryland	Tennessee
Colorado	Minnesota	Utah
Connecticut	Montana	Vermont
Delaware	Nevada	Washington
Florida	New Jersey	Wisconsin
Hawaii	New Mexico	Wyoming
Idaho	North Dakota	Rhode Island
lowa	Ohio	

E. PRODUCT BANDS

This RFP is divided into three (3) hardware product Bands. Each Band includes related peripherals and services. All products and services offered within each Band are subject to the restrictions provided in Product Restrictions, Section 1.G. Due to the continuous evolution of technology Bands will be flexible and may be redefined during the course of the contract.

Band 1: Personal Computing Devices – Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets. Desktop, laptop, and tablet are all defined in Section 2.B.2, "Definitions". Only products utilizing Windows operating systems for these devices are allowed. Zero clients, thin clients, all-in-ones, workstations, notebooks, and mobile thin clients are included in this Band. Ruggedized equipment may also be included in the Product and Service schedule for this Band. Responders do not need to manufacture all three types of devices to be considered for an award.

Band 2: Personal Computing Devices – Non-Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets. Desktop, laptop, and tablet are all defined in Section 2.B.2, "Definitions". Only products utilizing operating systems that are not Windows operating systems for these devices are allowed. Zero clients, thin clients, all-in-ones, workstations, notebooks, and mobile thin clients are included in this Band. Ruggedized equipment may also be included in the Product and Service schedule for this Band. Responders do not need to manufacture all three types of devices to be considered for an award.

Band 3: Servers and Storage. A server is a physical or virtual computer dedicated to run one or more services or applications (as a host) to serve the needs of the users of other computers on a network. This band also includes server appliances. Server appliances have their hardware and software preconfigured by the manufacturer. It also includes embedded networking components such as those found in blade chassis systems. Storage is hardware or a virtual appliance with the ability to store large amounts of data. This band includes SAN switching necessary for the proper functioning of the storage environment. All operating systems for these devices are allowed. Ruggedized equipment may also be included in the Product and Service Schedule for this band. Responders do not need to manufacture both types of devices to be considered for an award.

Examples of peripherals/accessories/options include but are not limited to: printers, monitors, multifunction printers, audiovisual equipment, instructional equipment, cabling, modems, networking to support server, storage and client applications such as hard-wired routers and switches. Peripherals may be purchased by themselves. A responder offering only peripherals in any Band, however, will not be considered for an award in that Band. Software is an option which must be related to the purchase of equipment and subject to configuration limits per the terms of Section 1.G.a.

F. CONFIGURATION LIMITS

Proposed product configurations provided by Contractor under the terms of the Master Agreement may not exceed the dollar amounts set forth below ("Configuration Limits"). Participating Entities may define alternative configuration limits in their Participating Addendum ("Entity Configuration Limits").

The Participating Entity's Chief Procurement Official may increase or decrease Entity Configuration Limits, as defined in their Participating Addendum. The Participating Entity will determine with the Contractor how to approve these modifications to the State's Product and Service Schedule.

The dollar limits identified below are based on a SINGLE computer/system configuration. This is NOT a restriction on the purchase of multiple configurations (e.g., an entity could purchase 10 laptops at \$15,000 each, for a total purchase price of \$150,000). Each configuration includes the combined total of hardware and software components that make up the total functioning system (e.g., a purchase of a laptop in Band 1 with a hardware cost of \$12,000 per unit and software at a cost of \$5,000 per unit would exceed the \$15,000 per configuration limit, and not be allowed).

ITEM	CONFIGURATION LIMIT
Band One	\$15,000
Band Two	\$15,000
Band Three	\$1,000,000
Peripherals	\$10,000
Services	Addressed in the Participating Addendum

G. PRODUCT RESTRICTIONS

The following restrictions apply to the Master Agreement. A Participating Entity may set further restrictions of products in their Participating Addendum. The Participating Entity will determine with the Contractor how to approve these modifications to the Entity's Product and Service Schedule.

a. Software

- 1. Software is restricted to operating systems and commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software and is subject to equipment configuration limits.
- 2. Any software purchased must be related to the procurement of equipment.
- 3. Software must be pre-loaded or provided as an electronic link with the initial purchase of equipment, except as set forth in Section 1.G.a.4, below.
- 4. Software such as middleware which is not always installed on the equipment, but is related to storage and server equipment (Band 3) purchased, is allowed and may be procured after the initial purchase of equipment.

b. General Services

- 1. Services must be related to the procurement of equipment.
- 2. Service limits will be addressed by each State.
- 3. Wireless phone and internet service is not allowed.
- 4. Managed Print Services are not allowed.

c. Cloud Services

- 1. Cloud Services are restricted to Services that function as operating systems and software needed to support or configure hardware purchased under the scope of the contract and is subject to equipment configuration limits.
- 2. Any Cloud Service purchased must be related to the procurement of equipment.

d. Third Party Products

- 1. Third Party Products can be offered only in the Bands they have been awarded. All Third-Party Products must meet the definition(s) of the Band(s) in which they are being offered.
- 2. Products manufactured by another Contractor holding a Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement for Computer Equipment cannot be offered unless approved by the Lead State.

e. Additional Product/Services

- 1. Hardware and software required to solely support wide area network (WAN) operation and management are not allowed.
- 2. Lease/Rentals of equipment may be allowed and will be addressed by each State.
- 3. Cellular Phone Equipment is not allowed.
- 4. EPEAT Bronze requirement may be waived, on a State case-by-case basis, if approved by the State's Chief Procurement Officer. EPEAT Bronze requirement does not currently apply to storage.

SECTION 2: MASTER AGREEMENT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A statement of acceptance of the Master Agreement Terms and Conditions, unless taken exception to, as specified in the RFP must be included in the response. Any suggestions for alternate language must be presented.

- A. SOLICITATION TERMS. CONDITIONS, AND INSTRUCTIONS
- B. NASPO VALUEPOINT TERMS AND CONDITIONS
- C. MINNESOTA TERMS AND CONDITIONS
- D. FORMS

A. SOLICITATION TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND INSTRUCTIONS

1. Award.

This RFP does not commit the Lead State to award any Master Agreement or to pay any costs incurred by a responder in responding.

The award of this RFP will be based upon the total accumulated points as established in the RFP, for separate items, by grouping items, or by total lot, and where at its sole discretion the Lead State believes it will receive the best value. The Lead State reserves the right to award this RFP to a single responder, or to multiple responders, whichever is in the best interest of the Lead State. It is the Lead State's intent to award to multiple responders. The Lead State reserves the right to accept all or part of an offer, to reject all offers, to cancel the RFP, or to reissue the RFP, whichever is in the best interest of the Lead State.

The Sourcing Team will make a recommendation on the award of this RFP. The Commissioner of Administration or designee may accept or reject the recommendation of the Sourcing Team. The final award decision will be made by the Commissioner of Administration and the NASPO ValuePoint Management Board.

2. Acceptance of Terms and Conditions.

As identified in the Sample Master Agreement attached in Section 6.C of this RFP, portions of the RFP and the response of the successful responder will become Master Agreement contractual obligations if acquisition action ensues.

A statement of acceptance of the proposed Contract Terms and Conditions, unless taken exception to, must be included in the response. Any suggestions for alternate language must be presented with the response (see Section 6.B, Terms, Conditions, and Response Requirements Exception Form). Any response which fails to comply with this requirement may be disqualified as nonresponsive. The Lead State is under no obligation to accept wording changes submitted by a responder. The Lead State is solely responsible for rendering decisions in matters of interpretation on all terms and conditions of Section 2.A.

3. Master Agreement Administrator.

The Master Agreement Administrator designated by NASPO ValuePoint and the Lead State is Andy Doran. Direct all correspondence and inquiries, legal questions, general issues, or technical issues regarding this RFP to:

Andy Doran
IT Acquisitions Supervisor
Department of Administration
Office of State Procurement
112 Administration Building
50 Sherburne Avenue
St. Paul, MN 55155

Fax: 651.297.3996

E-mail: andy.doran@state.mn.us

4. Schedule of Events.

This paragraph provides a tentative schedule of the critical project dates. Responders should carefully examine and make certain they have a clear understanding of the requirements of the specified project milestones and the associated dates.

Date/Time	Event
November 4, 2020	Publish RFP
November 18, 2020, 3:00 PM CT	Registration Deadline for Pre-proposal Webinar (Section 2.A.6)
November 20, 2020, 1:00 PM CT	Optional Pre-Proposal Webinar (Section 2.A.6)
December 14, 2020	Questions Due (Sections 2.A.7 and Section 6.A)
January 11, 2021, 3:00 PM CT	Proposal Due Date/Proposal Opening

5. Electronic Files to Download, Complete, and Return.

Responders must download the entire RFP. The sections of the RFP will be in either Word, PDF, or Excel formats, depending on whether a response is required for that section. If you need assistance please contact the Lead State's HelpLine at (651) 201-8100, option 1.

6. Pre-Proposal Webinar Meeting.

A pre-proposal meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams for all interested responders to review any concerns regarding this RFP. Attendance at this meeting is **NOT** MANDATORY, but is recommended. See the Schedule of Events for date and time (Section 2.A.4). Interested responders will register to attend the webinar by sending an email to the Master Agreement Administrator. The registration email should include the interested responder's name, and the name and email address of the person(s) attending the Pre-Proposal Webinar Meeting. The Master Agreement Administrator will send an invitation to the Pre-Proposal Webinar Meeting to all registered attendees by 10:00 AM CT on November 20, 2020.

7. Questions and Inquiries.

Questions or inquiries regarding this RFP must be submitted in writing to Master Agreement Administrator. All questions received by the cutoff date and time will be responded to via an addendum to official solicitation holders. If submitting a question be specific and cite the section, item, and page number to which the question refers. Contact regarding this RFP with any State personnel other than the Master Agreement Administrator may result in rejection of the response. See Schedule of Events for date and time.

8. Addenda to the RFP.

Any addendum issued will become a part of the RFP. The Lead State may modify or clarify the RFP by issuing one or more addenda to all parties who have received the RFP. Each responder must follow the directions on the addendum. Addenda will be numbered consecutively in the order they are issued.

9. Clarification.

If a responder discovers any significant ambiguity, error, conflict, discrepancy, omission, or other deficiency in the RFP, the responder shall immediately notify the Master Agreement Administrator in writing, as specified in Section 2.A.3, of such error and request modification or clarification of the document. This notification is due no later than five business days prior to the proposal due date and time.

Responders are cautioned that any activity or communication with a state employee or officer, or a member of the Evaluation Team, regarding this RFP's contents or process, is strictly prohibited and may, as a result, have its response rejected. Any communication regarding this RFP, its content or process, must be directed to the Master Agreement Administrator listed in the RFP documents.

10. Proposal Preparation.

Responses are to be prepared and presented in the same sequential order as the questions are presented in this document. Responses deviating from the request for proposal format and organization may be removed from further consideration. Responses are expected to provide a straightforward and concise description of the responder's ability to meet the requirements. Any materials submitted may be incorporated by reference in the final Master Agreement. Marketing materials will not be accepted as a response.

A responder's response to the RFP must be returned to the Lead State, addressed to the Master Agreement Administrator, sealed in a mailing envelope or package with the responder's name and address clearly written on the outside. Late responses cannot be considered. The laws of Minn. Stat. Ch. 16C and all other applicable laws apply to this RFP.

All costs incurred in responding to this RFP will be borne by the responder.

11. Authorized Signature.

The response must be in the legal name of the firm or business, and must be fully and properly executed and signed by an officer or other authorized representative who must state his/her title (see Section 6.B, Responder Declarations). The responder must provide proof of authority of the person signing the response upon request.

12. Narrative Response.

Responses to the Requirements of Sections 3.A-E should be provided in the order presented in the RFP, clearly marked and tabbed. A narrative response should describe how the responder will meet the requirement. For Sections without specific requirements or responses needed, a responder may add an acknowledgement that they read, understand, and comply with that Section. Forms that require a signature may be physically-signed and

scanned into PDF format or signed electronically via a signing software that includes verification capabilities such as DocuSign.

The responder must provide two digital copies of the Narrative Response. Each digital copy of the Narrative Response must be provided on its own flash drive, and each flash drive should be marked "Narrative Response."

Each digital copy of the Narrative Response should include:

- An electronic searchable PDF, and
- One editable Word document.

Include any signed addenda (if applicable) and all Solicitation Response Forms (see Section 6.B) with the Narrative Response. **Do not include the Cost Proposal or any cost-related information in the Narrative Response.**

13. Cost Proposal.

The responder must provide one complete digital copy of the Cost Proposal on a flash drive. The Cost Proposal must be submitted on a flash drive separate from the Narrative Response, and the drive should be marked "Cost Proposal." The digital copy of the Cost Proposal must include:

- Responses to Section 4,
- Baseline Price List,
- Proposed Product and Services Schedule, and
- Price Workbooks for all applicable Bands, including all tabs.

The Cost Proposal should be submitted in the following formats:

- Responses to Section 4 in either a searchable PDF or Word document, and
- The Baseline Price List, Proposed Product and Services Schedule, and Price Workbooks should be submitted as unlocked Excel documents.

14. Accessibility.

Responders should complete, in an accessible format, the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) sections in a Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT®) for all websites proposed in response to the solicitation. Responders can use the VPAT form from the ITIC VPAT site (https://www.itic.org/policy/accessibility/vpat), and select the "WCAG" option. These documents will be scored according to the solicitation evaluation.

Responders are encouraged to reference the "Vendor VPAT Guidance" in the "Products" tab on the Lead State's Accessible IT Procurement page (https://mn.gov/mnit/about-mnit/accessibility/it-procurement.jsp) for information and instructions on completing the VPAT. Responders should also review the related guidance documents on the same site for solicitation reviewers to understand expectations. Responders are strongly encouraged to provide remarks and explanation that both support compliance and detail any deficiencies, as even if you claim "supports" unless there are remarks and explanations, you may score low.

15. Trade Secret/Confidential Information.

- Responders must not submit as part of their response trade secret material, as defined by Minn. Stat. § 13.37.
- b. In the event trade secret data are submitted, Responder must defend any action seeking release of data it believes to be trade secret, and indemnify and hold harmless the State, its agents and employees, from any judgments awarded against the Lead State in favor of the party requesting the data, and any and all costs connected with that defense.
- c. The Lead State does not consider cost or prices to be trade secret material, as defined by Minn. Stat. § 13.37.
- d. A responder may present and discuss trade secret information during an interview or demonstration with the Lead State, if applicable.

16. Irrevocable Offer.

In accordance with this RFP, and subject to all conditions thereof, the undersigned agrees that its response to this RFP, or any part thereof, is an irrevocable offer for 180 calendar days following the submission deadline date

unless stated otherwise in the RFP. It is understood and agreed that the response, or any part thereof, when accepted by the appropriate department and State officials in writing, may become part of a legal and binding Master Agreement between the contractor and the Lead State.

17. Alterations.

Any alteration, particularly in the price used to determine the successful response, may be rejected unless the alteration is initialed by the person authorized to contractually obligate the responder. The responder must provide proof of authorization upon request.

18. Material Deviation.

A responder will be presumed to be in agreement with the terms and conditions of this RFP unless it takes specific exception to one or more of the conditions. Submission by the responder of its proposed language may not be viewed as an exception unless the responder specifically states in the response that its proposed changes are intended to supersede the terms and conditions.

Responders are cautioned that by taking any exception they may be materially deviating from the request for proposal. If a responder materially deviates from the solicitation terms, conditions, and instructions, the NASPO ValuePoint terms and conditions, the Minnesota terms and conditions, or Response Requirements, its response may be rejected.

A material deviation is an exception to the RFP Solicitation, NASPO ValuePoint terms and conditions, Minnesota terms and conditions, or specifications that:

- a. gives the responder taking the exception a competitive advantage over other responders; or,
- b. gives the Lead State something significantly different from that which the Lead State requested.

19. Nonresponsive Responses.

Responses that do not comply with the provisions in the RFP may be considered nonresponsive and may be rejected.

20. Completion of Responses.

A response may be rejected if it is conditional or incomplete. Responses that contain conflicting, false, or misleading statements or that provide references that contradict or do not support an attribute or condition stated by the responder, may be rejected.

21. Dispute Resolution Procedures.

Any issue a responder has with the RFP document, which includes, but is not limited to, the terms, conditions, and specifications, must be submitted in writing to and received by the Master Agreement Administrator prior to the opening due date and time. Any issue a responder has with the Master Agreement award must be submitted in writing to the Master Agreement Administrator within five business days from the time the notice of the intent to award is issued. This notice may be made by any of the following methods: notification by letter, fax or email, or posted on the Office of State Procurement website, http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/. The Lead State will respond to any protest received that follows the above procedure. For those protests that meet the above submission requirements, the appeal process is, in sequence: The Master Agreement Administrator, the Office of State Procurement (OSP) Acquisitions Manager, and the OSP Director. Responders wishing to take exception to the terms, conditions, or specifications outlined in this RFP must do so using the form provided in Section 6.A.

22. Disposition of Responses.

All materials submitted in response to this RFP will become property of the Lead State and will become public record after the evaluation process is completed. The evaluation process is complete when negotiations with the selected contractor(s) are final. If the responder submits information in response to this RFP that it believes to be trade secret materials, as defined by the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. § 13.37, the responder must:

- a. clearly mark all trade secret materials in its response at the time the response is submitted;
- b. include a statement with its response justifying the trade secret designation for each item; and
- c. defend any action seeking release of the materials it believes to be trade secret, and indemnify and hold harmless the Lead State, its agents and employees, from any judgments awarded against the Lead State in favor of the party requesting the materials, and any and all costs connected with that defense. This indemnification survives the Lead State's award of a Master Agreement. In submitting a response to the RFP, the responder agrees that this indemnification survives as long as the trade secret materials are in

possession of the Lead State. The Lead State will not consider the prices submitted by the responder to be trade secret materials.

23. Public Information.

Once the information contained in the responses is deemed public information, interested parties may request to obtain the public information. You may submit your request through the Lead State's online portal at http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/process/admin/dataRequest.asp.

24. Solicitation Governing Law and Venue.

The procurement, evaluation, and award of the Master Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Lead State sponsoring and administering the procurement. Unless otherwise specified in the RFP, the venue for any protest, claim, dispute or action relating to the procurement, evaluation, and award is in the Lead State. If a claim is brought in a federal forum, then it must be brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for the Lead State for claims relating to the procurement, evaluation, award.

25. Organizational Conflicts of Interest.

The Responder warrants that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, and except as otherwise disclosed, there are no relevant facts or circumstances which could give rise to organizational conflicts of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when, because of existing or planned activities or because of relationships with other persons:

- a. the Responder is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the State;
- b. the Responder's objectivity in performing the work is or might be otherwise impaired; or
- c. the Responder has an unfair competitive advantage.

B. NASPO VALUEPOINT TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Conflict of Terms/Order of Precedence.

- a. Any order placed under this Master Agreement shall consist of the following documents:
 - 1. A Participating Entity's Participating Addendum ("PA");
 - 2. Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement, as negotiated, including all exhibits;
 - 3. A Purchase Order issued against a PA (terms and conditions set forth in a Purchase Order will not be deemed to modify, diminish, or otherwise derogate the terms and conditions set forth in a Participating Addendum or Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement).
- b. These documents shall be read to be consistent and complementary. Any conflict among these documents shall be resolved by giving priority to these documents in the order listed above. Contractor terms and conditions that apply to this Master Agreement are only those that are expressly accepted by the Lead State and must be in writing and attached to this Master Agreement as an Exhibit or Attachment.
- c. Contractor terms and conditions may be incorporated if expressly accepted by the Lead State and attached to the Master Agreement as an Exhibit or Attachment, or by written reference (including reference to information contained in a URL or referenced policy). A written reference, including by URL or policy, is incorporated into the Master Agreement only if the Master Agreement expressly identifies that reference. URL's must be explicitly referenced to be incorporated into the Master Agreement. URL's contained within the URL's that are explicitly referenced are not incorporated into the Master Agreement. Any Contractor term or condition incorporated by URL or written reference applies to this Master Agreement only to the extent such term or condition is not prohibited by applicable law. Any change to information contained in a URL or referenced policy will not affect any financial obligation, place any additional material obligation on an ordering entity, or materially diminish an ordering entity's ability to use the product or service.
- d. A written Master Agreement (which may include the contents of this RFP and selected portions of Contractor's response incorporated therein by reference) will constitute the entire agreement of the parties to the Master Agreement. No other terms and conditions shall apply, including terms and conditions listed in the Contractor's response to the RFP, or terms listed or referenced on the Contractor's website not otherwise incorporated into the Master Agreement, in the Contractor quotation/sales order, or in similar documents subsequently provided by the Contractor.
- e. Additional Agreement with NASPO. Upon request by NASPO ValuePoint, awarded Contractor shall enter into a direct contractual relationship with NASPO ValuePoint related to Contractor's obligations to NASPO ValuePoint under the terms of the Master Agreement, the terms of which shall be the same or similar (and not less favorable) than the terms set forth in the Master Agreement.

2. Definitions.

- a. Acceptance is defined by the applicable commercial code, except Acceptance shall not occur before the completion of delivery in accordance with the Order, installation if required, and a reasonable time for inspection of the Product.
- b. Accessory means a product that enhances the user experience but does not extend the functionality of the computer (e.g. mouse pad or monitor stand). For the purposes of this RFP, accessories are considered peripherals.
- c. ____ as a Service (_aaS) refers to any good provided in a subscription-based model that is defined in the industry as "____ as a Service". Examples are "Software as a Service", "Infrastructure as a Service", and "Storage as a Service", and shall follow the NIST definitions of those services. ____ as a Service are permitted only when they meet the restrictions found in Section 1.G.c.
- d. **Band** means a category of products. There are three product bands which may be awarded through this RFP. Each product band includes related peripherals and services.
- e. **Components** are the parts that make up a computer configuration.
- f. **Contractor** means the person or entity delivering Products or performing services under the terms and conditions set forth in this Master Agreement.

- g. **Configuration** means the combination of hardware and software components that make up the total functioning system.
- h. Customer (see Purchasing Entity).
- i. **Desktop** means a personal computer intended for regular use at a single location. A desktop computer typically comes in several units connected together during installation: (1) the processor, 2) display monitor, and 3) input devices usually a keyboard and a mouse. Desktops, including desktop virtualization endpoints such as zero and thin clients, are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this RFP.
- Embedded Software means one or more software applications which permanently reside on a computing device.
- k. **Energy Star**® is a voluntary energy efficiency program sponsored by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The Energy Star program makes it easy to identify energy efficient computers by labeling products that deliver the same or better performance as comparable models while using less energy and saving money. For additional information on the Energy Star program, including product specifications and a list of qualifying products, visit the Energy Star website at http://www.energystar.gov.
- I. **EPEAT** is a type-1 ecolabel for identifying and purchasing sustainable IT products. EPEAT-registered products must meet sustainability criteria detailed in voluntary consensus-based standards that are free and publicly available on the Green Electronics Council's website at www.greenelectronicscouncil.org. Products are classified as Bronze, Silver, or Gold based on meeting criteria that address the life cycle of the products. Product life cycle includes material extraction, hazardous substance reduction, end-of-life management, packaging, and corporate sustainability. Only products listed as Active in the online EPEAT Registry are considered to meet the EPEAT criteria.
- m. **FOB Destination** means that shipping charges are included in the price of the item and the shipped item becomes the legal property and responsibility of the receiver when it reaches its destination unless there is acceptance testing required.
- n. FOB Inside Delivery means that shipping charges are included in the price of the item, and that the shipped item becomes the legal property and responsibility of the receiver when it reaches the inside delivery point, which is beyond the front door or loading dock. FOB Inside Delivery is a special shipping arrangement that may include additional fees payable by the Purchasing Entity. FOB Inside Delivery must be annotated on the Purchasing Entity ordering document.
- o. **Intellectual Property** means any and all patents, copyrights, service marks, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, patentable inventions, or other similar proprietary rights, in tangible or intangible form, and all rights, title, and interest therein.
- p. **Laptop** means a personal computer for mobile use. A laptop includes a display, keyboard, point device such as a touchpad, and speakers in a single unit. A laptop can be used away from an outlet using a rechargeable battery. Laptops include notebooks, ultrabooks, netbooks, Zero and thin client devices, and computers with mobile operating systems. Laptops are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this RFP.
- q. Lead State means the State centrally administering any resulting Master Agreement(s).
- r. **Mandatory Requirement** is a requirement that the failure to meet results in the rejection of the responder's proposal unless all responders are unable to meet the mandatory requirement. The terms "must" and "shall" identify a mandatory requirement. Any objection to a mandatory requirement should be identified by responders in the Question and Answer period.
- s. **Manufacturer** means a company that, as one of its primary business functions, designs, assembles, owns the trademark/patent for, and markets branded computer equipment.
- t. **Master Agreement** means the underlying agreement executed by and between the Lead State, acting on behalf of NASPO ValuePoint, and the Contractor.
- u. **Middleware** means the software "glue" that helps programs and databases (which may be on different computers) work together. The most basic function of middleware is to enable communication between different pieces of software.

- v. **NASPO ValuePoint** is a division of the National Association of State Procurement Officials ("NASPO"), a 501(c)(3) limited liability company. NASPO ValuePoint facilitates administration of the NASPO cooperative group contracting consortium of state chief procurement officials for the benefit of state departments, institutions, agencies, and political subdivisions and other eligible entities (i.e., colleges, school districts, counties, cities, some nonprofit organizations, etc.) for all states, the District of Columbia, and territories of the United States. NASPO ValuePoint is identified in the Master Agreement as the recipient of reports and may perform contract administration functions relating to collecting and receiving reports as well as other contract administration functions as assigned by the Lead State.
- w. **Option** means an item of equipment or a feature that may be chosen as an addition to or replacement for standard equipment and features.
- x. **Order** or **Purchase Order** means any purchase order, sales order, contract or other method used by a Purchasing Entity to order the Products.
- y. **Participating Addendum** means a bilateral agreement executed by a Contractor and a Participating Entity incorporating this Master Agreement and any other additional Participating Entity specific language or other requirements, e.g. ordering procedures specific to the Participating Entity, other terms and conditions.
- z. **Participating Entity** means a state (as well as the District of Columbia and U.S territories), city, county, district, other political subdivision of a State, or a nonprofit organization under the laws of some states properly authorized to enter into a Participating Addendum, that has executed a Participating Addendum.
- aa. Participating State means a state that has executed a Participating Addendum.
- bb. **Partner** means a company, authorized by the Contractor and approved by the Participating State, to provide marketing, support, or other authorized contract services on behalf of the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contractor's Master Agreement. A Partner may include, but is not limited to, an agent, subcontractor, fulfillment partner, channel partner, business partner, servicing subcontractor, etc.
- cc. **Peripherals** means any hardware product that can be attached to, added within, or networked with personal computers, servers, or storage. Peripherals extend the functionality of a computer without modifying the core components of the system.
- dd. **Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount** means a contractual volume discount based on dollars in a single purchase order or combination of purchase orders submitted at one time by a Participating Entity or multiple entities conducting a cooperative purchase.
- ee. **Premium Savings Package(s) (PSP)** are deeply discounted standard configurations available to Purchasing Entities using the Master Agreement. NASPO ValuePoint reserves the right to expand and modify the PSP throughout the life of the contract. For more information see: https://www.naspovaluepoint.org/portfolio/57/.
- ff. **Product** means any equipment, software (including embedded software), documentation, service, or other deliverable supplied or created by the Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement. The term Products, supplies and services, and products and services are used interchangeably in these terms and conditions.
- gg. **Purchasing Entity** means a state (including the District of Columbia and U.S. territories), city, county, district, other political subdivision of a state, other public entities domestic or foreign, and nonprofit organizations under the laws of some states if authorized by a Participating Addendum, that issues a Purchase Order under the terms of the Master Agreement, or any Participating Addendum thereto, and becomes financially committed to the purchase.
- hh. **Ruggedized** means equipment specifically designed to operate reliably in harsh usage environments and conditions, such as strong vibrations, extreme temperatures, and wet or dusty conditions. Ruggedized equipment may be proposed under the band that most closely fits the equipment being proposed.
- ii. Server means computer hardware dedicated to run one or more services or applications (as a host) to serve the needs of the users of other computers on a network. Servers may be either physical or virtual. Servers, including server appliances, are included in Band 3 of this RFP. Server appliances have their hardware and software preconfigured by the manufacturer, and include embedded networking components such as those found in blade chassis systems.

- jj. **Services** are broadly classified as installation or de-installation, maintenance, support, training, migration, and optimization of products offered or supplied under the Master Agreement. These classifications of services may include, but are not limited to: warranty services, maintenance, installation, de-installation, factory integration (software or hardware components), asset management, recycling or disposal, training and certification, pre-implementation design, disaster recovery planning and support, service desk or helpdesk, imaging, and any other directly related technical support service required for the effective operation of a product offered or supplied. Contractors may offer limited professional services related ONLY to the equipment and configuration of the equipment purchased through the resulting contracts.
 - EACH PARTICIPATING ENTITY WILL DETERMINE RESTRICTIONS AND NEGOTIATE TERMS FOR SERVICES THROUGH THEIR PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM.
- kk. **Software** means, for the purposes of this RFP, commercial operating off the shelf machine-readable object code instructions including microcode, firmware, and operating system software that meet the restrictions specified in Section 1.G.a. "Software" applies to all parts of software and documentation, including new releases, updates, and modifications of software.
- II. **Storage** means hardware or a virtual appliance with the ability to store large amounts of data. Storage, including SAN switching necessary for the proper functioning of storage equipment, is included in Band 3 of this RFP
- mm. **Storage Area Network** (SAN) is a high-speed special-purpose network (or subnetwork) that interconnects different kinds of data storage devices with associated data servers on behalf of a larger network of users.
- nn. **Tablet** means a mobile computer that provides a touchscreen that acts as the primary means of control. Tablets, including notebooks, ultrabooks, and netbooks with touchscreen capabilities, are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this RFP.
- oo. **Takeback Program** means the Contractor's process for accepting the return of equipment or other products at the end of the product's life.
- pp. **Thin Client** is a lightweight computer that has been optimized for establishing a remote connection with a server-based computing environment.
- qq. **Third Party Product** is a good sold by the Contractor that is manufactured by another company. Third Party Products are intended to enhance or supplement a Contractor's own product line, and are not intended to represent more than a third of any Contractor's total sales under this Master Agreement.
- rr. **Upgrade** means the replacement of existing software, hardware, or hardware component with a newer version.
- ss. Warranty means the Manufacturer's general warranty tied to the product at the time of purchase.
- tt. **Wide Area Network** (WAN) is a data network that serves users across a broad geographic area and often uses transmission devices provided by common carriers.

3. Term of the Master Agreement.

- a. The initial term of this Master Agreement is for 2 years. This Master Agreement may be extended beyond the original contract period for 36 additional months at the Lead State's discretion and by mutual agreement and upon review of requirements of Participating Entities, current market conditions, and Contractor performance.
- b. The Master Agreement may be extended for a reasonable period of time if in the judgment of the Lead State a follow-on, competitive procurement will be unavoidably delayed (despite good faith efforts) beyond the planned date of execution of the follow-on master agreement. This subsection shall not be deemed to limit the authority of a Lead State under its state law otherwise to negotiate contract extensions.

4. Amendments.

The terms of this Master Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever without a written amendment to the Master Agreement executed by the Contractor and Lead State as required by law. Master Agreement amendments will be negotiated by the Lead State with the Contractor

whenever necessary to address changes in the terms and conditions, costs, timetable, or increased or decreased scope of work.

5. Participants and Scope.

- a. Canadian Participation. Subject to the approval of the Contractor, any Canadian provincial government or provincially funded entity in Ontario, Quebec, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Manitoba, British Columbia, Prince Edward Island, Saskatchewan, Alberta, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Yukon, and Newfoundland and Labrador, including municipalities, universities, community colleges, school boards, health authorities, housing authorities, agencies, boards, commissions, and crown corporations, may be eligible to use Contractor's Master Agreement.
- b. Contractor may not deliver Products under this Master Agreement until a Participating Addendum acceptable to the Participating Entity and Contractor is executed. The NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Terms and Conditions are applicable to any Order by a Participating Entity (and other Purchasing Entities covered by their Participating Addendum), except to the extent altered, modified, supplemented or amended by a Participating Addendum. By way of illustration and not limitation, this authority may apply to unique delivery and invoicing requirements, confidentiality requirements, defaults on Orders, governing law and venue relating to Orders by a Participating Entity, indemnification, and insurance requirements. Statutory or constitutional requirements relating to availability of funds may require specific language in some Participating Addenda in order to comply with applicable law. The expectation is that these alterations, modifications, supplements, or amendments will be addressed in the Participating Addendum or, with the consent of the Purchasing Entity and Contractor, may be included in the ordering document (e.g. purchase order or contract) used by the Purchasing Entity to place the Order.
- c. Use of specific NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreements by state agencies, political subdivisions and other Participating Entities (including cooperatives) authorized by individual state's statutes to use state contracts are subject to the approval of the respective State Chief Procurement Official. Issues of interpretation and eligibility for participation are solely within the authority of the respective State Chief Procurement Official.
- d. Obligations under this Master Agreement are limited to those Participating Entities who have signed a Participating Addendum and Purchasing Entities within the scope of those Participating Addenda. States or other entities permitted to participate may use an informal competitive process to determine which Master Agreements to participate in through execution of a Participating Addendum. Financial obligations of Participating Entities who are states are limited to the orders placed by the departments or other state agencies and institutions having available funds. Participating Entities who are states incur no financial obligations on behalf of other Purchasing Entities. Contractor shall email a fully executed PDF copy of each Participating Addendum to PA@naspovaluepoint.org to support documentation of participation and posting in appropriate data bases.
- e. NASPO and NASPO ValuePoint are not parties to the Master Agreement.
- f. Participating Addenda shall not be construed to amend the following provisions in this Master Agreement between the Lead State and Contractor that prescribe NASPO ValuePoint requirements: Term of the Master Agreement; Amendments; Participants and Scope; Administrative Fee; NASPO ValuePoint Summary and Detailed Usage Reports; NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Program Marketing and Performance Review; Right to Publish; Price and Rate Guarantee Period; and Individual Customers. Any such language shall be void and of no effect.
- g. Participating Entities who are not states may under some circumstances sign their own Participating Addendum, subject to the consent to participation by the Chief Procurement Official of the state where the Participating Entity is located. Coordinate requests for such participation through NASPO ValuePoint. Any permission to participate through execution of a Participating Addendum is not a determination that procurement authority exists in the Participating Entity; they must ensure that they have the requisite procurement authority to execute a Participating Addendum.
- h. **Resale.** "Resale" means any payment in exchange for transfer of tangible goods, software, or assignment of the right to services. Subject to any specific conditions included in the Master Agreement, or as explicitly permitted in a Participating Addendum, Purchasing Entities may not resell Products (the definition of which includes services that are deliverables). Absent any such condition or explicit permission, this limitation does not prohibit: payments by employees of a Purchasing Entity for Products; sales of Products to the general public as surplus property; and fees associated with inventory transactions with other governmental or

nonprofit entities and consistent with a Purchasing Entity's laws and regulations. Any sale or transfer permitted by this subsection must be consistent with license rights granted for use of intellectual property.

6. Individual Customers.

Except to the extent modified by a Participating Addendum, each Purchasing Entity shall follow the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement and applicable Participating Addendum and will have the same rights and responsibilities for their purchases as the Lead State has in the Master Agreement, including but not limited to, any indemnity or right to recover any costs as such right is defined in the Master Agreement and applicable Participating Addendum for their purchases. Each Purchasing Entity will be responsible for its own charges, fees, and liabilities. The Contractor will apply the charges and invoice each Purchasing Entity individually.

7. Independent Contractor.

The Contractor is an independent contractor. Contractor shall have no authorization, express or implied, to bind the Lead State, Participating States, other Participating Entities, or Purchasing Entities to any agreements, settlements, liability or understanding whatsoever, and agrees not to hold itself out as an agent except as expressly set forth herein or as expressly agreed in any Participating Addendum.

8. Contracting Personnel.

Contractor must provide adequate contracting personnel to assist states with the completing and processing Participating Addenda. It is preferred that each Contractor be able to provide each Participating Entity with a primary contact person for that Participating Entity.

9. Changes in Contractor Representation.

The Contractor must notify the Lead State of changes in the Contractor's key administrative personnel managing the Master Agreement in writing within 10 calendar days of the change. The Lead State reserves the right to approve changes in key personnel, as identified in the Contractor's proposal. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor agrees to propose replacement key personnel having substantially equal or better education, training, and experience as was possessed by the key person proposed and evaluated in the Contractor's proposal.

10. Contractor Verification.

The Contractor is responsible for delivering products or performing services under the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Agreement. The Contractor must ensure partners utilized in the performance of this contract adhere to all the terms and conditions. The term Partner will be utilized in naming the relationship a Contractor has with another company to market and sell under the contract. Participating Entities will have final determination/approval if a Partner may be approved for that state in the role identified by the Contractor.

11. Contractor Performance Meeting.

An annual performance meeting may be held each year with the NASPO ValuePoint Sourcing Team. Historically performance meetings have been held in Minnesota, but the Lead State may hold the meetings in person or virtually at the Lead State's discretion.

All contractors that are invited to participate must send their Primary Account Representative, unless an exception is granted in writing by the Lead State. It is possible that not all contractors will be invited to participate in a performance meeting.

12. Laws and Regulations.

Any and all Products offered and furnished shall comply fully with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations, including Minn. Stat. § 181.59 prohibiting discrimination and business registration requirements of the Office of the Minnesota Secretary of State. To the extent any purchase is subject to Federal Acquisition Regulations, as may be required by the terms of a federal grant, a Participating Entity and Contractor may include in their Participating Addendum terms that reflect such a requirement.

13. Price and Rate Guarantee Period.

All minimum discounts and rates must be guaranteed for the initial term of the Master Agreement. Following the initial Master Agreement period, any request for minimum discount or rate adjustment must be for a guarantee period as offered by the Contractor, and must be made at least 30 days prior to the effective date. Requests for minimum discount or rate adjustment must include sufficient documentation supporting the request. Any adjustment or amendment to the Master Agreement shall not be effective unless approved by the Lead State. No retroactive adjustments to minimum discounts or rates will be allowed.

14. Premium Savings Package Program.

The Lead State reserves the right to create a Premium Savings Package Program (PSP) as outlined in the Definitions, Section 2.B.2. Participation by Contractor is voluntary. The details and commitments of the PSP will be detailed as a part of any request for Contractor to participate.

15. Services.

Participating Entities must explicitly allow services in their Participating Addenda for the approved services to be allowed under that Participating Addendum. The Participating Addendum by each Participating Entity will address service agreement terms and related travel.

16. Ordering.

- a. Master Agreement and purchase order numbers shall be clearly shown on all acknowledgments, packing slips, invoices, and on all correspondence.
- b. Purchasing Entities may define entity or project-specific requirements and informally compete the requirement among companies having a Master Agreement on an "as needed" basis. This procedure may also be used when requirements are aggregated or other firm commitments may be made to achieve reductions in pricing. This procedure may be modified in Participating Addenda and adapted to the Purchasing Entity's rules and policies. The Purchasing Entity may in its sole discretion determine which Master Agreement Contractors should be solicited for a quote. The Purchasing Entity may select the quote that it considers most advantageous, cost and other factors considered.
- c. Each Purchasing Entity will identify and utilize its own appropriate purchasing procedure and documentation. Contractor is expected to become familiar with the Purchasing Entities' rules, policies, and procedures regarding the ordering of supplies or services contemplated by this Master Agreement.
- d. Contractor shall not begin work without a valid Purchase Order or other appropriate commitment document under the law of the Purchasing Entity.
- e. Orders may be placed consistent with the terms of this Master Agreement during the term of the Master Agreement.
- f. All Orders pursuant to this Master Agreement, at a minimum, shall include:
 - 1. The service description or supplies being delivered;
 - 2. The place and requested time of delivery;
 - 3. A billing address:
 - 4. The name, phone number, and address of the Purchasing Entity representative;
 - 5. The price per hour or other pricing elements consistent with this Master Agreement and the contractor's proposal:
 - 6. A ceiling amount of the order for services being ordered;
 - 7. The Master Agreement identifier; and
 - 8. Statement of Work, when applicable.
- g. All communications concerning administration of Orders placed shall be furnished solely to the authorized purchasing agent within the Purchasing Entity's purchasing office, or to such other individual identified in writing in the Order.
- h. Orders must be placed pursuant to this Master Agreement prior to the termination date thereof, but may have a delivery date or performance period up to 120 days past the then-current termination date of this Master Agreement. Contractor is reminded that financial obligations of Purchasing Entities payable after the current applicable fiscal year are contingent upon agency funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available.
- i. Notwithstanding the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Master Agreement, Contractor agrees to perform in accordance with the terms of any Orders then outstanding at the time of such expiration or termination. Contractor shall not honor any Orders placed after the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Master Agreement, or otherwise inconsistent with its terms. Orders from any separate indefinite quantity, task orders, or other form of indefinite delivery order arrangement priced against this Master Agreement may not be placed after the expiration or termination of this Master Agreement, notwithstanding the term of any such indefinite delivery order agreement.

17. Trade-In.

Any trade-in programs offered during the life of the Master Agreement must be approved by the Lead State. Participating Entities must explicitly allow trade-in programs in their Participating Addenda for the approved programs to be allowed under that Participating Addendum. Trade-in value shall not decrease the discounts offered through the Master Agreement.

18. Shipping and Delivery.

- a. The prices are the delivered price to any Purchasing Entity for standard 3-5 day shipping. If an order is requested with expedited shipping, the Contractor must provide a firm "not to exceed" price for the expedited shipping on the quote. All deliveries shall be FOB Destination, freight pre-paid, with all transportation and handling charges paid by the Contractor. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage shall remain the Contractor's until final inspection and acceptance when responsibility shall pass to the Purchasing Entity except as to latent defects, fraud and Contractor's warranty obligations. Any order for less than the specified amount is to be shipped with the freight prepaid and added as a separate item on the invoice. Any portion of an Order to be shipped without transportation charges that is back ordered shall be shipped without charge.
- b. Specific delivery instructions, including FOB Inside Delivery, will be noted on the order form or Purchase Order. Any damage to the building interior, scratched walls, damage to the freight elevator, etc., will be the responsibility of the Contractor. If damage does occur, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to promptly notify the Purchasing Entity placing the Order.
- c. All products must be delivered in the manufacturer's standard package. Costs shall include all packing and crating charges. Cases shall be of durable construction, good condition, properly labeled and suitable in every respect for storage and handling of contents. Each shipment shall be marked with the Purchasing Entity's Purchase Order number and other information sufficient for the Purchasing Entity to properly identify the shipment as outlined in the Participating Addendum of the Purchasing Entity.

19. Inspection and Acceptance.

- a. Where the Master Agreement, a Participating Addendum, or an Order does not otherwise specify a process for inspection and Acceptance, this section governs. This section is not intended to limit rights and remedies under the applicable commercial code.
- b. Contractor shall provide right of access to the Lead State, or to any other authorized agent or official of the Lead State or other Participating or Purchasing Entity, at reasonable times, in order to monitor and evaluate performance, compliance, and quality assurance requirements under this Master Agreement. Upon delivery, the Purchasing Entity shall have 30 days to inspect. Products that do not meet specifications may be rejected. Failure to reject upon receipt, however, does not relieve the contractor of liability for material (nonconformity that substantially impairs value) latent or hidden defects subsequently revealed when goods are put to use. Acceptance of such goods may be revoked in accordance with the provisions of the applicable commercial code, and the Contractor is liable for any resulting expense incurred by the Purchasing Entity related to the preparation and shipping of Product rejected and returned, or for which Acceptance is revoked.
- c. If any services do not conform to contract requirements, the Purchasing Entity may require the Contractor to perform the services again in conformity with contract requirements, at no increase in Order amount. When defects cannot be corrected by re-performance, the Purchasing Entity may require the Contractor to take necessary action to ensure that future performance conforms to contract requirements; and reduce the contract price to reflect the reduced value of services performed.
- d. The warranty period shall begin upon Acceptance. The Purchasing Entity will make every effort to notify the Contractor, within thirty (30) calendar days following delivery, of non-acceptance of a Product or completion of Service. In the event that the Contractor has not been notified within 30 calendar days from delivery of Product or completion of Service, the Product and Services will be deemed accepted on the 31st day after delivery of Product or completion of Services. This clause shall not be applicable, if acceptance testing and corresponding terms have been mutually agreed to by both parties in writing.
- e. Acceptance Testing may be explicitly set out in a Master Agreement to ensure conformance to an explicit standard of performance. Acceptance Testing means the process set forth in the Master Agreement for ascertaining that the Product meets the standard of performance prior to Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity. If Acceptance Testing is prescribed, this subsection applies to applicable Products purchased under this Master Agreement, including any additional, replacement, or substitute Product(s) and any Product(s)

which are modified by or with the written approval of Contractor after Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity. The Acceptance Testing period shall be thirty (30) calendar days or other time period identified in this Master Agreement or the Participating Addendum, starting from the day after the Product is delivered or, if installed, the day after the Product is installed and Contractor certifies that the Product is ready for Acceptance Testing. If the Product does not meet the standard of performance during the initial period of Acceptance Testing, Purchasing Entity may, at its discretion, continue Acceptance Testing on a day-to-day basis until the standard of performance is met. Upon rejection, the Contractor will have fifteen (15) calendar days to cure the standard of performance issue(s). If after the cure period, the Product still has not met the standard of performance, the Purchasing Entity may, at its option: (a) declare Contractor to be in breach and terminate the Order; (b) demand replacement Product from Contractor at no additional cost to Purchasing Entity; or, (c) continue the cure period for an additional time period agreed upon by the Purchasing Entity and the Contractor. Contractor shall pay all costs related to the preparation and shipping of Product returned pursuant to the section. No Product shall be deemed Accepted and no charges shall be paid until the standard of performance is met. The warranty period shall begin upon Acceptance.

20. Title of Product.

Upon Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity, Contractor shall convey to Purchasing Entity title to the Product free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, or other security interests. Transfer of title to the Product shall include a license to use any Embedded Software in the Product, as follows:

- a. To the extent that the Software sold under the Master Agreement is Commercial Off-the-Shelf Software, such Software is licensed, not sold, to the Purchasing Entity. The Contractor and its licensors reserve and retain all rights not expressly granted to the Purchasing Entity. No right, title or interest to any trademark, service mark, logo or trade name of Contractor or its licensors is granted to the Purchasing Entity. Licenses to such Software is provided in accordance with the terms of the manufacturer's written End User License Agreement tied to the product at the time of purchase.
- b. Contractor will perform services for the Purchasing Entity, subject to the following section pursuant to a fully executed Statement of Work entered into between the Purchasing Entity and the Contractor.
- c. The Contractor grants the Purchasing Entity a perpetual, non-exclusive, royalty free the license in Contractor's pre-existing intellectual property that is contained in the products, materials, equipment or services, excluding software, that are purchased through this Master Agreement.
- d. Any and all licensing, maintenance, or order specific agreements referenced within the terms and conditions of this Master Agreement are agreed to only to the extent that the terms do not conflict with the terms of the Participating Addendum or the terms of the Master Agreement as incorporated into the Participating Addendum, and to the extent the terms are not in conflict with the Participating Entities' applicable laws. In the event of a conflict in the terms and conditions, the conflict shall be resolved as detailed in the Order of Precedence defined herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, licensing, maintenance agreements, or order specific agreements may be further negotiated by the Contractor and the potential Purchasing Entity, provided the contractual documents are duly executed in writing.

21. Warranty.

The Contractor must ensure warranty service and maintenance for all equipment, including third party products provided. The Contractor must facilitate the Manufacturer or Publisher warranty and maintenance of third party products furnished through the Master Agreement. The Contractor shall provide the warranty service and maintenance for equipment and all peripherals on the Master Agreement.

22. System Failure or Damage.

In the event of system failure or damage caused by the Contractor or its Product, the Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to restore or assist in restoring the system to operational capacity. The Contractor shall be responsible under this provision to the extent a 'system' is defined at the time of the Order; otherwise the rights of the Purchasing Entity shall be governed by the Warranty.

23. Payment.

Payment after Acceptance is normally made within 30 days following the date the entire order is delivered or the date a correct invoice is received, whichever is later. After 45 days the Contractor may assess overdue account charges up to a maximum rate of one percent per month on the outstanding balance, unless a different late payment amount is specified in a Participating Addendum, Order, or otherwise prescribed by applicable law.

Payments will be remitted by mail or electronically. Payments may be made via a State or political subdivision

"Purchasing Card" with no additional charge.

Prices are exclusive of taxes, duties, and fees, unless otherwise quoted. If a withholding tax is required by law, the tax will be added and identified on the applicable invoice. All applicable taxes, duties, and fees must be identified on the quote.

24. Leasing or Alternative Financing Methods.

Lease purchase and term leases are allowable only for Purchasing Entities whose rules and regulations permit leasing of software. Individual Purchasing Entities may enter into a lease agreement for the products covered in this Master Agreement, if they have the legal authority to enter into these types of agreements without going through a competitive process and if the applicable PAs permit leasing. No lease agreements will be reviewed or evaluated as part of this RFP evaluation process.

25. Contract Provisions for Orders Utilizing Federal Funds.

Pursuant to Appendix II to 2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards, Orders funded with federal funds may have additional contractual requirements or certifications that must be satisfied at the time the Order is placed or upon delivery. These federal requirements may be proposed by Participating Entities in Participating Addenda and Purchasing Entities for incorporation in Orders placed under this Master Agreement.

26. Self Audit.

The Contractor must conduct at a minimum a quarterly self-audit, unless approved by the Lead State. The audit will sample a minimum of one tenth of one percent (.001) of orders with a maximum of 100 audits per quarter conducted. For example: Up to 1,000 sales = 1 audit; 10,000 sales = 10 audits; Up to 100,000 sales = 100 audits. This will be a random sample of orders and invoices and must include documentation of pricing. Summary findings must be reported to Lead State with actions to correct documented findings.

27. Assignment/Subcontracts.

- a. Contractor shall not assign, sell, transfer, subcontract or sublet rights, or delegate responsibilities under this Master Agreement, in whole or in part, without the prior written approval of the Lead State.
- b. The Lead State, or Participating Entity, shall not assign, delegate or otherwise transfer all or any part of this Master Agreement without prior written consent from Contractor, except for assignment or delegation to a Participating Entity State agency or eligible Purchasing Entity. The Lead State reserves the right to assign any rights or duties, including written assignment of contract administration duties to NASPO ValuePoint and other third parties.

28. Insurance.

- a. Unless otherwise agreed in a Participating Addendum, Contractor shall, during the term of this Master Agreement, maintain in full force and effect, the insurance described in this section. Contractor shall acquire such insurance from an insurance carrier or carriers licensed to conduct business in each Participating Entity's state and having a rating of A-, Class VII or better, in the most recently published edition of A.M. Best's Insurance Reports. Failure to buy and maintain the required insurance may result in this Master Agreement's termination or, at a Participating Entity's option, result in termination of its Participating Addendum.
- b. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis. The minimum acceptable limits shall be as indicated below:
 - 1. Commercial General Liability covering premises operations, independent contractors, products and completed operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury (including death), advertising liability, and property damage, with a limit of not less than \$1 million per occurrence/\$2 million general aggregate;
 - 2. Contractor must comply with any applicable State Workers Compensation or Employers Liability Insurance requirements.
- c. Contractor shall pay premiums on all insurance policies. Contractor shall provide notice to a Participating Entity who is a state within five (5) business days after Contractor is first aware of expiration, cancellation or nonrenewal of such policy or is first aware that cancellation is threatened or expiration, nonrenewal or expiration otherwise may occur.

- d. Prior to commencement of performance, Contractor shall provide to the Purchasing Entity with a certificate of insurance showing the Contractor's general liability insurance policy or other documentary evidence acceptable to the Lead State that (1) names the Participating States identified in the Request for Proposal as additional insureds, (2) provides that written notice of cancellation shall be delivered in accordance with the policy provisions, and (3) provides that the Contractor's liability insurance policy shall be primary, with any liability insurance of any Participating State as secondary and noncontributory. Unless otherwise agreed in any Participating Addendum, other state Participating Entities' rights and Contractor's obligations are the same as those specified in the first sentence of this subsection except the endorsement is provided to the applicable state.
- e. Contractor shall furnish to the Lead State copies of certificates of all required insurance in a form sufficient to show required coverage within thirty (30) calendar days of the execution of this Master Agreement and prior to performing any work. Copies of renewal certificates of all required insurance shall be furnished within thirty (30) days after any renewal date to the applicable state Participating Entity. Failure to provide evidence of coverage may, at the sole option of the Lead State, or any Participating Entity, result in this Master Agreement's termination or the termination of any Participating Addendum.
- f. Coverage and limits shall not limit Contractor's liability and obligations under this Master Agreement, any Participating Addendum, or any Purchase Order.

29. Administrative Fees.

- a. The Contractor shall pay to NASPO ValuePoint, or its assignee, a NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee of one-quarter of one percent (0.25% or 0.0025) no later than sixty (60) days following the end of each calendar quarter. The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee shall be submitted quarterly and is based on all sales of products and services under the Master Agreement (less any charges for taxes or shipping). The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee is not negotiable.
- b. The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee in this section shall be based on the gross amount of all sales (less any charges for taxes or shipping) at the adjusted prices (if any) in Participating Addenda.
- c. Additionally, some states may require an additional fee be paid directly to the state only on purchases made by Purchasing Entities within that state. For all such requests, the fee level, payment method and schedule for such reports and payments will be incorporated into the Participating Addendum that is made a part of the Master Agreement. The Purchasing Entity may allow the Contractor to adjust the Master Agreement pricing to account for these additional fees for purchases made by Purchasing Entities within the jurisdiction of the Participating Entity. All such agreements shall not affect the NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee percentage or the prices paid by the Purchasing Entities outside the jurisdiction of the state requesting the additional fee.

30. NASPO ValuePoint Summary and Detailed Usage Reports.

In addition to other reports that may be required by this RFP, the Contractor shall provide the following NASPO ValuePoint reports.

- a. Summary Sales Data. The Contractor shall submit quarterly sales reports directly to NASPO ValuePoint using the NASPO ValuePoint Quarterly Sales/Administrative Fee Reporting Tool found at http://calculator.naspovaluepoint.org. Any/all sales made under this Master Agreement shall be reported as cumulative totals by state. Even if Contractor experiences zero sales during a calendar quarter, a report is still required. Reports shall be due no later than thirty (30) days following the end of the calendar quarter (as specified in the reporting tool).
- b. Detailed Sales Data. Contractor shall also report detailed sales data by: (1) state; (2) entity/customer type, e.g. local government, higher education, K12, non-profit; (3) Purchasing Entity name; (4) Purchasing Entity bill-to and ship-to locations; (4) Purchasing Entity and Contractor Purchase Order identifier/number(s); (5) Purchase Order Type (e.g. sales order, credit, return, upgrade, determined by industry practices); (6) Purchase Order date; (7) Ship Date; (8) and line item description, including product number if used. The report shall be submitted in any form required by the RFP. Reports are due on a quarterly basis and must be received by the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Development Team no later than thirty (30) days after the end of the reporting period. Reports shall be delivered to the Lead State and to the NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Development Team electronically through a designated portal, email, CD-ROM, flash drive, ftp site, or other method as determined by the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint. Detailed sales data

reports shall include sales information for all sales under Participating Addenda executed under this Master Agreement. The format for the detailed sales data report is in shown in Section 6.G.

- c. Reportable sales for the summary sales data report and detailed sales data report includes sales to employees for personal use where authorized by the RFP and the Participating Addendum. Report data for employees should be limited to ONLY the state and entity they are participating under the authority of (state and agency, city, county, school district, etc.) and the amount of sales. No personal identification numbers, e.g. names, addresses, social security numbers or any other numerical identifier, may be submitted with any report.
- d. Contractor shall provide the NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Development Coordinator with an executive summary each quarter that includes, at a minimum, a list of states with an active Participating Addendum, states that Contractor is in negotiations with and any Participating Addendum roll out or implementation activities and issues. NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Development Coordinator and Contractor will determine the format and content of the executive summary. The executive summary is due thirty (30) days after the conclusion of each calendar quarter.
- e. Timely submission of these reports is a material requirement of the Master Agreement. The recipient of the reports shall have exclusive ownership of the media containing the reports. The Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint shall have a perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty free, transferable right to display, modify, copy, and otherwise use reports, data and information provided under this section.

31. NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Program Marketing, Training, and Performance Review.

- a. Contractor agrees to work cooperatively with NASPO ValuePoint personnel. Contractor agrees to present plans to NASPO ValuePoint for the education of Contractor's contract administrator(s) and sales/marketing workforce regarding the Master Agreement contract, including the competitive nature of NASPO ValuePoint procurements, the Master agreement and participating addendum process, and the manner in which qualifying entities can participate in the Master Agreement.
- b. Contractor agrees, as Participating Addendums become executed, if requested by ValuePoint personnel to provide plans to launch the program within the Participating Entity. Plans will include time frames to launch the agreement and confirmation that the Contractor's website has been updated to properly reflect the contract offer as available in the Participating Entity.
- c. Contractor agrees, absent anything to the contrary outlined in a Participating Addendum, to consider customer proposed terms and conditions, as deemed important to the customer, for possible inclusion into the customer agreement. Contractor will ensure that their sales force is aware of this contracting option.
- d. Contractor agrees to participate in an annual contract performance review at a location selected by the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint, which may include a discussion of marketing action plans, target strategies, marketing materials, as well as Contractor reporting and timeliness of payment of administration fees.
- e. Contractor acknowledges that the NASPO ValuePoint logos may not be used by Contractor in sales and marketing until a logo use agreement is executed with NASPO ValuePoint.
- f. The Lead State expects to evaluate the utilization of the Master Agreement at the annual performance review. Lead State may, in its discretion, cancel the Master Agreement pursuant to Section 2.B.42, or not exercise an option to renew, when Contractor utilization does not warrant further administration of the Master Agreement. The Lead State may exercise its right to not renew the Master Agreement if contractor fails to record or report revenue for three consecutive quarters, upon 60-calendar day written notice to the Contractor. Cancellation based on nonuse or under-utilization will not occur sooner than two years after award of the Master Agreement. This subsection does not limit the discretionary right of either the Lead State or Contractor to cancel the Master Agreement pursuant to Section 2.B.42 or to terminate for default pursuant to Section 2.B.44.
- g. Contractor agrees to notify the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint of any contractual most-favored-customer provisions in any Cooperative Purchasing Agreements that may affect the promotion of this Master Agreements or whose terms provide for adjustments to future rates or pricing based on rates, pricing in, or Orders from this master agreement. Upon request of the Lead State or NASPO ValuePoint, Contractor shall provide a copy of any such provisions. For the purposes of this paragraph, Cooperative Purchasing Agreement shall mean a cooperative purchasing program facilitating public procurement solicitations and

agreements using a lead agency model. This does not include contracts with any federal agency or any federal contract.

32. Right to Publish.

Throughout the duration of this Master Agreement, Contractor must secure from the Lead State prior approval for the public release of information that pertains to the potential work or activities covered by the Master Agreement. This limitation does not preclude publication about the award of the Master Agreement or marketing activities consistent with any proposed and accepted marketing plan. The Contractor shall not make any representations of NASPO ValuePoint's opinion or position as to the quality or effectiveness of the services that are the subject of this Master Agreement without prior written consent. Failure to adhere to this requirement may result in termination of the Master Agreement for cause.

33. Records Administration and Audit.

- a. The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to this Master Agreement and Orders placed by Purchasing Entities under it to the extent and in such detail as shall adequately reflect performance and administration of payments and fees. Contractor shall permit the Lead State, a Participating Entity, a Purchasing Entity, the federal government (including its grant awarding entities and the U.S. Comptroller General), and any other duly authorized agent of a governmental agency, to audit, inspect, examine, copy and transcribe Contractor's books, documents, papers and records directly pertinent to this Master Agreement or orders placed by a Purchasing Entity under it for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. This right shall survive for a period of six (6) years following termination of this Agreement or final payment for any order placed by a Purchasing Entity against this Agreement, whichever is later, or such longer period as is required by the Purchasing Entity's state statutes, to assure compliance with the terms hereof or to evaluate performance hereunder.
- b. Without limiting any other remedy available to any governmental entity, the Contractor shall reimburse the applicable Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity for any overpayments inconsistent with the terms of the Master Agreement or Orders or underpayment of fees found as a result of the examination of the Contractor's records.
- c. The rights and obligations herein exist in addition to any quality assurance obligation in the Master Agreement requiring the Contractor to self-audit contract obligations and that permits the Lead State to review compliance with those obligations.

34. Indemnification

a. **General Indemnity.** Contractor shall indemnify, defend (to the extent permitted by a state's Attorney General), and hold harmless an Indemnified Party from any claims or causes of action, including attorney's fees, to the extent arising from Contractor's intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions; actions that give rise to strict liability; and actions arising from breach of contract or warranty.

"Indemnified Party" means NASPO, NASPO ValuePoint, the Lead State, Participating Entities, and Purchasing Entities, along with their officers and employees.

The indemnification obligations of this section do not apply in the event the claim or cause of action is the result of the Indemnified Party's sole negligence. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Contractor may have for the Indemnified Party's failure to fulfill its obligation under this Contract.

- b. **Intellectual Property Indemnification.** Notwithstanding Section 2.B.34.a., the Contractor shall indemnify; defend, to the extent permitted by the Attorney General; and hold harmless the Purchasing Entity, at the Contractor's expense, from any action or claim brought against the Purchasing Entity to the extent that it is based on a claim that all or part of the works or documents infringe upon the intellectual property rights of others. The Contractor will be responsible for payment of any and all such claims, demands, obligations, liabilities, costs, and damages, including but not limited to, attorney fees.
 - 1. If such a claim or action arises, or in the Contractor's or the Purchasing Entity's opinion is likely to arise, the Contractor must, at the Purchasing Entity's discretion, either procure for the Purchasing Entity the right or license to use the intellectual property rights at issue or replace or modify the allegedly infringing works or documents as necessary and appropriate to obviate the infringement claim. This remedy of the Purchasing Entity will be in addition to and not exclusive of other remedies provided by law.

2. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor will not be liable under this section to the extent the infringement was caused by: 1) Contractor modification of the infringing material where such modification is made specifically for the Purchasing Entity, and where the Purchasing Entity has set forth the specific manner in which the modifications shall be made, as opposed to where the Purchasing Entity has requested modifications and given Contractor discretion over how to implement said modifications; 2) Purchasing Entity modification of the infringing material where such modification is not made under the direction of Contractor; 3) Use of the Deliverables or the System in a manner not contemplated by this Contract or as otherwise authorized by the Contractor in writing; 4) use of the Deliverables or the System in combination, operation, or use with other products in a manner other than as contemplated by the Contract or otherwise authorized by the Contractor in writing.

35. Limitations of Liability

- a. The Parties agree that neither Contractor nor the indemnified party shall be liable to each other, regardless of the form of action, for consequential, incidental, indirect, or special damages except any claim related to bodily injury or death; an unauthorized release or breach of not public data as set forth more fully in Minn. Ch. 13; or a claim or demand based on patent, copyright, or other intellectual property infringement.
- b. Contractor's liability is limited to the aggregate annual value of all purchases made by the Purchasing Entity during the contract year the cause of action arose. This limit on liability does not apply to claims for bodily injury or death or for intellectual property infringement.
- c. Contractor's obligations under this section shall not extend to any combination of the Product with any other product, system or method, unless the Product, system or method is:
 - 1. provided by the Contractor or the Contractor's subsidiaries or affiliates;
 - 2. specified by the Contractor to work with the Product; or
 - reasonably required, in order to use the Product in its intended manner, and the infringement could not
 have been avoided by substituting another reasonably available product, system or method capable of
 performing the same function; or
 - 4. It would be reasonably expected to use the Product in combination with such product, system or method.

36. License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property.

Contractor grants to the Purchasing Entity a nonexclusive, perpetual, royalty-free, irrevocable, license to use, publish, translate, reproduce, transfer with any sale of tangible media or Product, perform, display, and dispose of the Intellectual Property, and its derivatives, used or delivered under this Master Agreement, but not created under it ("Pre-existing Intellectual Property"). The Contractor shall be responsible for ensuring that this license is consistent with any third party rights in the Pre-existing Intellectual Property.

37. Assignment of Antitrust Rights.

Contractor irrevocably assigns to a Participating Entity who is a state any claim for relief or cause of action which the Contractor now has or which may accrue to the Contractor in the future by reason of any violation of state or federal antitrust laws (15 U.S.C. § 1-15 or a Participating Entity's state antitrust provisions), as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time, in connection with any goods or services provided in that state for the purpose of carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum, including, at the Participating Entity's option, the right to control any such litigation on such claim for relief or cause of action.

38. **Debarment.**

The Contractor certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction (contract) by any governmental department or agency. This certification represents a recurring certification made at the time any Order is placed under this Master Agreement. If the Contractor cannot certify this statement, attach a written explanation for review by the Lead State.

39. Governing Law and Venue.

a. The construction and effect of the Master Agreement after award shall be governed by the law of the state serving as Lead State. The construction and effect of any Participating Addendum or Order against the

- Master Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Participating Entity's or Purchasing Entity's State.
- b. Venue for any claim, dispute or action concerning the terms of the Master Agreement shall be in the state serving as Lead State. Venue for any claim, dispute, or action concerning any Order placed against the Master Agreement or the effect of a Participating Addendum shall be in the Purchasing Entity's State.
- c. If a claim is brought in a federal forum, then it must be brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for (in decreasing order of priority): the Lead State for claims relating to contract performance or administration if the Lead State is a party; a Participating State if a named party; the state where the Participating Entity or Purchasing Entity is located if either is a named party.

40. Confidentiality, Non-Disclosure, and Injunctive Relief.

- a. Confidentiality. Contractor acknowledges that it and its employees or agents may, in the course of providing a Product under this Master Agreement, be exposed to or acquire information that is confidential to Purchasing Entity or Purchasing Entity's clients. Any and all information of any form that is marked as confidential or would by its nature be deemed confidential obtained by Contractor or its employees or agents in the performance of this Master Agreement, including, but not necessarily limited to (1) any Purchasing Entity's records, (2) personnel records, and (3) information concerning individuals, is confidential information of Purchasing Entity ("Confidential Information"). Any reports or other documents or items (including software) that result from the use of the Confidential Information by Contractor shall be treated in the same manner as the Confidential Information. Confidential Information does not include information that (1) is or becomes (other than by disclosure by Contractor) publicly known; (2) is furnished by Purchasing Entity to others without restrictions similar to those imposed by this Master Agreement; (3) is rightfully in Contractor's possession without the obligation of nondisclosure prior to the time of its disclosure under this Master Agreement; (4) is obtained from a source other than Purchasing Entity without the obligation of confidentiality, (5) is disclosed with the written consent of Purchasing Entity or; (6) is independently developed by employees, agents or subcontractors of Contractor who can be shown to have had no access to the Confidential Information.
- b. Non-Disclosure. Contractor shall hold Confidential Information in confidence, using at least the industry standard of confidentiality, and shall not copy, reproduce, sell, assign, license, market, transfer or otherwise dispose of, give, or disclose Confidential Information to third parties or use Confidential Information for any purposes whatsoever other than what is necessary to the performance of Orders placed under this Master Agreement. Contractor shall advise each of its employees and agents of their obligations to keep Confidential Information confidential. Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Purchasing Entity in identifying and preventing any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, Contractor shall advise Purchasing Entity, applicable Participating Entity, and the Lead State immediately if Contractor learns or has reason to believe that any person who has had access to Confidential Information has violated or intends to violate the terms of this Master Agreement, and Contractor shall at its expense cooperate with Purchasing Entity in seeking injunctive or other equitable relief in the name of Purchasing Entity or Contractor against any such person. Except as directed by Purchasing Entity, Contractor will not at any time during or after the term of this Master Agreement disclose, directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information to any person, except in accordance with this Master Agreement, and that upon termination of this Master Agreement or at Purchasing Entity's request, Contractor shall turn over to Purchasing Entity all documents, papers, and other matter in Contractor's possession that embody Confidential Information. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may keep one copy of such Confidential Information necessary for quality assurance, audits and evidence of the performance of this Master Agreement.
- c. Injunctive Relief. Contractor acknowledges that breach of this section, including disclosure of any Confidential Information, will cause irreparable injury to Purchasing Entity that is inadequately compensable in damages. Accordingly, Purchasing Entity may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of the foregoing undertakings, in addition to any other legal remedies that may be available. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are necessary for the protection of the legitimate business interests of Purchasing Entity and are reasonable in scope and content.
- d. Purchasing Entity Law. These provisions shall be applicable only to extent they are not in conflict with the applicable public disclosure laws of any Purchasing Entity.
- e. The rights granted Purchasing Entities and Contractor obligations under this section shall also extend to the cooperative's Confidential Information, defined to include Participating Addenda, as well as Orders or

transaction data relating to Orders under this Master Agreement that identify the entity/customer, Order dates, line item descriptions and volumes, and prices/rates. This provision does not apply to disclosure to the Lead State, a Participating State, or any governmental entity exercising an audit, inspection, or examination pursuant to Section 2.B.33. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall notify the Lead State of the identify of any entity seeking access to the Confidential Information described in this subsection.

41. Public Information.

This Master Agreement and all related documents are subject to disclosure pursuant to the Purchasing Entity's public information laws.

42. Cancellation.

Unless otherwise set forth in this Master Agreement, this Master Agreement may be canceled by either party upon 60 days written notice prior to the effective date of the cancellation. Further, any Participating Entity may cancel its participation upon 30 days written notice, unless otherwise stated in the Participating Addendum. Cancellation may be in whole or in part. Any cancellation under this provision shall not affect the rights and obligations attending orders outstanding at the time of cancellation, including any right of a Purchasing Entity to indemnification by the Contractor, rights of payment for Products delivered and accepted, rights attending any warranty or default in performance in association with any Order, and requirements for records administration and audit. Cancellation of the Master Agreement due to Contractor default may be immediate as set forth in Section 2.B.44.

43. Force Majeure.

Neither party to this Master Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, unusually severe weather, other acts of God, or war which are beyond that party's reasonable control. The Lead State may terminate this Master Agreement after determining such delay or default will reasonably prevent successful performance of the Master Agreement.

44. Defaults and Remedies.

- a. The occurrence of any of the following events shall be an event of default under this Master Agreement:
 - 1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements; or
 - 2. A material breach of this Master Agreement; or
 - 3. Any certification, representation or warranty by Contractor in response to the RFP or in this Master Agreement that proves to be untrue or materially misleading; or
 - 4. Institution of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, court-ordered reorganization or similar law, by or against Contractor, or the appointment of a receiver or similar officer for Contractor or any of its property, which is not vacated or fully stayed within thirty (30) calendar days after the institution or occurrence thereof: or
 - 5. Any default specified in another section of this Master Agreement.
- b. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, except for material breach, the Lead State shall issue a written notice of default, identifying the nature of the default, and providing a period of 30 calendar days in which Contractor shall have an opportunity to cure the default. The Lead State shall not be required to provide advance written notice or a cure period and may immediately terminate this Master Agreement in whole or in part if the Lead State, in its sole discretion, determines that it is reasonably necessary to preserve public safety or prevent immediate public crisis. Time allowed for cure shall not diminish or eliminate Contractor's liability for damages, including liquidated damages to the extent provided for under this Master Agreement. The Lead State may immediately terminate this Master Agreement upon material breach of the Master Agreement by Contractor.
- c. If Contractor is afforded an opportunity to cure and fails to cure the default within the period specified in the written notice of default, Contractor shall be in breach of its obligations under this Master Agreement and the Lead State shall have the right to exercise any or all of the following remedies:
 - 1. Exercise any remedy provided by law; and
 - 2. Terminate this Master Agreement and any related contracts or portions thereof; and
 - 3. Impose liquidated damages as provided in this Master Agreement; and
 - 4. Suspend Contractor from being able to respond to future bid solicitations; and
 - 5. Suspend Contractor's performance; and
 - 6. Withhold payment until the default is remedied.

d. Unless otherwise specified in the Participating Addendum, in the event of a default under a Participating Addendum, a Participating Entity shall provide a written notice of default as described in this section and shall have all of the rights and remedies under this paragraph regarding its participation in the Master Agreement, in addition to those set forth in its Participating Addendum. Unless otherwise specified in a Purchase Order, a Purchasing Entity shall provide written notice of default as described in this section and have all of the rights and remedies under this paragraph and any applicable Participating Addendum with respect to an Order placed by the Purchasing Entity. Nothing in these Master Agreement Terms and Conditions shall be construed to limit the rights and remedies available to a Purchasing Entity under the applicable commercial code.

45. Waiver of Breach.

Failure of the Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity to declare a default or enforce any rights and remedies shall not operate as a waiver under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum. Any waiver by the Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity must be in writing. Waiver by the Lead State or Participating Entity of any default, right or remedy under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum, or by Purchasing Entity with respect to any Purchase Order, or breach of any terms or requirements of this Master Agreement, a Participating Addendum, or Purchase Order shall not be construed or operate as a waiver of any subsequent default or breach of such term or requirement, or of any other term or requirement under this Master Agreement, Participating Addendum, or Purchase Order.

46. Notices.

If one party is required to give notice to the other under the Master Agreement, such notice shall be in writing and shall be effective upon receipt. Delivery may be by certified United States mail or by hand, in which case a signed receipt shall be obtained. A facsimile or electronic transmission shall constitute sufficient notice, provided the receipt of the transmission is confirmed by the receiving party. Either party must notify the other of a change in address for notification purposes. All notices to the Lead State shall be addressed as follows:

Andy Doran, IT Acquisitions Supervisor 112 Administration Bldg. 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 andy.doran@state.mn.us

47. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.

In no event shall this Master Agreement, any Participating Addendum or any contract or any Purchase Order issued thereunder, or any act of the Lead State, a Participating Entity, or a Purchasing Entity be a waiver of any form of defense or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.

This section applies to a claim brought against the Participating Entities who are states only to the extent Congress has appropriately abrogated the state's sovereign immunity and is not consent by the state to be sued in federal court. This section is also not a waiver by the state of any form of immunity, including but not limited to sovereign immunity and immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

C. MINNESOTA TERMS AND CONDITIONS

1. Change Requests.

The Lead State reserves the right to request, during the term of the Master Agreement, changes to the products offered within the Band(s). Products introduced during the term of the Master Agreement shall go through a formal review process. The process for updating the products offered within a Band is outline in Section 2.C.2. The Contractor shall evaluate and recommend products for which agencies have an expressed need. The Lead State shall require the Contractor to provide a summary of its research of those products being recommended for inclusion in the Master Agreement as well as defining how adding the product will enhance the Master Agreement. The Lead State may request that products, other than those recommended, are added to the Master Agreement.

In the event that the Lead State desires to add new products and services that are not included in the original Master Agreement, the Lead State requires that independent manufacturers and resellers cooperate with the already established Contractor in order to meet the Lead State's requirements. Evidence of the need to add products or services should be demonstrated to the Lead State. The Master Agreement shall be modified via supplement or amendment. The Lead State will negotiate the inclusion of the products and services with the Contractor. No products or services will be added to the Master Agreement without the Lead State's prior approval.

2. Product and Service Schedule (PSS).

a. Creating the Product and Service Schedule (PSS). Contractor will use the attached sample PSS to create and maintain a complete listing of all products and services offered under the Master Agreement. The PSS must conform to the contracted minimum discounts. Contractor may create and maintain a separate PSS for a Participating Entity based on the requirements and restrictions of the Participating Entity.

Contractors are encouraged to provide remote learning bundles for K-12 Education. These bundles can be included in the response to the PSS.

b. Maintaining the PSS.

- In General. Throughout the term of the Master Agreement, on a quarterly basis, Contractor may update
 the PSS to make model changes, add new products or services, or remove obsolete or discontinued
 products or services. Any updates to the PSS must conform to the Master Agreement requirements,
 including the scope of the Master Agreement and contracted minimum discounts.
- 2) <u>Process</u>. Contractor must provide notification to the Lead State of any changes to their PSS using the attached Action Request Form (ARF).
 - (a) The Lead State does not need to approve Contractor's request to make model changes, add their own manufactured products, or remove discontinued or obsolete products or services, and Contractor does not need the Lead State's approval prior to posting an updated PSS.
 - (b) The Lead State must approve Contractor's request to add new third party manufacturers to Contractor's PSS. If the proposed third-party manufacturer holds a NASPO Master Agreement for Computer Equipment, Contractor must obtain written authorization from that manufacturer. Contractor must have the Lead State's approval prior to posting the updated PSS.
 - (c) Contractor must maintain a historic record of all past PSSs on their dedicated NASPO ValuePoint website.
 - (d) Pursuant to the audit provisions of the Master Agreement, upon the request of NASPO ValuePoint, the Lead State, or a Participating Entity, Contractor must provide an historic version of any Baseline Price List.

3. Purchase Orders.

There will be no minimum order requirements or charges to process an individual purchase order. The Participating Addendum number and the PO number must appear on all documents (e.g., invoices, packing slips, etc.). The Ordering Entity's purchase order constitutes a binding contract.

4. Risk of Loss or Damage.

The Purchasing Entity is relieved of all risks of loss or damage to the goods or equipment during periods of transportation, and installation by the Contractor and in the possession of the Contractor or their authorized agent.

5. Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard and Cardholder Information Security.

Contractor assures all of its Network Components, Applications, Servers, and Subcontractors (if any) comply with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard ("PCIDSS"). "Network Components" shall include, but are not limited to, Contractor's firewalls, switches, routers, wireless access points, network appliances, and other security appliances; "Applications" shall include, but are not limited to, all purchased and custom external (web) applications. "Servers" shall include, but are not limited to, all of Contractor's web, database, authentication, DNS, mail, proxy, and NTP servers. "Cardholder Data" shall mean any personally identifiable data associated with a cardholder, including, by way of example and without limitation, a cardholder's account number, expiration date, name, address, social security number, or telephone number.

Subcontractors (if any) must be responsible for the security of all Cardholder Data in its possession; and will only use Cardholder Data for assisting cardholders in completing a transaction, providing fraud control services, or for other uses specifically required by law. Contractor must have a business continuity program which conforms to PCIDSS to protect Cardholder Data in the event of a major disruption in its operations or in the event of any other disaster or system failure which may occur to operations; will continue to safeguard Cardholder Data in the event this Agreement terminates or expires; and ensure that a representative or agent of the payment card industry and a representative or agent of the Purchasing Entity shall be provided with full cooperation and access to conduct a thorough security review of Contractor's operations, systems, records, procedures, rules, and practices in the event of a security intrusion in order to validate compliance with PCIDSS.

6. Foreign Outsourcing of Work.

Upon request, the Contractor is required to provide information regarding the location of where services, data storage, and location of data processing under the Master Agreement will be performed.

7. State Audits (Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5).

The books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the Contractor or other party, that are relevant to the Master Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the contracting agency and either the Lead State's Legislative Auditor or State Auditor as appropriate for a minimum of six years after the end of the Master Agreement or transaction. The Lead State reserves the right to authorize delegate(s) to audit this Master Agreement and transactions.

8. Certification of Nondiscrimination (in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 16C.053).

If the value of this Contract, including all extensions, is \$50,000 or more, Contractor certifies it does not engage in and has no present plans to engage in discrimination against Israel, or against persons or entities doing business in Israel, when making decisions related to the operation of the contractor's business. For purposes of this section, "discrimination" includes but is not limited to engaging in refusals to deal, terminating business activities, or other actions that are intended to limit commercial relations with Israel, or persons or entities doing business in Israel, when such actions are taken in a manner that in any way discriminates on the basis of nationality or national origin and is not based on a valid business reason.

9. Human Rights/Affirmative Action.

The Lead State requires affirmative action compliance by its Contractors in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600.

a. Covered contracts and Contractors. One-time acquisitions, or a contract for a predetermined amount of goods and/or services, where the amount of your response is in excess of \$100,000 requires completion of the Affirmative Action Certification page. If the solicitation is for a contract for an indeterminate amount of goods and/or services, and the State estimated total value of the contract exceeds \$100,000 whether it will be a multiple award contract or not, you must complete the Affirmative Action Certification page. If the contract dollar amount or the State estimated total contract amount exceeds \$100,000 and the Contractor employed more than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months in Minnesota or in the state where it has its principal place of business, the Contractor must comply with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600. A Contractor covered by Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600 that had more than 40 full-time employees within Minnesota on a single working day during the previous 12 months must have a certificate of compliance issued by the commissioner of the Department of Human Rights (certificate of compliance). A Contractor covered by Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 that did not have more than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months within Minnesota but that did have more than 40 full-time

- employees in the state where it has its principal place of business and that does not have a certificate of compliance must certify that it is in compliance with federal affirmative action requirements.
- b. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 requires the Contractor to have an affirmative action plan for the employment of minority persons, women, and qualified disabled individuals approved by the commissioner of the Department of Human Rights (commissioner) as indicated by a certificate of compliance. Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 addresses suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance and contract consequences in that event. A contract awarded without a certificate of compliance may be voided.
- c. Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a Contractor's compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract consequences for noncompliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600 including, but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and parts 5000.3552-5000.3559.
- d. Disabled Workers. Minn. R. 5000.3550 provides the Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action requirements for disabled workers.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR DISABLED WORKERS

- (a) The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- (b) The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.
- (c) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.
- (d) The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the rights of applicants and employees.
- (e) The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 of the Minnesota Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment physically and mentally disabled persons.
- e. Consequences. The consequences of a Contractor's failure to implement its affirmative action plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance by the commissioner, refusal by the commissioner to approve subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of the Contract by the commissioner or the State.
- f. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 and Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for noncompliance. It is agreed between the parties that Minn. Stat. 363.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600 are incorporated into any contract between these parties based upon this specification or any modification of it. A copy of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600 are available upon request from the contracting agency.

10. Equal Pay Certification.

If required by Minn. Stat. §363A.44, the Contractor must have a current Equal Pay Certificate prior to Contract execution. If Contractor's Equal Pay Certificate expires during the term of this Contract, Contractor must promptly re-apply for an Equal Pay Certificate with the Minnesota Department of Human Rights and notify the State's Authorized Representative once the Contractor has received the renewed Equal Pay Certificate. If Contractor claims to be exempt, the Lead State may require Contractor to verify its exempt status.

11. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Products provided under the Master Agreement must comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Contractor's catalog and other marketing materials utilized to offer products under the Master Agreement must state when a product is not in compliance. If any descriptive marketing materials are silent as to these requirements, the Contractor agrees that the customer can assume the product meets or exceeds the ADA requirements.

12. Nonvisual Access Standards.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.145, the Contractor shall comply with the following nonvisual technology access standards:

- a. That the effective interactive control and use of the technology, including the operating system applications programs, prompts, and format of the data presented, are readily achievable by nonvisual means;
- b. That the nonvisual access technology must be compatible with information technology used by other individuals with whom the blind or visually impaired individual must interact;
- c. That nonvisual access technology must be integrated into networks used to share communications among employees, program participants, and the public; and
- d. That the nonvisual access technology must have the capability of providing equivalent access by nonvisual means to telecommunications or other interconnected network services used by persons who are not blind or visually impaired.

These standards do not require the installation of software or peripheral devices used for nonvisual access when the information technology is being used by individuals who are not blind or visually impaired.

13. Accessibility Standards.

Contractor acknowledges and is fully aware that the Lead State (Executive branch state agencies) has developed IT Accessibility Standard effective September 1, 2010. The standard entails, in part, the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) and Section 508 which can be viewed at: https://mn.gov/mnit/government/policies/accessibility/.

The Standards apply to web sites, software applications, electronic reports and output documentation, training delivered in electronic formats (including, but not limited to, documents, videos, and webinars), among others. As upgrades are made to the software, products, or subscriptions available through this Contract, the Contractor agrees to develop functionality which supports accessibility. If any issues arise due to nonconformance with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards, the Contractor agrees to provide alternative solutions upon request at no additional charge to the State.

When updates or upgrades are made to the products or services available through this Contract, the Contractor agrees to document how the changes will impact or improve the product's or service's accessibility and usability. This documentation, upon request, must be provided to the Lead State in advance of the change, occurring within an agreed upon timeframe sufficient for the state to review the changes and either approve them or request a remediation plan from the Contractor. Contractor warrants that its Products comply with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lead State against any claims related to non-compliance of Contractor's Product with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards. If agreed-upon updates fail to improve the product or service's accessibility or usability as planned, the failure to comply with this requirement may be cause for contract cancellation or for the Lead State to consider the Contractor in default.

14. Conflict Minerals.

Contractor agrees to provide information upon request regarding adherence to the Conflict Minerals section of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Section 1502). See:

http://beta.congress.gov/111/bills/hr4173/111hr4173enr.pdf#page=838

http://www.sec.gov/news/press/2012/2012-163.htm

15. Hazardous Substances.

To the extent that the goods to be supplied by the Contractor contain or may create hazardous substances, harmful physical agents or infectious agents as set forth in applicable state and federal laws and regulations, the Contractor must provide Material Safety Data Sheets regarding those substances. A copy must be included with each delivery.

16. Copyrighted Material Waiver.

The Lead State reserves the right to use, reproduce and publish proposals in any manner necessary for State agencies and local units of government to access the responses, including but not limited to photocopying, State Intranet/Internet postings, broadcast faxing, and direct mailing. In the event that the response contains copyrighted or trademarked materials, it is the responder's responsibility to obtain permission for the Lead State to reproduce and publish the information, regardless of whether the responder is the manufacturer or reseller of the products listed in the materials. By signing its response, the responder certifies that it has obtained all necessary approvals for the reproduction and distribution of the contents of its response and agrees to indemnify, protect, save and hold the Lead State, its representatives and employees harmless from any and all claims arising from the violation of this section and agrees to pay all legal fees incurred by the Lead State in the defense of any such action.

17. Publicity.

The Contractor shall make no representations of the State's opinion or position as to the quality or effectiveness of the products or services that are the subject of the Master Agreement without the prior written consent of the State's Assistant Director or designee of Office of State Procurement. Representations include any publicity, including but not limited to advertisements, notices, press releases, reports, signs, and similar public notices.

18. Performance While Dispute is Pending.

Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the parties shall continue without delay to carry out all of their responsibilities under the Master Agreement that are not affected by the dispute. If a party fails to continue without delay to perform its responsibilities under the Master Agreement, in the accomplishment of all undisputed work, any additional cost incurred by the other parties as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the responsible party.

19. Organizational Conflicts of Interest.

An organizational conflict of interest exists when, because of existing or planned activities or because of relationships with other persons:

- a. the Contractor is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the State;
- b. the Contractor's objectivity in performing the work is or might be otherwise impaired; or
- c. the Contractor has an unfair competitive advantage.

The Contractor agrees that if an organizational conflict of interest is discovered after award, an immediate and full disclosure in writing shall be made to the Assistant Director of the Lead State's Department of Administration's Office of State Procurement that shall include a description of the action the Contractor has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such conflicts. If an organizational conflict of interest is determined to exist, the Lead State may, at its discretion, cancel the Master Agreement. In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest prior to the award of the Master Agreement and did not disclose the conflict to the Master Agreement Administrator, the Lead State may terminate the Master Agreement for default. The provisions of this clause shall be included in all subcontracts for work to be performed, and the terms "Contract," "Contractor," "Master Agreement", "Master Agreement Administrator" and "Contract Administrator" modified appropriately to preserve the State's rights.

20. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion

- a. Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions. Instructions for certification:
 - 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant [responder] is providing the certification set out below.
 - 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal

- government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and debarment.
- The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this
 proposal [response] is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its
 certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed
 circumstances.
- 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverages section of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
- 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this response that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction [subcontract equal to or exceeding \$25,000] with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.
- 6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled, "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the list of parties excluded from federal procurement and nonprocurement programs.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and debarment.
- b. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions.
 - 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
 - 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

21. Government Data Practices.

The Contractor and the Lead State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, (and where applicable, if the Lead State contracting party is part of the judicial branch, with the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch promulgated by the Minnesota Supreme Court as the same may be amended from time to time) as it applies to all data provided by the Lead State to the Contractor and all data provided to the Lead State by the Contractor. In addition, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by the Contractor in accordance with the Master Agreement that is private, nonpublic, protected nonpublic, or confidential as defined by the

Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Ch. 13 (and where applicable, that is not accessible to the public under the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch).

In the event the Contractor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Contractor must immediately notify the Lead State. The Lead State will give the Contractor instructions concerning the release of the data to the requesting party before the data is released. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08, apply to the release of the data by either the Contractor or the Lead State.

The Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold the Lead State, its agent and employees, harmless from all claims arising out of, resulting from, or in any manner attributable to any violation of any provision of the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act (and where applicable, the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch), including legal fees and disbursements paid or incurred to enforce this provision of the Master Agreement. In the event that the Contractor subcontracts any or all of the work to be performed under the Master Agreement, the Contractor shall retain responsibility under the terms of this article for such work.

22. Survivability.

Certain rights and duties of the Lead State and Contractor will survive the expiration or cancellation of the RFP and resulting Master Agreement. These rights and duties include but are not limited to paragraphs: Indemnification; Limitations of Liability; State Audits; Government Data Practices; Governing Law and Venue; Publicity; and Administrative Fees.

23. Severability.

If any provision of the Master Agreement, including items incorporated by reference, is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both the Lead State and the Contractor shall be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the remainder of the Master Agreement is capable of performance it shall not be affected by such declaration or finding and shall be fully performed.

SECTION 3: RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS

A Word version of the Section 3, Response Requirements is available at: http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/doc/Section3 Response Requirements.docx

- A. Product Deployment
- B. Ability to Perform
- C. Environmental
- D. Business Capabilities
- E. Customer Support

A. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: PRODUCT DEPLOYMENT

This Section requires a Narrative Response. In the Narrative Response, Responder should clearly identify the applicable Section. The Narrative Response must fully describe and provide detail about how the proposal satisfies each requirement. The Lead State reserves the right to only evaluate information explicitly included in these forms in the evaluation of the Section to which it applies.

1.	Bands Offered. Responder must indicate which Bands they are proposing products in:
	☐ Band 1: Personal Computing Devices – Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
	☐ Band 2: Personal Computing Devices – Non-Windows Operating System: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
	□ Band 3: Servers and Storage

- 2. **Product Deployment.** Responder must provide a high-level description of their proposed product's deployment in the following industries in the United States. The complete description should not exceed one page per industry, per Band.
 - a. State and local government;
 - b. K-12 Education;
 - c. Higher Education; and
 - d. Federal government.

B. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: ABILITY TO PERFORM

This Section requires a Narrative Response. In the Narrative Response, Responder should clearly identify the applicable Section. The Narrative Response must fully describe and provide detail about how the proposal satisfies each requirement. The Lead State reserves the right to only evaluate information explicitly included in these forms in the evaluation of the Section to which it applies.

Portions of this section, as negotiated, will become terms in the Master Agreement.

1. Contractor Verification. Contractor must be a manufacturer of a Product in the Band(s) it is awarded a Master Agreement. "Re-branding" a product that is manufactured by another company does not meet this requirement. If the Contractor ceases production, sells or assigns their manufacturing to another vendor, or otherwise no longer manufactures a product during the life of the Master Agreement the Lead State reserves the right to terminate the Contractor's Master Agreement.

Responder must verify that it is a manufacturer of at least one product in each Band proposed. Responder must determine the best way to provide this verification, but are encouraged to be brief. The Lead State reserves the right to request additional verification as needed.

Responders must provide a brief description of the products proposed for each Band that are manufactured by the Responder. This description should include the approximate number and type (desktop, laptop, accessory, etc.) of the offered products. This description should not exceed one page per Band.

- 2. Company Capacity and Capabilities. Responder must provide a high-level description of their company detailing how they will support this Master Agreement in no more than one page per section below:
 - a. Facilities. Responder must indicate which facilities have been ISO 14001 certified.
 - b. Manufacturing Process. Responder must describe, at a high level, their manufacturing process.
 - c. Personnel. Responder must include documentation that indicates the number and type of sales, support personnel, or other resources that are employed to service purchase orders or equipment for non-federal governmental customers.

- d. Organization. Responder must include a brief overview describing how the Master Agreement will be supported from senior management down to field technicians, including the use of any wholly owned subsidiaries or subcontractors.
- e. Production Viability. The average sales per Contractor under the Contracts in calendar year 2019 was approximately \$78,000,000. Briefly describe your company's capacity to meet this level of sales volume, including any previous publicly-available sales numbers and publicly-announced future plans. A responder without sufficient capacity should describe the extent of their current capacity and describe their plans of increasing that capacity over the life of the contract.
- 3. Equipment and Services Overview. Describe the ability to provide computer equipment and the services related to supporting the equipment. Include an overview of how the equipment is delivered and serviced. A list of potential services is below. Responder must provide a list and a brief description of the services offered under each Band. The lists and descriptions must be separated out by Band and must be two pages or less per Band. Not all services may be applicable to each Band.
 - a. Warranty Break Fix Non-Warranty
 - b. Standard non-customized training
 - c. Installation/de-installation
 - d. Support
 - e. Migration
 - f. Asset tagging
 - g. Staging/deployment
 - h. Image loading
 - i. Image consulting
 - j. System and server configuration
 - k. Rack and stack configuration
 - I. Maintenance
 - m. Custom service solutions
 - n. Asset management
 - o. Recycling/disposal
 - p. Training and certification
 - q. Other services available as allowed in the RFP provide list with your response
- 4. Warranty and Maintenance. The Contractor must ensure warranty service and maintenance for all equipment, including third party products provided. The Contractor must facilitate the Manufacturer or Publisher warranty and maintenance of third party products furnished through the Master Agreement. The Contractor shall provide the warranty service and maintenance for equipment and all peripherals on the Master Agreement.
 - a. Describe in detail how Responder will secure warranties for all products and services.
 - b. Describe proposed warranty service and maintenance.
- 5. Website. Contractor must develop and maintain a URL to a web site specific to the awarded Master Agreement. Contractor's Master Agreement website must offer twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week availability, except for regularly scheduled maintenance times. The website must be separate from the Contractor's commercially available (i.e., public) on-line catalog and ordering systems. No other items or pricing may be shown on the website without written approval from the Lead State

Mandatory Requirements:

- Designated Baseline Price List(s) (e.g., MSRP, List, or Education)
- Product and Service Schedule (PSS)
- Product specifications, pricing, and configuration aids for the major product categories proposed that can be used to obtain an on-line quote,
- Service options and service agreements available on the contract. Please refer to Section 1.G.b.
- Contact information for order placement, service concerns (warranty and maintenance), problem reporting, and billing concerns
- Sales representatives for participating entities

Desirable Requirements:

- Purchase order tracking
- Links to environmental certification, including but not limited to take-back/recycling programs, EPEAT, Energy Star, etc.
- Information on accessibility and accessible products
- Signed Master Agreement
- Online ordering capability with the ability to remember multiple ship to locations (if applicable to product)

Within 30 calendar days of the notice of intent to award a Master Agreement, Contractor must provide a sample URL of the Master Agreement webpage to the Lead State for review and approval. The Lead State will review and determine acceptability of the website format and data. If the information is determined to be unacceptable or incorrect, the Contractor will have 15 calendar days to provide revisions to the Lead State. After the Lead State approves the website, Contractor may not make material changes to the website without notifying the Lead State through the ARF process and receiving written approval of the changes.

- a. Describe the proposed website, including all mandatory and desirable capabilities being offered. Responses to this section should be no more than two pages. Screenshots that will help enhance the response are allowed, and do not count toward the page limit.
- b. Describe your commitment to maintaining a website in adherence to the website requirements. Responses to this section should be no more than one page.

If Responder has an example URL of a current website to demonstrate their capabilities, that may be included in the response to this Section. If elements of the website require a secure log-in, Responder must provide listing of items that would require a secure sign-in option (e.g. reprinting of invoices, or purchase order tracking).

The WCAG requested in Section 6.B applies to Responder's website to be offered under the Master Agreement.

- **6. Baseline Price List Verification.** Describe how the designated Baseline Price List(s) will be accessed and verified by potential end users, contract administrators, etc.
- 7. Implementation Plan and Marketing Methodology. In two pages or less, describe a thorough implementation rollout plan for the first year as part of the proposal. At a minimum, the response should include a description of the methodology (mailings, meetings, seminars, press releases, personal contacts) proposed, estimated dates and location of activities, including tasks to be performed and the timeframe for the completion of each task. Marketing materials are subject to approval by NASPO ValuePoint, the Lead State, and any relevant Participating Entity. Responder is reminded that after a statewide Participating Addendum is in place, nearly every governmental entity, public school, and university within the state may use the Contractor's Master Agreement.

C. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: ENVIRONMENTAL

- 1. Environmentally Preferable Purchasing Commitment. Explain your commitment to environmentally preferable purchases specifically in the areas below.
 - a. **End of life management.** Include detailed information regarding takeback, recycling and trade in programs available. Any available programs for cords and chargers should be included in this information. Responses should be no more than two pages.
 - b. **Environmental solutions.** Provide detail on how additional value is provided regarding environmental solutions such as selling refurbished/remanufactured toner and equipment. Outline how your company is willing to work with the Lead State and the manufacturers to minimize impact on the environment. Specifically address the following areas in one page or less total:

<u>Materials</u> – manufacturer declaration on reduction/elimination of hazardous materials (e.g., mercury and lead).

<u>Product</u> – in general how does Responder identify product longevity, percent of packaging and packing materials that are recycled/reusable, availability of service and replacement parts for life extension, cost, and complication to upgrade.

<u>Corporate</u> – detail if Responder has in place programs for sale/procurement of refurbished/remanufactured products. Responder must agree that all refurbished products proposed through this Master Agreement will be clearly labeled as refurbished during the sales process.

c. **Environmental Certifications.** Contractor must include environmental or supply chain responsibility certifications and registrations for products sold through this Contract on their website. Contractor must provide these certifications and registrations for specific products to Participating Entities upon request.

Responder must describe in no more than one page how certifications/registrations are identified on the website; as well as labels on equipment and/or packing list. It is preferable that Purchasing Entities be able to view certifications and registrations at the product level.

2. **EPEAT Registration.** Contractor agrees that applicable products offered that have EPEAT Standards provided under the Master Agreement must have achieved a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. This requirement does not apply to Band 3.

Contractor may propose the addition of a product that has not yet achieved a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. The Lead State, in its sole discretion may require Contractor to provide the following documentation to support the addition of the proposed product:

- a. A letter from the Green Electronics Council (GEC) on GEC's letterhead confirming that the verification process is underway; or
- b. A copy of Contractor's GEC contract, Conformity Assurance Board (CAB) contract, and a letter from Contractor's CAB stating that the relevant product has been registered with the CAB and that verification is underway.

The Lead State reserves the right to reject the inclusion of such product, or if approved, require Contractor to remove the product at a later date if the product does not achieve a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. The Contractor must remove any products that subsequently exit the verification process without achieving EPEAT Bronze or greater from the Master Agreement.

Responder must describe how they meet these requirements in no more than one page, and include a list of all products that are in the process of being verified for EPEAT certification for which a. or b. below applies.

If Responder has products that are in the process of being verified for EPEAT certification, these products may be considered if Responder provides one of the following for each product in the process of being verified:

- a. A letter from the GEC confirming that the verification process is underway. This letter must be on the GEC letterhead and be dated after January 1, 2020; or
- b. The Responder's GEC contract, CAB contract, and a letter from their CAB stating that the relevant products have been registered with the CAB and that verification is underway.
- 3. Total Cost of Ownership. Describe in no more than one page any tools your company provides users to assist in evaluating the Total Cost of Ownership of products offered during the purchasing process (i.e., Contractor tools to assist buyers in identifying equipment that runs more efficiently or that utilizes fewer supplies, etc.).
- **4. ENERGY STAR® Compliant Products.** Describe Responder's commitment to the ENERGY STAR Program in one page or less.
- **5. TCO Certified.** Describe whether any of Responder's proposed products are TCO Certified and any other engagement with the TCO Development organization in one page or less.
- 6. Environmental Improvement Program. Describe in one page or less any product environmental improvement program for products that have not yet received the applicable standards or certification. In addition, describe environmental efforts in each of the following areas: (1) reduction/minimization/avoidance of the use of toxic and hazardous constituents (cadmium, chromium, mercury, and/or lead); and (2) compliance with international directives such as the European Union's WEEE Directive on reduction of chlorinated plastics (PVC) and brominated flame retardants. Contactor must provide this information for specific products to Participating Entities upon request.

D. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: BUSINESS CAPABILITIES

1. Third-Party Products. Some products offered may be manufactured by a third party. Contractor, however, must provide or facilitate the warranty service and maintenance for all Third-Party Products on the Master Agreement either directly or pass-through from the manufacturer. Contractor may not offer products manufactured by another Contractor holding a Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement for Computer Equipment without approval from the Lead State. Warranty for third-party products must be provided by the Contractor. Warranty documents for products manufactured by a third party are preferred to be delivered to the Participating Entity with the products. Contractor can only offer Third-Party Products in a Band they have been awarded.

Third-Party Products are intended to enhance or supplement a Contractor's own product line, and are not intended to represent more than a third of Contractor's total sales under this Master Agreement. The Lead State may limit the sale of Third-Party Products through the Master Agreement during the life of the Master Agreement should Third-Party Product sales be determined to consistently exceed one third of the total sales under this Master Agreement. Such limitation may take the form of any action the Lead State so chooses, up to and including non-renewal or cancellation of the Master Agreement.

Responder should describe, in no more than two pages per Band, the type of Third-Party Products they intend to offer as a part of this Master Agreement and the benefit they provide to Participating Entities. If Responder is not offering third-party products, Responder is encouraged to describe why they are not offering third-party products.

- 2. Auditing. Responder must describe the following in no more than two pages total:
 - How Responder regularly self audits the Master Agreement to ensure compliance per Section 2.B.26.
 - How a Purchasing Entity will be able to self-audit to ensure quotes provided are at the discount off list price.
 - How often the web pricing and invoicing is audited to ensure contractual compliance.
 - Reporting mechanisms available such as Invoice Reports which will assist in Participating Entity's or NASPO ValuePoint's ability to audit the Master Agreement through vendor supplied reporting tools.
 - How Responder ensures that Purchasing Entities with multiple Participating Addenda with Responder are monitored to ensure purchases are correctly booked with the correct Master Agreement.
- 3. Economic Development Programs. Describe how your company, if awarded a contract, will further the Lead State's goal of fostering economic development and reducing economic disparities through diversity and inclusion. Points may be awarded to companies articulating strong policies supporting small, diverse, and veteran-owned businesses in areas such as hiring practices, supply chain management, subcontracting, etc. Detail your company's demographic breakdown and any other information pertinent to efforts in this area.

Responses to this section should be no more than two pages.

4. Partner Utilization. If utilizing partners, the Contractor is responsible for the partners providing products and services, as well as warranty service and maintenance for equipment the partner provides. The Lead State must approve a Contractor's plan for partner utilization. Once a Contractor's plan is approved, Participating Entities must approve specific Partners as outlined within the relevant Participating Addendum.

If the Contractor has been approved to use partners, each Participating Entity represented by NASPO ValuePoint that chooses to participate in this Master Agreement independently has the option of utilizing partners. Only partners approved by the Participating Entity may be deployed. The Participating Entity will define the process to add and remove partners in their Participating Addendum.

If partners are proposed, Responder must describe:

- The process to qualify partners and sales personnel to represent the product, including any certifications.
- The business relationship between partners and the manufacturer and services to be performed; for
 example, if partners will only be used for assistance in locating products/services, or if partners will be
 used to accept orders and payments (with the agreement of the Participating Entity).
- How partners are contractually bound to the Master Agreement terms and conditions.
- How partner sales will be accurately tracked and reported.

- The remedy plan if the partner or sales personnel are not in compliance.
- 5. 2019 National Defense Authorization Act, Section 889(f)(3). Under the 2019 National Defense Authorization Act, Section 889(f)(3), the US military is prohibited from purchasing video surveillance and telecommunications equipment from certain Chinese-owned technology firms. While US state are not subject to this act, there is increasing concern for the security of state data. To allow potential purchasers to evaluate the risk of entering into a Participating Addendum, please answer the following questions:
 - Is the purchase of any product proposed under your response to this solicitation prohibited under law, regulation, or policy by the United State federal government, a US State or territory, or a local governmental entity? If so, you must identify the prohibition and provide an explanation.
 - Is Responder owned in part or whole by a foreign government or foreign government entity? If so, please provide a narrative explaining Responder's ownership.
 - Is Responder subject to Chinese law, including the China Internet Security Law, effective June 2017 (or later), as passed by the Chinese Communist Party, through the Standing Committee of the National People's Congress? If so, please provide a narrative explaining Responder's obligations under Chinese law.

A responder is required to immediately report to the Lead State any changes in the responder's responses to the above questions during the solicitation process, and Contractors will be required to immediately report any such changes to the Lead State during the term of their Master Agreement. As a reminder, all responses to this solicitation are subject to Minnesota's False Claims Act and may be subject to others upon execution of Participating Addenda.

E. RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS: CUSTOMER SUPPORT

- 1. **Sales Support Training.** Detail how Responder will train sales staff to ensure they are well versed in the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement. Restrict your response to a half page.
- 2. **Primary Account Representative.** Responder must provide a Primary Account Representative to work with the Master Agreement Administrator on all aspects of the Master Agreement. This account representative is responsible for the performance of the Master Agreement and must provide timely response to all requests from Master Agreement Administrator and Participating Entity.

Identify the proposed account representative and briefly describe the duties of the account representative and their role in the sales cycle. Restrict your response to a half page.

NAME:	
TELEPHONE #:	
EMAIL ADDRESS:	

3. Complaint Resolution. Responder must describe their procedures for addressing and resolving customer problems and complaints regarding service, equipment, or billing. Include timelines and escalation process. Limit your response to one page.

SECTION 4: COST PROPOSAL

Responder's Cost Proposal must be submitted on a flash drive that is separate from its Narrative Response, and be clearly marked as the Cost Proposal.

By submitting a response to this RFP, Responder confirms it meets, understands, and will comply with the following mandatory requirements.

Pricing. The Master Agreement will be based on a minimum discount-off-list price structure (see Section 2.B.13).
Orders, however, will be fixed-price or fixed-rate. Contractor or its authorized resellers may provide deeper or
additional incremental discounts at their sole discretion. Pricing is based on a quantity of one. Contractor may offer
additional bulk, quantity, or volume discounts, and Contractor may offer increased discounts upon achievement of
contract volume milestones.

2. Price Structure.

a. <u>Baseline Price List</u>. The Baseline Price List will be used by a Purchasing Entity to verify pricing and by the Lead State Administrator to verify pricing of any proposed Product additions.

Responder must designate a "Baseline Price List" (e.g. MSRP, List, or Education) on the applicable Price Workbook(s).

Responder must submit the Baseline Price List with the Cost Proposal response. The submitted Baseline Price List must be used to complete the Price Workbook. The Baseline Price List should be dated November 1, 2020. If Responder submits a Baseline Price List for an alternative date, the proposed pricing for the MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards must be representative of an order placed on November 1, 2020.

- b. <u>Minimum Discount by Band</u>. Responder must provide a discount schedule off the Baseline Price List for each proposed Band for a quantity of one unit. Responder is to base its proposed discounts on the collective volume of potential purchases by the Participating Entities. The Minimum Discount will apply to all products within the Band, unless a product falls under a Category discount or Third-Party Product discount.
- c. <u>Minimum Discount by Category</u>. Responder may define additional categories within a Band. The category discounts may be higher or lower than the minimum discount by Band. For example, if a responder proposes a minimum discount of 50% for Band 1, the responder may also create additional categories "Laptop Brand X" and "Laptop Brand Y," and offer a minimum discount of 45% and 60%, respectively for these additional categories
- d. <u>Third-Party Product Discounts</u>. Responder may offer third-party products. If Responder offers third-party products, Responder should provide a discount schedule off the Baseline Price List for third-party products in the applicable Cost Workbook.
- e. <u>Volume-Based Pricing</u>. Responder may provide additional volume-based pricing discounts for per transaction and cumulative volume purchases. Examples of bulk pricing models are included in Section 6.I. Responders may propose how they will provide deeper discounts including, but not limited to:
 - Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount. Responder may propose a contractual volume discount program or
 plan based on dollars in a single purchase order or combination of purchase orders submitted at one time by
 a Participating Entity or multiple entities conducting a cooperative purchase. Include in the applicable Price
 Workbook a table indicating the additional discount percentage to be earned by volume purchased by
 transaction.
 - 2. Cumulative. Responder may propose a cumulative volume discount based on dollars resulting from the cumulative purchases by all purchases made by Purchasing Entities for the duration of the Master Agreement. Include in the applicable Price Workbook a table indicating the additional discount percentage to be earned by cumulative volume purchased.
 - 3. Other Discounts. Describe in the applicable Price Workbook any additional discounts available to Participating Entities.
- f. <u>Services</u>. Responder must describe all available options for pricing services in the Price Workbooks such as discount off list, hourly fees, per unit fees, etc.

- g. <u>Prompt Payment Discount (if applicable)</u>. Responder must describe any Prompt Payment discount (if available) to be offered in the applicable Price Workbook.
- 3. **Price Workbooks.** Price Workbooks will be used to evaluate responses to the RFP as described in Section 5. For each Band proposed, Responder must complete the corresponding Price Workbook, which includes five worksheets.

In the Price Workbook, Responder must use the proposed minimum percentage discount from the Baseline Price List for a "quantity one" purchase.

Price Workbooks have been included in Section 6.H. There are a total of three workbooks:

- Band 1: Personal Computing Devices Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 2: Personal Computing Devices Non-Windows Operating System: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 3: Servers and Storage

INSTRUCTIONS:

- 1. Each Price Workbook contains five worksheets. Responder is to fill in the blue shaded fields on each worksheet.
- 2. The Price Workbooks are locked, however, there is not a password and Responder may revise a worksheet as needed to provide the information requested in the blue shaded fields.
- 4. **Minnesota IT Services (MNIT) Minimum Acceptable Standards.** Attached to the RFP as Attachments J and K in Section 6 are the MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1, 2, and 3.

When brand name or manufacturer's name or numbers are stated in the MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards, they are intended to establish a standard only and are not restrictive unless the Attachment states: "No Substitute." Responses may be considered on other alternate makes, models, or brands having comparable quality, style, and performance characteristics. Any alternates included in a response are subject to Lead State approval.

If any proposed alternates are deemed unacceptable by the Lead State, the Lead State will contact the responder(s) that have deficient alternates, explaining the deficiency, and provide the responder(s) with one opportunity to propose a new, acceptable alternate within a set number of business days. All responders with deficient alternates will be given the same number of business days to attempt to provide an acceptable alternate. Responders unable to propose an acceptable alternate through this one-time process will be excluded from the Standard in which they are deficient.

5. **Products and Services Schedule (PSS).** Responder must submit with the Cost Proposal a proposed Product and Services Schedule including all the products and services offered within each proposed Band. The PSS should be submitted in Excel format. A sample PSS has been provided in Section 6.F. Submission of a product or service on the sample PSS does not guarantee that it will be approved to be included in a resulting Master Agreement. The products, services, and format for the final PSS will be finalized during negotiations.

SECTION 5: EVALUATION PROCESS

Except at the invitation of the Master Agreement Administrator, no activity or comments from responders regarding this RFP shall be discussed with any of the sourcing team during the RFP or evaluation of the responses. A responder who contacts a sourcing team member regarding this RFP may, as a result of that contact, have its response rejected or portions thereof.

Non-selection of any response means that either another response was determined to be more advantageous to the Lead State, or that the Lead State exercised its right to reject all responses. At its discretion, the Lead State may perform an appropriate cost and pricing analysis of a responder's response, including the reasonableness of any response. During the evaluation process, all information concerning the responses submitted will remain private and will not be disclosed to anyone whose official duties do not require such knowledge. At any time during the evaluation, the Lead State may request that a responder provide explicit written clarification to any part of its response.

Responses are private or nonpublic data as defined by Minn. Stat. § 13.591 until the completion of the evaluation process. The Lead State will provide notice of the evaluation results.

If only one response for a Band is submitted to the RFP, the Lead State reserves the right to review the response submitted for compliance and to award without assigning points, or to reject the offer and re-issue the RFP, whatever is in the Lead State's best interest.

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary, the Lead State reserves the right to:

- Accept all or part of an offer, to reject any and all offers, to cancel the RFP, or to re-issue the RFP,
- Waive or modify any informalities, irregularities, or inconsistencies in the responses received,
- Negotiate any aspect of the proposal with any responder and negotiate with more than one responder,
- Select for negotiations or a Master Agreement, a response other than that with the lowest cost,
- Request a Best and Final Offer,
- Interview a responder's key personnel,
- Suspend or terminate negotiations, or take such other action as the Lead State deems appropriate, if negotiations
 fail to result in a successful Master Agreement,
- Eliminate an item from consideration for all responses,
- For evaluating pricing on a given item where a responder did not submit a response for that item, use the highest price item of all responses received.
- Request additional pricing items for consideration,
- Clarify pricing with responder(s), and
- Include options, quantity discounts, and services for basis of calculating the cost utilized in evaluation.

Prompt pay discount will be applied when evaluating cost as detailed in the Terms and Conditions or as otherwise specified in the RFP.

PHASES.

Phase 1 - Responsiveness and Pass/Fail Requirements

The purpose of this phase is to determine if each response complies with mandatory requirements. The Lead State will first review each proposal for responsiveness to determine if the Responder satisfies all mandatory requirements. The Lead State will evaluate these requirements on a pass/fail basis.

Phase 2 - Evaluate Responses

Only those responses that are found to be responsive under Phases 1 will be considered in Phase 2. Responses will be evaluated and scored in a three-step process:

Step 1. Weighted scoring of Product Deployment and Ability to Perform proposal sections, as follows:

Product Deployment and Ability to Perform

Product Deployment 200 Points (Section 3.A)
Ability to Perform 800 Points (Section 3.B)

TOTAL 1000 Points

- Step 2. The Lead State reserves the right to shortlist responders in each Band. The shortlist for each Band will be based on the scores awarded in Step 1 and the ability of the responders selected for the shortlist to meet the needs of the anticipated Participating Entities as outlined in the RFP.
- Step 3. Weighted scoring of Accessibility, Environmental, Business Capabilities, Customer Support, and Cost proposal sections based on the remaining responses. Reference checks may be included in this Step at the discretion of the Lead State. The proposal sections of the remaining responders will be scored as follows:

References, Work Plan, and Cost Proposal

Accessibility 50 Points

Environmental 50 Points (Section 3.C)
Business Capabilities 300 Points (Section 3.D)
Customer Support 200 Points (Section 3.E)

Cost 400 Points 1000 Points

The Lead State will separate all responsive proposals in Step 3 into groups by Band. Responders with responsive proposals in multiple Bands will be given a Cost score for each Band.

Phase 3 - Select Finalists. Only those responses that are found to be responsive under Phases 1 and 2 will be considered in Phase 3.

The Lead State reserves the right to request oral presentations, references, Best and Final offers by from responders, and the opportunity to interview a responder's key personnel. The Lead State reserves the right to select the number of responders for the Best and Final offer, oral presentations, and to enter into negotiations. Consistent with Minnesota law, evaluation scores may be revised as a result of the responses to the oral presentations, Best and Final Offer, and/or negotiations.

An award from this RFP will be based upon the total accumulated points as established in the RFP, where at its sole discretion the Lead State believes it will receive the best value. The Lead State reserves the right to award this RFP to a single responder, or to multiple responders, whichever is in the best interest of the Lead State. The Lead State reserves the right to make awards by Band. Responders that include products in multiple Bands may not be awarded all Bands for which they have submitted a response.

The Sourcing Team will make recommendations on the award of this RFP. The Commissioner of Administration or their designee may accept or reject the recommendation of the Sourcing Team. The final award decision will be made by the Commissioner of Administration and provided to the NASPO ValuePoint Management Board for approval.

Phase 4. Sign Master Agreement with Awarded Vendor.

CHECKLIST

This list may not be comprehensive, read the RFP thoroughly for information required in this RFP.

All required information must be completed and returned with the response or the response may be rejected.

Narrative Response. Responses to the Requirements of Sections 3.A-E should be provided in the order presented in the RFP, clearly marked and tabbed. The response should describe <u>how</u> the responder will meet the requirement. For Sections without specific requirements or responses needed, a responder may add an acknowledgement that they read, understand, and comply with that Section.
Provide two digital copies of the Narrative Response. Each digital copy of the Narrative Response must be provided on its own flash drive, and each flash drive should be marked "Narrative Response." Each digital copy of the Narrative Response should include:
 An electronic searchable PDF, and One editable Word document.
Signed Addendums to the RFP (if applicable). Include any required signed addenda as one PDF with the Narrative Response submission.
Solicitation Response Forms.
Include the following completed forms with the Narrative Response submission. Forms that require a signature may be physically-signed and scanned into PDF format or signed electronically via a signing software that includes verification capabilities such as DocuSign.
Responder Declarations State of Minnesota Workforce Certificate Information Form State of Minnesota Equal Pay Certificate Form Contact Information Form State of Minnesota Resident Vendor Form Solicitation Terms, Conditions, and Response Requirements Exception Form Voluntary Product Accessibility Template® (VPAT®).
Note regarding the VPAT: Responders should complete, in an accessible format, a VPAT for all websites proposed in response to the solicitation. Responders can use the 508 VPAT form from the ITIC VPAT site (https://www.itic.org/policy/accessibility/vpat). See Section 2.A.14 for additional information and instruction.
 Attachment J, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1 and 2 (if applicable) Attachment K, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Band and 3 (if applicable)
Do not include the Cost Proposal with the Narrative Response.
Cost Proposal . Provide one complete digital copy of the Cost Proposal on a flash drive. The Cost Proposal must be submitted on a flash drive separate from the Narrative Response, and the drive should be marked "Cost Proposal." The digital copy of the Cost Proposal must include:

- Responses to Section 4,
- Baseline Price List,
- Proposed Product and Services Schedule, and
- Price Workbooks for all applicable Bands, including all tabs.

The Cost Proposal should be submitted in the following formats:

- Responses to Section 4 in either a searchable PDF or Word document, and
- The Baseline Price List, Proposed Product and Services Schedule, and Price Workbooks should be submitted as unlocked Excel documents.

SECTION 6: ATTACHMENTS

- A. Solicitation Question Form
- B. Solicitation Response Forms
- C. Sample NASPO ValuePoint Contract
- D. Participating States' Sample Terms & Conditions
- E. Action Request Form Sample
- F. Product and Service Schedule Sample
- G. Detail Sales Report Template
- H. Price Workbooks
- I. Bulk/Volume Pricing Examples
- J. MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1 and 2
- K. MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Band 3

A. SOLICITATION QUESTION FORM

NASPO ValuePoint COMPUTER EQUIPMENT

र 14, 2020		period of the RFP.
DUE: DECEMBER 14, 2020	RESPONDER NAME:	Use this form to submit questions to the Lead State during the Question and Answer period of the RFP

Questions must be submitted in writing to Master Agreement Administrator at Andy.Doran@state.mn.us (see Sections 2.A.4 and 2.A.7). All questions received by the cutoff date and time will be responded to via an addendum to official solicitation holders. Be specific and cite the section, item and page number to which the question refers. Contact regarding this RFP with any state personnel other than the Master Agreement Administrator may result in rejection of the response. See Schedule of Events for when questions are due (see Section 2.A.4).

:i											
QUESTION:											
111											
SECTION REFERENCE											
SE											

B. SOLICITATION RESPONSE FORMS

- 1. The following forms must be completed and returned with your response or the response may be rejected:
 - Responder Declarations;
 - State of Minnesota Workforce Certificate Information Form;
 - State of Minnesota Equal Pay Certificate Form;
 - Contact Information Form;
 - State of Minnesota Resident Vendor Form; and
 - Terms, Conditions, and Response Requirements Exception Form.
- 2. Voluntary Product Accessibility Template (VPAT). Responders should complete and submit a VPAT (see Sections 2.A.14 and 2.C.13) with their response.

RESPONDER DECLARATIONS

The undersigned certifies, to the best of his or her knowledge and belief, that:

- A. **Acceptance of Terms and Conditions.** The Responder accepts terms and conditions of the Solicitation, including the Sample Master Agreement, except for any term or condition that the Responder takes a specific exception to through the Terms, Conditions, and Response Requirements Exception Form (see Section 6.B).
- B. **Response Contents.** The information provided is true, correct, and reliable for purposes of evaluation for potential contract award. The submission of inaccurate or misleading information may be grounds for disqualification from the award as well as subject the Responder to suspension or debarment proceedings as well as other remedies available by law
- C. **Authorized Signature.** This Declaration is signed by the appropriate person(s), with the authority to contractually bind the Responder, as required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, minutes, and ordinances.
- D. Non-Collusion Certification.
 - 1. The Proposal has been arrived at by the Responder independently and has been submitted without collusion and without any agreement, understanding or planned common course of action with any other vendor designed to limit fair or open competition; and
 - 2. The contents of the Response have not been communicated by the Responder or its employees or agents to any person not an employee or agent of the Responder and will not be communicated to any other individual prior to the due date and time of this Solicitation. Any evidence of collusion among Responders in any form designed to defeat competitive responses will be reported to the Minnesota Attorney General for investigation and appropriate action.
- E. **Organizational Conflicts of Interest.** To the best of Responder's knowledge and belief, and except as otherwise disclosed, there are no relevant facts or circumstances which could give rise to an organizational conflict of interest. An organizational conflict of interest exists when, because of existing or planned activities or because of relationships with other persons,
 - 1. a vendor is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the State;
 - 2. the vendor's objectivity in performing the contract work is or might be otherwise impaired; or
 - 3. the vendor has an unfair competitive advantage.

If after award, an organizational conflict of interest is discovered, an immediate and full disclosure in writing must be made to the Lead State's Chief Procurement Officer which must include a description of the action which the contractor has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such conflicts. If an organizational conflict of interest is determined to exist, the Lead State may, at its discretion, cancel the contract. In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest prior to the award of the contract and did not disclose the conflict, the Lead State may terminate the contract for default. Organizational conflicts of interest terms apply to any subcontractors for this work.

F. **Copyrighted Material Waiver.** By signing its Response, the Responder certifies that it has obtained all necessary approvals for the reproduction and distribution of the contents of its response.

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW

				indicated above.

Company Name:
Signature:
Printed Name:
itle:
Date:
Phone Number:
mail Address:

STATE OF MINNESOTA – WORKFORCE CERTIFICATE INFORMATION

Required by state law for ALL bids or proposals that could exceed \$100,000

Complete this form and return it with your bid or proposal. The State of Minnesota is under no obligation to delay proceeding with a contract until a company becomes compliant with the Workforce Certification requirements in Minn. Stat. §363A.36.

single working day during the previous 12 months, check one op	ime employees WITHIN MINNESOTA on any otion below:
☐ Attached is our current Workforce Certificate issued by the Min	nesota Department of Human Rights (MDHR).
Attached is confirmation that MDHR received our application for (date).	or a Minnesota Workforce Certificate on
BOX B – NON-MINNESOTA COMPANIES that have employe working day during the previous 12 months in the state where it below:	
☐ Attached is our current Workforce Certificate issued by MDHR	
☐ We certify we are in compliance with federal affirmative action	requirements.
BOX C – EXEMPT COMPANIES that have not employed more	a than 40 full time ampleyees an a single working
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be	
	low if applicable: upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 employees during the previous 12 months, the date of
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be ☐ We attest we are exempt. If our company is awarded a contract, business days after the contract is fully signed, the names of our	low if applicable: upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 employees during the previous 12 months, the date of
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be ☐ We attest we are exempt. If our company is awarded a contract, business days after the contract is fully signed, the names of our	upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 remployees during the previous 12 months, the date of the employed. Send to compliance.MDHR@state.mn.us.
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be We attest we are exempt. If our company is awarded a contract, business days after the contract is fully signed, the names of our separation, if applicable, and the state in which the persons were the company. By signing this statement, I certify that the information provided is a the company. Name of Company:	upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 remployees during the previous 12 months, the date of remployed. Send to compliance.MDHR@state.mn.us.
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be We attest we are exempt. If our company is awarded a contract, business days after the contract is fully signed, the names of our separation, if applicable, and the state in which the persons were the company. By signing this statement, I certify that the information provided is a the company. Name of Company: Authorized Signature:	upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 remployees during the previous 12 months, the date of remployed. Send to compliance.MDHR@state.mn.us. accurate and that I am authorized to sign on behalf of Date
day in any state during the previous 12 months, check option be We attest we are exempt. If our company is awarded a contract, business days after the contract is fully signed, the names of our separation, if applicable, and the state in which the persons were the company. By signing this statement, I certify that the information provided is a the company. Name of Company:	upon request, we will submit to MDHR within 5 remployees during the previous 12 months, the date of remployed. Send to compliance.MDHR@state.mn.us. accurate and that I am authorized to sign on behalf of Date

TC Metro:

651-539-1095

Toll Free: 800-657-3704

TTY: 651-296-1283

Web:

Email:

http://mn.gov/mdhr/

compliance.mdhr@state.mn.us

STATE OF MINNESOTA - EQUAL PAY CERTIFICATE

If your response could be in excess of \$500,000, please complete and submit this form with your submission. It is your sole responsibility to provide the information requested and when necessary to obtain an Equal Pay Certificate (Equal Pay Certificate) from the Minnesota Department of Human Rights (MDHR) prior to contract execution. You must supply this document with your submission. Please contact MDHR with questions at: 651-539-1095 (metro), 1-800-657-3704 (toll free), 711 or 1-800-627-3529 (MN Relay) or <a href="mailto:emailto:mail

Option A – If you have employed 40 or more full-time employed months in Minnesota or the state where you have your primary p	
☐ Attached is our current MDHR Equal Pay Certificate.	
☐ Attached is MDHR's confirmation of our Equal Pay Certif	ficate application.
Option B – If you have not employed 40 or more full-time employed and the state where you have your primary	
	the previous 12 months, date of separation if applicable,
The State of Minnesota reserves the right to request additional in the preceding boxes, please contact MDHR to avoid a detertion and be executed.	
Your signature certifies that you are authorized to make the repo State of Minnesota can rely upon the information provided, and revoke any agreement with you for any false information provide	the State of Minnesota may take action to suspend or
Authorized Signature:	Date:
Printed Name:	Title:
Organization:	MN/Fed Tax ID:
ssuing Entity:	Project # or Lease Address:

CONTACT INFORMATION FORM

PRIMARY CONTACT PERSON	I FOR MASTER AGREEMENT	
NAME:	TITLE:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	FAX NUMBER:	
TOLL FREE NUMBER:	E-MAIL:	
CONTACT PERSON TO EXPE	<u>EDITE ORDERS</u> (if different from above):	
NAME:	TITLE:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	FAX NUMBER:	
TOLL FREE NUMBER:	E-MAIL:	
ORDER ADDRESS		
STREET/PO BOX:		
CITY/STATE:	ZIP CODE:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	FAX NUMBER:	
TOLL FREE NUMBER:	E-MAIL:	
REMIT-TO ADDRESS		
STREET/PO BOX:		
CITY/STATE:	ZIP CODE:	
TELEPHONE NUMBER:	FAX NUMBER:	
TOLL FREE NUMBER:	F-MAII :	

STATE OF MINNESOTA - RESIDENT VENDOR FORM

In accordance with Minn. Stat. § 16C.02, subd. 13, a "Resident Vendor" means a person, firm, or corporation that:

- 1. is authorized to conduct business in the state of Minnesota on the date a solicitation for a contract is first advertised or announced. It includes a foreign corporation duly authorized to engage in business in Minnesota;
- 2. has paid unemployment taxes or income taxes in this state during the 12 calendar months immediately preceding submission of the bid or proposal for which any preference is sought;
- 3. has a business address in the state; and
- 4. has affirmatively claimed that status in the bid or proposal submission.

To receive recognition as a Minnesota Resident Vendor ("Resident Vendor"), your company must meet each element of the statutory definition above by the solicitation opening date and time. If you wish to affirmatively claim Resident Vendor status, you should do so by submitting this form with your bid or proposal.

Resident Vendor status may be considered for purposes of resolving tied low bids or the application of a reciprocal preference.

I hereby certify that the company listed below:

	,		' '				
1.	advertised of Minnesota.)	r annoı	nduct business in the State of Minnesota on tunced. (This includes a foreign corporation d (must check yes or no)				
2.	immediately	preced	ment taxes or income taxes in the State of Ming submission of the bid or proposal for wh (must check yes or no)				
3.			dress in the State of Minnesota. (must check yes or no)				
4.	above statut	ory req	ocumentation, if requested, as part of the bid juirements. (must check yes or no)	or proposal pr	ocess, to verify compliance with the		
			e certifying your compliance with the requirent proposal submission.	nents set forth h	nerein and claiming Resident		
Name	of Company:	<u> </u>		Date:			
Autho	rized Signatuı	re: _		Telephone:			
Printed Name:				Title:			

If you are claiming Resident Vendor status, sign and return this form with your response.

TERMS, CONDITIONS, AND RESPONSE REQUIREMENTS EXCEPTION FORM

NASPO ValuePoint COMPUTER EQUIPMENT RFP

RESPONDER:

The Lead State presumes a responder agrees to the terms and conditions of this solicitation unless a responder takes specific exception to one or more of the
conditions on this form. The Lead State reserves the right to reject, negotiate, or accept any exception listed. Responders are cautioned that by taking any
exception they may be materially deviating from the RFP. If a responder materially deviates from the Solicitation Terms, Conditions, and Instructions, the NASPO
ValuePoint Terms and Conditions, the Minnesota Terms and Conditions, the Response Requirements, or the Sample Contract, its response may be rejected (see
Section 2.A.18).

responder's exceptions, and include the original language, and the alternative language suggestions. If no exceptions exist, state "NONE" specifically on the form below. Whether or not exceptions are taken, the responder must sign and date this form and submit it as part of their response. (Add additional lines if necessary.) INSTRUCTIONS: A responder must explicitly list all exceptions, if any. Reference the Section and clause number of the term and condition for each of a

Section Reference	Original Term	Alternate Language Suggestion
Prepared by: Printed Name Date:		Signed

C. SAMPLE NASPO ValuePoint MASTER AGREEMENT

The Sample NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement is attached as a PDF to this RFP, and available at: http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/pdf/Section6AttachmentC_SampleMasterAgreement.pdf

D. PARTICIPATING STATES' SAMPLE TERMS & CONDITIONS

Terms and Conditions will be negotiated with individual states after award of the Master Agreement. All States reserve the right to add additional terms and conditions to participating addendums.

The following States have provided samples:

- 1. Alaska
- 2. California
- 3. Colorado
- 4. Connecticut
- 5. Hawaii
- 6. Maryland
- 7. Montana
- 8. New Jersey
- 9. New Mexico
- 10. Ohio
- 11. Utah
- 12. Vermont
- 13. Washington
- 14. Wisconsin

Sample terms and conditions are attached as a separate PDF to this RFP, and available at: http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/pdf/Section6AttachmentD_StatesTermsAndConditions.pdf

E. AC	TION REQUEST FORM SAMPLE		
DATE:			
ATTN:	Andy Doran IT Acquisitions Supervisor Master Agreement Administrator		
RE:	Master Agreement # <u>MNNVP</u> –	with	(Contractor)
	ctor requests the action noted below. If ed for approval by the Lead State.	needed, a Product	and Service Schedule has been submitted online or is
Contac	et person for questions on this request:		
	Name:		
SELEC	CT ACTION BELOW AND PROVIDE R	EQUIRED INFORM	IATION:
	☐ Quarterly Self-Audit. Check the box	to verify the quart	erly self-audit has been completed.
	☐ Product & Service Schedule Chang	je.	
	☐ Product Addition:		
	Band: Proposed Discount (m	nust meet or excee	d):
	☐ Third Party Product Additio	n. The Third-Party	Product Log has been updated, if applicable.
	Band: Manufacturer: Proposed Discount (m	nust meet or excee	d):
	☐ Marketing Approval. Attach materia	ıls.	
	☐ Website Change Review. Describe	and attach.	
	☐ Miscellaneous Inquiry. Provide deta	ail:	
	ctor affirms that the Products and Servi tands NASPO ValuePoint may audit Co		the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement and ance.
right to	ad State may request additional information request Contractor to remove a product Agreement if in the best interest of the	t from the PSS, ev	or upon submission. The Lead State also reserves the en if it was previously approved, throughout the life of the its sole discretion.
Ву:			
Tit	me:		

ACTION REQUEST LOG

The Action Request Log must be submitted with each Action Request Form.

This Log must provide a history of previously submitted requests.

DATE SUBMITTED	ACTION REQUESTED:	DATE APPROVED
	1	

THIRD-PARTY PRODUCT LOG

The Third-Party Product Log must be submitted with each Action Request Form. This Log must provide a current list of all third-party manufacturers that Contractor offers on its PSS.

DATE SUBMITTED	THIRD-PARTY MANUFACTURER	DATE APPROVED

F. PRODUCT AND SERVICE SCHEDULE

See the attached Sample Product and Service Schedule in Excel format. http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/Section.6.Attachment.F Sample.PSS.xlsx

G. **DETAILED REPORTING SAMPLE**

See the attached Detail Sales Report Template in Excel format. http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/Section.6.Attachment.G Detail.Report.Template.xlsx

H. PRICE WORKBOOKS

Band 1: Personal Computing Devices – Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band1PriceWorkbook.xlsx

Band 2: Personal Computing Devices – Non-Windows Operating System: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band2PriceWorkbook.xlsx

Band 3: Servers and Storage

http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band3PriceWorkbook.xlsx

I. BULK/VOLUME PRICING EXAMPLES

Cumulative

\$ Threshold	Frequency	Discount
\$1,000,000-\$2,000,000	Annually	additional 1%
\$2,000,000-\$3,000,000	Annually	additional 1.5%
\$3,000,000-\$4,000,000	Annually	additional 2%
+ \$5,000,000	Annually	additional 2.5%

Per Transaction Multi Unit

\$ Threshold	Discount
\$75,000-\$100,000	additional 1%
\$100,000-\$200,000	additional 1.5%
\$200,000-\$300,000	additional 2%
\$300,000-\$400,000	additional 2.5%
\$400,000-\$500,000	additional 3%
+ \$500,000	additional 3.5%

Additional .5% for online orders

Cumulative

\$ Threshold	Frequency	Discount
\$2,000,000,000 and up	Every \$2 Billion "gate"	additional .5% on all Bands

Per Transaction Multi Unit

\$ Threshold	Discount
\$50,000-\$99,999	additional 1%
\$100,000-\$199,999	additional 2%
\$200,000-\$499,999	additional 4%
\$500,000-\$999,999	additional 6%
+ \$1,000,000 (no maximum)	additional 8%

Cumulative

\$ Threshold	Frequency	Discount
\$5,000,001-\$10,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1%
\$10,000,001-\$20,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1%
\$3,000,000-\$4,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1%
\$20,000,001-\$40,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1%
\$40,000,001-\$80,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1%
\$80,000,001-160,000000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 1.5%
106,000,001-220,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 2%
+ \$220,000,000	Duration of Master Agreement	additional 2.5%

NASPO ValuePoint Volume Pricing (per order) for Desktops and Notebooks

Number of Units	Minimum Discount
1-99 Units	XX%
100-500 Units	XX%
+ 500 Units	XX%

J. MNIT MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS FOR BANDS 1 AND 2

http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentJ MNITMinimumAcceptableStandardsBands1&2.xlsx

Instructions for completing Attachment J, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1 and 2:

A responder should review Attachment J and complete all shaded fields with the requested information.

Attachment J has three worksheets for a responder to review and complete. If responder is not offering a product that meets any standard the responder can either leave the standard blank or may indicate "N/A" in the shaded field requiring the responder to provide a SKU.

A responder should complete a separate copy of Attachment J for each Band proposed.

K. MNIT MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS FOR BAND 3

http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentK MNITMinimumAcceptableStandardsBand3.xlsx

Instructions for completing Attachment K, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Band 3:

A responder should review Attachment K and complete all shaded fields with the requested information.

Attachment K has two worksheets for a responder to review and complete. If responder is not offering a product that meets any standard the responder can either leave the standard blank or may indicate "N/A" in the shaded field requiring the responder to provide a SKU.

REFERENCE NUMBER: 29720

PURCHASING AGENCY: Admin/Office of State Procurement

TITLE: Computer Equipment (Desktops, Laptops, Servers, and Storage including related Peripherals & Services)

CONTRACT AVAILABLE TO: NASPO ValuePoint Participating States

RESPONSE TO THIS SOLICITATION IS DUE NO LATER THAN 1/11/2021 AT 3:00 PM Central Time

SOLICITATION MEETING DATE: 11/20/20 at 3:00 PM,

MEETING DETAILS: A pre-proposal meeting will be held remotely via Microsoft Teams for all interested responders to review any concerns regarding this RFP. Attendance at this meeting is NOT MANDATORY, but is recommended. See the Schedule of Events for date and time (Section 2.A.4). Interested responders will register to attend the webinar by sending an email to the Master Agreement Administrator. The registration email should include the interested responder's name, and the name and email address of the person(s) attending the Pre-Proposal Webinar Meeting. The Master Agreement Administrator will send an invitation to the Pre-Proposal Webinar Meeting to all registered attendees by 10:00 AM CT on November 20, 2020.

SHIP TO ADDRESS:

See Solicitation Document

A PDF copy of this solicitation is available. Click the button(s) below.

Acrobat Reader is required.

<u>Important!</u> Addenda to this solicitation will appear below the button for retrieving the original solicitation. Be sure to check for addenda prior to submitting your response.

Solicitation 29720.pdf

NOTES: The State of Minnesota, Department of Administration, Office of State Procurement is requesting proposals on behalf of the State of Minnesota and NASPO ValuePoint. The purpose of this Request for Proposal ("RFP") is to establish Minnesota-led NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement(s) with qualified manufacturers for Computer Equipment (Desktops, Laptops, Tablets, Servers, Storage and Ruggedized Devices including related Peripherals & Services).

This RFP and any resulting contract are for qualified manufacturers only – responders that cannot provide verification that they are a manufacturer will not be considered. Manufacturers that do not sell products directly may receive a Contract Award, but they must clearly specify their relationship with sales partners as directed in the RFP.

Sealed responses must be received in the office of the Director of the Office of State Procurement and time-stamped no later than the date and time specified, at which time the names of the contractors responding to this RFP will be read. Late responses cannot be considered. The laws of Minn. Stat. Ch. 16C apply to this RFP.

For the purpose of this RFP, there are three product Bands identified below which may be awarded. Responders must only respond to Bands in which they manufacture the defined product. "Re-branding" a product that is manufactured by another company does not meet this requirement. The State of Minnesota ("Lead State") intends to establish multiple awards per Band. The Lead State reserves the right to eliminate any Bands from the final award.

- Band 1: Personal Computing Devices Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 2: Personal Computing Devices Non-Windows Operating System: Desktops, Laptops, and Tablets
- Band 3: Servers and Storage

Direct all correspondence and inquiries, legal questions, general issues, or technical issues regarding this RFP to: Andy Doran, IT Acquisitions Supervisor, andy.doran@state.mn.us

Date This Solicitation Was Posted: 11/4/2020 5:12:53 PM



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600 Fax: 651.297.3996

SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

Addendum No.:	05	Date of Addendum:	March 5, 2021	
Due Date, Time:	March 18, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT	Revised Date, Time:		
Master Agreement		_	Department of Administration	
Administrator	Andy Doran	Agency:	Office of State Procurement	
Web Registration No.:	29720	_		
Title: Computer Equipment (Desktops, Laptops, Servers, and Storage including related Peripherals & Services)				

SCOPE OF ADDENDUM

The purpose of this Addendum 05 is to:

Revise Section 4, Paragraph 4 of the RFP as follows (deleted language is struck, added language is underlined):

Minnesota IT Services (MNIT) Minimum Acceptable Standards. Attached to the RFP as Attachments J and K in Section 6 are the MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1, 2, and 3.

When brand name or manufacturer's name or numbers are stated in the MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards, they are intended to establish a standard only and are not restrictive unless the Attachment states: "No Substitute." Responses may be considered on other alternate makes, models, or brands having comparable quality, style, and performance characteristics. Any alternates included in a response are subject to Lead State approval.

If any proposed alternates are deemed unacceptable by the Lead State, the Lead State will contact the responder(s) that have deficient alternates, explaining the deficiency, and provide the responder(s) with one opportunity to propose a new, acceptable alternate within a set number of business days. All responders with deficient alternates will be given the same number of business days to attempt to provide an acceptable alternate. Responders unable to propose an acceptable alternate through this one-time process will may be excluded from the Standard in which they are deficient. The Lead State reserves the right to conduct this process additional times at its discretion.

The Lead State reserves the right to request product specification documentation to verify compliance.

2. Revise the instructions for completing Section 6, Attachments J and K as follows (added language is underlined):

J. MNIT MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS FOR BANDS 1 AND 2

Instructions for completing Attachment J, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Bands 1 and 2:

A responder should review Attachment J and complete all shaded fields with the requested information. If a specification indicates that a responder may propose an alternative or comparable, a responder proposing an alternative or comparable should provide the specification details about the proposed alternative or comparable.

Attachment J has three worksheets for a responder to review and complete. If responder is not offering a product that meets any standard the responder can either leave the standard blank or may indicate "N/A" in the shaded field requiring the responder to provide a SKU.

A responder should complete a separate copy of Attachment J for each Band proposed.

K. MNIT MINIMUM ACCEPTABLE STANDARDS FOR BAND 3

Instructions for completing Attachment K, MNIT Minimum Acceptable Standards for Band 3:

A responder should review Attachment K and complete all shaded fields with the requested information. If a specification indicates that a responder may propose an alternative or comparable, a responder proposing an alternative or comparable should provide the specification details about the proposed alternative or comparable.

Attachment K has two worksheets for a responder to review and complete. If responder is not offering a product that meets any standard the responder can either leave the standard blank or may indicate "N/A" in the shaded field requiring the responder to provide a SKU.

- 3. Revise the following documents attached to the RFP to add "Semi-Ruggedized Notebook" to the MNIT Standards Tab of Section 6, Attachment H for Bands 1 and 2:
 - a. Section 6, Attachment H for Band 1, and
 - b. Section 6, Attachment H for Band 2.

Attachments:

- Section 6, Attachment H for Band 1 Addendum 05
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band1 Addendum5.xlsx
- Section 6, Attachment H for Band 2 Addendum 05
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band2 Addendum5.xlsx

Except as modified, all the terms and conditions of the solicitation remain in full force and effect.

This addendum is hereby incorporated into the RFP.

COMPANY NAME:	SIGNATURE:
DATE:	PRINTED NAME:
	TITLE:



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600

Fax: 651.297.3996

SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

Addendum No.:	04	Date of Addendum:	February 19, 2021	
Due Date, Time:	February 26, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT	Revised Date, Time:	March 18, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT	
Master Agreement		_	Department of Administration	
Administrator Andy Doran		Agency:	Office of State Procurement	
Web Registration No.:	29720	_		
Title: Computer Fauir	ment (Desktons Lantons Servers	and Storage including r	elated Peripherals & Services)	

SCOPE OF ADDENDUM

The purpose of this Addendum 04 is to:

- 1. Revise the Due Date and Time to be March 18, 2021, 3:00 PM CT.
- 2. Respond to the remainder of questions submitted by the due date and time as stated in the solicitation. The questions and answers are attached to this Addendum. The Lead State believes that is has answered all questions submitted to the date of this Addendum.
- 3. Revise the Solicitation document. Revisions to the document are as follows:

Section	Revision
	Update the due date
1.A	Replace "Reseller(s)" with "Contractor(s)"
1.D	Add Rhode Island to the list of State's that provided a Notice of Intent to Participate
2.B.1.e	Replace "Reseller's" with "Contractor's"
2.B.2.z	Update definition of Participating Entity
2.B.2.aa	Update definition of Participating State
2.B.10	Correct sentence to read (added language is in red):
	The term Partner will be utilized in naming the relationship a Contractor has with another
	company to market and sell under the contract
2.B.20	Replaced "Contract Vendor" with "Contractor"
2.B.20.d	Revision of paragraph to make a typographical correction to replace "Master agreement" with
	"Master Agreement," replace "Contract Vendor" with "Contractor," and update language.
3.B.7	Typographical correction to remove an extra period mark
3.D.4	Updated language to Partner Utilization requirements
3.D.5	New provision
Checklist	Remove reference to a Contract Savings Report
Checklist	Update instructions for completing a VPAT
6	Update list of attachments to correct internal references
6.B	Remove reference to a Contract Savings Report

- 4. Revise the following documents attached to the solicitation:
 - a. Section 6, Attachment H for Band 1, Band 2, and Band 3;
 - b. Section 6, Attachment J for Bands 1 and 2; and
 - c. Section 6, Attachment K for Band 3.

Attachments:

- Addendum 04 Questions and Answers
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Addendum4.QandA.xlsx
- 2020 NVP MN Computer Equipment RFP Addendum 04 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/pdf/29720.pdf
- Section 6, Attachment H for Band 1 Addendum 04
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band1PriceWorkbook.xlsx
- Section 6, Attachment H for Band 2 Addendum 04
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band2PriceWorkbook.xlsx
- Section 6, Attachment H for Band 3 Addendum 04
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentH Band3PriceWorkbook.xlsx
- Section 6, Attachment J for Bands 1 and 2 Addendum 04
 http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentJ MNITMinimumAcceptableStandardsBands1&2.xlsx
- Section 6, Attachment K for Band 3 Addendum 04
- http://www.mmd.admin.state.mn.us/xls/29720Section6AttachmentK_MNITMinimumAcceptableStandardsBand3.xlsx

- ~ ~ ~ .	11 11	maditiad	_ ∩ I	tha	torme	ากฝ	conditions	A+ .	tha	CALICITATIAN	romain in	+111	1 +/	arca	ากส	_ ^ +	ナヘヘナ
FXCEI	ווו מא	111000111100			1611117	ann	COHUMBORS	()1	1111	SOUCHALION	1611141111111	1111			ann		1201

This addendum is hereby incorporated into the RFP.

COMPANY NAME:	SIGNATURE:
DATE:	PRINTED NAME:
	TITLE:



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600

Fax: 651.297.3996

SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

Addendum No.:	03	Date of Addendum:	January 22, 2021		
Due Date, Time:	January 31, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT	Revised Date, Time:	February 26, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT		
Master Agreement		-	Department of Administration		
Administrator	Andy Doran	_ Agency:	Office of State Procurement		
Web Registration No.:	Registration No.: 29720				
Title: Computer Equip	ment (Desktops, Laptops, Servers,	and Storage including re	elated Peripherals & Services)		
	SCOPE OF AI	<u>DDENDUM</u>			
The purpose of this Addeng	dum 03 is to:				
1. Revise the Due Dat	e and Time to be February 26, 202	1, 3:00 PM CT; and			
2. Respond to some o	of the questions submitted by the c	due date and time as sta	ited in the solicitation. The		
questions and ansv	vers are attached to this Addendur	m. All other questions w	vill be responded to at a later date.		
Attachment: Addendum 03	Questions and Answers				
http://www.mmd.admin.st	tate.mn.us/xls/29720Addendum3.	QandA.xlsx			
Except as modified, all the	terms and conditions of the solicita	ation remain in full force	e and effect.		
This addendum is hereby in	ncorporated into the RFP.				
,					
COMPANY NAME:		SIGNATURE:			
DATE:	F	PRINTED NAME:			
	7	TITLE.			
		TITLE:			



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600 Fax: 651.297.3996

SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

Addendum No.:	02	Date of Addendum:	December 17, 2020		
Due Date, Time:	January 11, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT	Revised Date, Time:	January 31, 2021, 3:00 PM, CT		
Master Agreement		-	Department of Administration		
Administrator	Andy Doran	Agency:	Office of State Procurement		
Web Registration No.:	Web Registration No.: 29720				
Title: Computer Equip	ment (Desktops, Laptops, Servers,	and Storage including r	elated Peripherals & Services)		
	SCOPE OF A	<u>DDENDUM</u>			
The purpose of this Addeng	dum 02 is to:				
1. Revise the Due Dat	e and Time to be January 31, 2021	, 3:00 PM CT; and			
2. Respond to some o	of the questions submitted by the c	due date and time as sta	ated in the solicitation. The		
questions and ansv	vers are attached to this Addendur	m. All other questions w	vill be responded to at a later date.		
Attachment: Addendum 02					
http://www.mmd.admin.st	<u>tate.mn.us/xls/29720Addendum2.</u>	QandA.xlsx			
Except as modified, all the	terms and conditions of the solicita	ation remain in full forc	e and effect.		
This addendum is hereby in	ncorporated into the RFP.				
,	•				
COMPANY NAME:	S	SIGNATURE:			
DATE:	F	PRINTED NAME:			
	7	TITLE:			



Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 Voice: 651.296.2600 Fax: 651.297.3996

SOLICITATION ADDENDUM

Addendum No.:	1	Date of Addendum:	December 10, 2020
Due Date, Time:	January 11, 2021	Revised Date, Time:	
Master Agreement		•	Department of Administration
Administrator	Andy Doran	Agency:	Office of State Procurement
Web Registration No.:	29720		
Title: Computer Equipm	nent (Desktops, Laptops, Servers, a	and Storage including r	elated Peripherals & Services)
	SCOPE OF AL	<u>DDENDUM</u>	
The purpose of this Addend	lum 1 is to:		
the webinar. The lis	ne optional Pre-Proposal Webinar let of people who registered for the e-Proposal Webinar are all attache	Webinar, the Microsof	•
	f the questions submitted by the d vers are attached to this Addendur		eted in the solicitation. The vill be responded to at a later date.
Attachments:			
	stration List and Attendee List: ate.mn.us/pdf/29720Pre-Proposal	MeetingRegistration 8./	Attendance ndf
	ate.mm.as/pai/25/2011e 110posai	WeetingRegistrationer	acteridance.pur
Pre-Proposal Recording:	ata wax ua kiida aa /Dra Dran aaa IMal	hinauDa aa udina usu 4	
	ate.mn.us/videos/PreProposalWel et Explorer or Firefox (may not laur		
Questions and Answers:			
	ate.mn.us/pdf/29720Addendum1.	Q&A.pdf	
Except as modified, all the t	erms and conditions of the solicita	ation remain in full force	e and effect.
This addendum is hereby in	corporated into the RFP.		
COMPANY NAME:	S	IGNATURE:	
DATE:	P	PRINTED NAME:	
		TTLE:	

EXHIBIT B

Original Government Contract





NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement No.:

23004

This Contract is between the State of Minnesota, acting through its Commissioner of Administration ("Lead State") and Dell Inc., whose designated business address is One Dell Way, Round Rock, TX 78682 ("Contractor"). State and Contractor may be referred to jointly as "Parties."

Recitals

- The State of Minnesota, Department of Administration, Office of State Procurement, on behalf of the State of Minnesota and NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Procurement Program ("NASPO ValuePoint") issued a solicitation to establish Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement(s) ("Contract") with qualified manufacturers for Computer Equipment (Desktops, Laptops, Tablets, Servers, and Storage, including related Peripherals & Services);
- 2. Contractor provided a response to the Solicitation indicating its interest in and ability to provide the goods or services requested in the Solicitation; and
- 3. Subsequent to an evaluation in accordance with the terms of the Solicitation and negotiation, the Parties desire to enter into a contract; and
- 4. All authorized governmental entities in any state or participating US Territory are welcome to use the resulting Master Agreement through NASPO ValuePoint with the approval of the State Chief Procurement Official. Upon final award of the overarching Master Agreement, Contractors are able to sign Participating Addendums (PA) at the option of Participating States. Participating States reserve the right to add state specific terms and conditions and modify the scope of the contract in their Participating Addendum as allowed by the Master Agreement.

Accordingly, the Parties agree as follows:

Contract

1. Term of Contract

- a. Effective date. July 1, 2023, or the date the Lead State obtains all required signatures under Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 2, whichever is later.
- b. Expiration date. June 30, 2025. This Master Agreement may be extended for up to an additional 36 months, in increments as determined by the Lead State, through a duly executed amendment.
- c. If, in the judgment of the Lead State, a follow-on, competitive procurement will be unavoidably delayed beyond the planned date of execution of the follow-on master agreement, this Master Agreement may be extended for a reasonable period of time, not to exceed six months. This subsection shall not be deemed to limit the authority of a Lead State under its state law otherwise to negotiate contract extensions.

2. Representations and Warranties

- a. Under Minn. Stat. §§ 15.061 and 16C.03, subd. 3, and other applicable law the Lead State is empowered to engage such assistance as deemed necessary.
- b. Contractor warrants that it is duly qualified and shall perform its obligations under this Master Agreement in accordance with the commercially reasonable standards of care, skill, and diligence in Contractor's industry, trade, or profession, and in accordance with the specifications set forth in this Master Agreement, to the satisfaction of the Lead State.
- c. Contractor warrants that it possesses the legal authority to enter into this Master Agreement and that it has taken all actions required by its procedures, by-laws, and applicable laws to exercise that authority, and to lawfully authorize its undersigned signatory to execute this Master Agreement, or any part thereof, and to bind Contractor to its terms.

3. Awarded Band(s)

The solicitation included three product Bands: Band 1, Personal Computing Devices – Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets; and Band 2, Personal Computing Devices – Non-Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets; and Band 3, Servers and Storage. The Contractor is awarded the following Band(s):

Band 1, Personal Computer Devices – Windows Operating Systems

Band 2, Personal Computer Devices - Non-Windows Operating Systems

Band 3, Servers and Storage

4. Configuration Dollar Limits

The following configuration limits apply to the Master Agreement. Participating Entities may define their configuration limits in their Participating Addendum. The Participating Entity's Chief Procurement Official may increase or decrease the configuration limits, as defined in their Participating Addendum. The Participating Entity will determine with the Contractor how to approve these modifications to the Product and Service Schedule.

The dollar limits identified below are based on a SINGLE computer/system configuration. This is NOT a restriction on the purchase of multiple configurations (e.g., an entity could purchase 10 laptops at \$15,000 each, for a total purchase price of \$150,000).

ITEM	<u>CONFIGURATION</u>
Band One	\$15,000
Band Two	\$15,000
Band Three	\$1,000,000
Peripherals	\$10,000
Services	Addressed in the Participating Addendum

5. Restrictions

The following restrictions apply to the Master Agreement. A Participating Entity may set further restrictions of products in their Participating Addendum. The Participating Entity will determine with the Contractor how to approve these modifications to the Entity's Product and Service Schedule.

a. Software

1. Software is restricted to operating systems and commercial off-the-shelf (COTS) software and is subject to equipment configuration limits.

- 2. Any software purchased must be related to the procurement of equipment.
- 3. Software must be pre-loaded or provided as an electronic link with the initial purchase of equipment, except for the exceptions allowed under Paragraph 5.a.4.
- 4. Software such as middleware which is not always installed on the equipment, but is related to storage and server equipment (Band 3) purchased, is allowed and may be procured after the initial purchase of equipment.

b. General Services

- 1. Services must be related to the procurement of equipment.
- 2. Service limits will be addressed by each State.
- 3. Wireless phone and internet service is not allowed.
- 4. Managed Print Services are not allowed.

c. Cloud Services

- 1. Cloud Services are restricted to Services that function as operating systems and software needed to support or configure hardware purchased under the scope of the contract and is subject to equipment configuration limits.
- 2. Any Cloud Service purchased must be related to the procurement of equipment.

d. Third-Party Products

- 1. Third-Party Products can be offered only in the Bands they have been awarded. All third-party products must meet the definition(s) of the Band(s) in which they are being offered.
- 2. Products manufactured by another Contractor holding a Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement for Computer Equipment cannot be offered unless approved by the Lead State.

e. Additional Product/Services

- 1. Hardware and software required to solely support wide area network (WAN) operation and management are not allowed.
- 2. Lease/Rentals of equipment may be allowed and will be addressed by each State.
- 3. Cellular Phone Equipment is not allowed.
- 4. EPEAT Bronze requirement may be waived, on a State case-by-case basis, if approved by the State's Chief Procurement Officer. EPEAT Bronze requirement does not currently apply to storage.

6. Authorized Representative

a. Master Agreement Administrator. The Master Agreement Administrator designated by NASPO ValuePoint and the State of Minnesota, Department of Administration is Elizabeth Randa, Acquisition Management Specialist.

Elizabeth Randa, Acquisition Management Specialist Department of Administration Office of State Procurement 112 Administration Building 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155

E-mail: elizabeth.randa@state.mn.us

Phone: 651.201.3122

Phone: 512.542.1237

b. Contractor's Authorized Representative. The Contractor's Authorized Representative is Ashley Salinas, SLED Contract Program Manager.

Ashley Salinas, SLED Contract Program Manager Dell Inc. One Dell Way Round Rock, TX 78682 A.Salinas@dell.com

If the Contractor's Authorized Representative changes at any time during this Contract, the Contractor must immediately notify the Lead State.

7. Notices

If one party is required to give notice to the other under the Master Agreement, such notice shall be in writing and shall be effective upon receipt. Delivery may be by certified United States mail or by hand, in which case a signed receipt shall be obtained. An email shall constitute sufficient notice, provided the receipt of the transmission is confirmed by the receiving party. Either party must notify the other of a change in address for notification purposes. All notices to the Lead State shall be addressed to the Master Agreement Administrator.

8. Exhibits

The following Exhibits are attached and incorporated into this Contract. In the event of a conflict between the terms of this Contract and its Exhibits, or between Exhibits, the order of precedence is first the Contract, and then in the following order:

Exhibit A: NASPO ValuePoint Terms and Conditions

Exhibit B: Minnesota Terms and Conditions

Exhibit C: Requirement Exhibit D: Price Schedule

Exhibit E: Contractor Terms and Conditions

9. Survival of Terms:

The following clauses survive the expiration or cancellation of this Master Agreement: Indemnification; State Audits; Government Data Practices and Intellectual Property; Publicity and Endorsement; Governing Law, Jurisdiction, and Venue; and Data Disclosure. Any other Contract term that states it shall survive, shall survive.

10. Entire Agreement

This Contract and any written addenda thereto constitute the entire agreement of the parties to the Master Agreement.

1. Contractor

The Contractor certifies that the appropriate person(s) have executed the Contract on behalf of the Contractor as required by applicable articles, bylaws, resolutions, or ordinances.

With delegated authority

Print name: Katherine Castillo

DocuSigned by:

Signature: |

katherine Castillo

Title: ParaLegal Advisor

Date: 7/14/2023

Print name: Elizabeth M. Randa

DocuSigned by:

2. State Agency

Signature: Elizabeth M. Kanda

Title: Acquisition Management Specialist 7/14/2023

3. Commissioner of Administration
As delegated to The Office of State Procurement

Print name: Andy Doran

Signature: Andy Dora

-DocuSigned by:

Title: IT Acquisitions Supervisor Date: 7/14/2023

Exhibit A: NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Terms and Conditions

1. Conflict of Terms/Order of Precedence.

- a. Any order placed under this Master Agreement shall consist of the following documents:
 - 1. A Participating Entity's Participating Addendum ("PA");
 - 2. Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement, as negotiated, including all exhibits;
 - 3. A Purchase Order issued against a PA (terms and conditions set forth in a Purchase Order will not be deemed to modify, diminish, or otherwise derogate the terms and conditions set forth in a Participating Addendum or Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement).
- b. These documents shall be read to be consistent and complementary. Any conflict among these documents shall be resolved by giving priority to these documents in the order listed above. Contractor terms and conditions that apply to this Master Agreement are only those that are expressly accepted by the Lead State and must be in writing and attached to this Master Agreement as an Exhibit or Attachment.
- c. Contractor terms and conditions may be incorporated if expressly accepted by the Lead State and attached to the Master Agreement as an Exhibit or Attachment, or by written reference (including reference to information contained in a URL or referenced policy). A written reference, including by URL or policy, is incorporated into the Master Agreement expressly identifies that reference. URL's must be explicitly referenced to be incorporated into the Master Agreement. URL's contained within the URL's that are explicitly referenced are not incorporated into the Master Agreement. Any Contractor term or condition incorporated by URL or written reference applies to this Master Agreement only to the extent such term or condition is not prohibited by applicable law. Any change to information contained in a URL or referenced policy will not affect any financial obligation, place any additional material obligation on an ordering entity, or materially diminish an ordering entity's ability to use the product or service.
- d. A written Master Agreement (which may include the contents of the RFP and selected portions of Contractor's response incorporated therein by reference) will constitute the entire agreement of the parties to the Master Agreement. No other terms and conditions shall apply, including terms and conditions listed in the Contractor's response to the RFP, or terms listed or referenced on the Contractor's website not otherwise incorporated into the Master Agreement, in the Contractor quotation/sales order, or in similar documents subsequently provided by the Contractor.
- e. Additional Agreement with NASPO. Upon request by NASPO ValuePoint, awarded Contractor shall enter into a direct contractual relationship with NASPO ValuePoint related to Contractor's obligations to NASPO ValuePoint under the terms of the Master Agreement, the terms of which shall be the same or similar (and not less favorable) than the terms set forth in the Master Agreement.

2. Definitions.

- a. **Acceptance** is defined by the applicable commercial code, except Acceptance shall not occur before the completion of delivery in accordance with the Order, installation if required, and a reasonable time for inspection of the Product.
- b. **Accessory** means a product that enhances the user experience but does not extend the functionality of the computer (e.g. mouse pad or monitor stand). For the purposes of this Contract, accessories are considered peripherals.

c	as a Service (_aaS) refers to any good provided in a subscription-based model that is defined in the
industry as	s " as a Service". Examples are "Software as a Service", "Infrastructure as a Service", and "Storage as
a Service",	, and shall follow the NIST definitions of those services as a Service are permitted only when they
meet the r	estrictions found in Paragraph 5.c, above.

- d. **Band** means a category of products. There are three product bands which may be awarded through this Contract. Each product band includes related peripherals and services.
- e. **Components** are the parts that make up a computer configuration.
- f. **Contractor** means the person or entity delivering Products or performing services under the terms and conditions set forth in this Master Agreement.
- g. **Configuration** means the combination of hardware and software components that make up the total functioning system.
- h. Customer (see Purchasing Entity).
- i. **Desktop** means a personal computer intended for regular use at a single location. A desktop computer typically comes in several units connected together during installation: (1) the processor, 2) display monitor, and 3) input devices usually a keyboard and a mouse. Desktops, including desktop virtualization endpoints such as zero and thin clients, are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this Contract.
- j. **Embedded Software** means one or more software applications which permanently reside on a computing device.
- k. **Energy Star®** is a voluntary energy efficiency program sponsored by the U.S. Environmental Protection Agency. The Energy Star program makes it easy to identify energy efficient computers by labeling products that deliver the same or better performance as comparable models while using less energy and saving money. For additional information on the Energy Star program, including product specifications and a list of qualifying products, visit the Energy Star website at http://www.energystar.gov.
- I. **EPEAT** is a type-1 ecolabel for identifying and purchasing sustainable IT products. EPEAT-registered products must meet sustainability criteria detailed in voluntary consensus-based standards that are free and publicly available on the Green Electronics Council's website at www.greenelectronicscouncil.org. Products are classified as Bronze, Silver, or Gold based on meeting criteria that address the life cycle of the products. Product life cycle includes material extraction, hazardous substance reduction, end-of-life management, packaging, and corporate sustainability. Only products listed as Active in the online EPEAT Registry are considered to meet the EPEAT criteria.
- m. **FOB Destination** means that shipping charges are included in the price of the item and the shipped item becomes the legal property and responsibility of the receiver when it reaches its destination unless there is acceptance testing required.
- n. **FOB Inside Delivery** means that shipping charges are included in the price of the item, and that the shipped item becomes the legal property and responsibility of the receiver when it reaches the inside delivery point, which is beyond the front door or loading dock. FOB Inside Delivery is a special shipping arrangement that may include additional fees payable by the Purchasing Entity. FOB Inside Delivery must be annotated on the Purchasing Entity ordering document.

- o. **Intellectual Property** means any and all patents, copyrights, service marks, trademarks, trade secrets, trade names, patentable inventions, or other similar proprietary rights, in tangible or intangible form, and all rights, title, and interest therein.
- p. **Laptop** means a personal computer for mobile use. A laptop includes a display, keyboard, point device such as a touchpad, and speakers in a single unit. A laptop can be used away from an outlet using a rechargeable battery. Laptops include notebooks, ultrabooks, netbooks, Zero and thin client devices, and computers with mobile operating systems. Laptops are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this Contract.
- q. Lead State means the State centrally administering any resulting Master Agreement(s).
- r. **Mandatory Requirement** is a requirement that the failure to meet results in the rejection of the responder's proposal unless all responders are unable to meet the mandatory requirement. The terms "must" and "shall" identify a mandatory requirement. Any objection to a mandatory requirement should be identified by responders in the Question and Answer period.
- s. **Manufacturer** means a company that, as one of its primary business functions, designs, assembles, owns the trademark/patent for, and markets branded computer equipment.
- t. **Master Agreement** means the underlying agreement executed by and between the Lead State, acting on behalf of NASPO ValuePoint, and the Contractor.
- u. **Middleware** means the software "glue" that helps programs and databases (which may be on different computers) work together. The most basic function of middleware is to enable communication between different pieces of software.
- v. **NASPO ValuePoint** is a division of the National Association of State Procurement Officials ("NASPO"), a 501(c)(3) limited liability company. NASPO ValuePoint facilitates administration of the NASPO cooperative group contracting consortium of state chief procurement officials for the benefit of state departments, institutions, agencies, and political subdivisions and other eligible entities (i.e., colleges, school districts, counties, cities, some nonprofit organizations, etc.) for all states, the District of Columbia, and territories of the United States. NASPO ValuePoint is identified in the Master Agreement as the recipient of reports and may perform contract administration functions relating to collecting and receiving reports as well as other contract administration functions as assigned by the Lead State.
- w. **Option** means an item of equipment or a feature that may be chosen as an addition to or replacement for standard equipment and features.
- x. **Order or Purchase Order** means any purchase order, sales order, contract or other method used by a Purchasing Entity to order the Products.
- y. **Participating Addendum** means a bilateral agreement executed by a Contractor and a Participating Entity incorporating this Master Agreement and any other additional Participating Entity specific language or other requirements, e.g. ordering procedures specific to the Participating Entity, other terms and conditions.
- z. **Participating Entity** means a state (as well as the District of Columbia and U.S territories), city, county, district, other political subdivision of a State, or a nonprofit organization under the laws of some states properly authorized to enter into a Participating Addendum, that has executed a Participating Addendum.
- aa. Participating State means a state that has executed a Participating Addendum.

- bb. **Partner** means a company, authorized by the Contractor and approved by the Participating Entity, to provide marketing, support, or other authorized contract services on behalf of the Contractor in accordance with the terms and conditions of the Contractor's Master Agreement. A Partner may include, but is not limited to, an agent, subcontractor, fulfillment partner, channel partner, business partner, servicing subcontractor, etc.
- cc. **Peripherals** means any hardware product that can be attached to, added within, or networked with personal computers, servers, or storage. Peripherals extend the functionality of a computer without modifying the core components of the system.
- dd. **Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount** means a contractual volume discount based on dollars in a single purchase order or combination of purchase orders submitted at one time by a Participating Entity or multiple entities conducting a cooperative purchase.
- ee. **Premium Savings Package(s) (PSP)** are deeply discounted standard configurations available to Purchasing Entities using the Master Agreement. NASPO ValuePoint reserves the right to expand and modify the PSP throughout the life of the contract. For more information see: https://www.naspovaluepoint.org/portfolio/57/.
- ff. **Product** means any equipment, software (including embedded software), documentation, service, or other deliverable supplied or created by the Contractor pursuant to this Master Agreement. The term Products, supplies and services, and products and services are used interchangeably in these terms and conditions.
- gg. **Purchasing Entity** means a state (including the District of Columbia and U.S. territories), city, county, district, other political subdivision of a state, other public entities domestic or foreign, and nonprofit organizations under the laws of some states if authorized by a Participating Addendum, that issues a Purchase Order under the terms of the Master Agreement, or any Participating Addendum thereto, and becomes financially committed to the purchase.
- hh. **Ruggedized** means equipment specifically designed to operate reliably in harsh usage environments and conditions, such as strong vibrations, extreme temperatures, and wet or dusty conditions. Ruggedized equipment may be proposed under the band that most closely fits the equipment being proposed.
- ii. **Server** means computer hardware dedicated to run one or more services or applications (as a host) to serve the needs of the users of other computers on a network. Servers may be either physical or virtual. Servers, including server appliances, are included in Band 3 of this Contract. Server appliances have their hardware and software preconfigured by the manufacturer, and include embedded networking components such as those found in blade chassis systems.
- jj. **Services** are broadly classified as installation or de-installation, maintenance, support, training, migration, and optimization of products offered or supplied under the Master Agreement. These classifications of services may include, but are not limited to: warranty services, maintenance, installation, de-installation, factory integration (software or hardware components), asset management, recycling or disposal, training and certification, pre-implementation design, disaster recovery planning and support, service desk or helpdesk, imaging, and any other directly related technical support service required for the effective operation of a product offered or supplied. Contractors may offer limited professional services related ONLY to the equipment and configuration of the equipment purchased through the resulting contracts.

EACH PARTICIPATING ENTITY WILL DETERMINE RESTRICTIONS AND NEGOTIATE TERMS FOR SERVICES THROUGH THEIR PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM.

kk. **Software** means, for the purposes of this Contract, commercial operating off the shelf machine-readable object code instructions including microcode, firmware, and operating system software that meet the restrictions specified

in Paragraph 5.a. "Software" applies to all parts of software and documentation, including new releases, updates, and modifications of software.

- II. **Storage** means hardware or a virtual appliance with the ability to store large amounts of data. Storage, including SAN switching necessary for the proper functioning of storage equipment, is included in Band 3 of this Contract
- mm. **Storage Area Network (SAN)** is a high-speed special-purpose network (or subnetwork) that interconnects different kinds of data storage devices with associated data servers on behalf of a larger network of users.
- nn. **Tablet** means a mobile computer that provides a touchscreen that acts as the primary means of control. Tablets, including notebooks, ultrabooks, and netbooks with touchscreen capabilities, are included in Bands 1 and 2 of this Contract.
- oo. **Takeback Program** means the Contractor's process for accepting the return of equipment or other products at the end of the product's life.
- pp. **Thin Client** is a lightweight computer that has been optimized for establishing a remote connection with a server-based computing environment.
- qq. **Third Party Product** is a good sold by the Contractor that is manufactured by another company. Third Party Products are intended to enhance or supplement a Contractor's own product line, and are not intended to represent more than a third of any Contractor's total sales under this Master Agreement.
- rr. Upgrade means the replacement of existing software, hardware, or hardware component with a newer version.
- ss. Warranty means the Manufacturer's general warranty tied to the product at the time of purchase.
- tt. Wide Area Network (WAN) is a data network that serves users across a broad geographic area and often uses transmission devices provided by common carriers.

3. Term of the Master Agreement.

- a. The initial term of this Master Agreement is for 2 years. This Master Agreement may be extended beyond the original contract period for 36 additional months at the Lead State's discretion and by mutual agreement and upon review of requirements of Participating Entities, current market conditions, and Contractor performance.
- b. The Master Agreement may be extended for a reasonable period of time if in the judgment of the Lead State a follow-on, competitive procurement will be unavoidably delayed (despite good faith efforts) beyond the planned date of execution of the follow-on master agreement. This subsection shall not be deemed to limit the authority of a Lead State under its state law otherwise to negotiate contract extensions.

4. Amendments.

The terms of this Master Agreement shall not be waived, altered, modified, supplemented or amended in any manner whatsoever without a written amendment to the Master Agreement executed by the Contractor and Lead State as required by law. Master Agreement amendments will be negotiated by the Lead State with the Contractor whenever necessary to address changes in the terms and conditions, costs, timetable, or increased or decreased scope of work.

5. Participants and Scope.

a. Canadian Participation. Subject to the approval of Contractor, any Canadian provincial government or provincially funded entity in Alberta, British Columbia, Manitoba, New Brunswick, Newfoundland and Labrador,

Nova Scotia, Ontario, Prince Edward Island, Quebec, or Saskatchewan, and territorial government or territorial government funded entity in the Northwest Territories, Nunavut, or Yukon, including municipalities, universities, community colleges, school boards, health authorities, housing authorities, agencies, boards, commissions, and crown corporations, may be eligible to use Contractor's Master Agreement. Canadian Participation. Subject to the approval of the Contractor, any Canadian provincial government or provincially funded entity in Ontario, Quebec, Nova Scotia, New Brunswick, Manitoba, British Columbia, Prince Edward Island, Saskatchewan, Alberta, Northwest Territories, Nunavut, Yukon, and Newfoundland and Labrador, including municipalities, universities, community colleges, school boards, health authorities, housing authorities, agencies, boards, commissions, and crown corporations, may be eligible to use Contractor's Master Agreement.

- b. Contractor may not deliver Products under this Master Agreement until a Participating Addendum acceptable to the Participating Entity and Contractor is executed. The NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Terms and Conditions are applicable to any Order by a Participating Entity (and other Purchasing Entities covered by their Participating Addendum), except to the extent altered, modified, supplemented or amended by a Participating Addendum. By way of illustration and not limitation, this authority may apply to unique delivery and invoicing requirements, confidentiality requirements, defaults on Orders, governing law and venue relating to Orders by a Participating Entity, indemnification, and insurance requirements. Statutory or constitutional requirements relating to availability of funds may require specific language in some Participating Addenda in order to comply with applicable law. The expectation is that these alterations, modifications, supplements, or amendments will be addressed in the Participating Addendum or, with the consent of the Purchasing Entity and Contractor, may be included in the ordering document (e.g. purchase order or contract) used by the Purchasing Entity to place the Order.
- c. Use of specific NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreements by state agencies, political subdivisions and other Participating Entities (including cooperatives) authorized by individual state's statutes to use state contracts are subject to the approval of the respective State Chief Procurement Official. Issues of interpretation and eligibility for participation are solely within the authority of the respective State Chief Procurement Official.
- d. Obligations under this Master Agreement are limited to those Participating Entities who have signed a Participating Addendum and Purchasing Entities within the scope of those Participating Addenda. States or other entities permitted to participate may use an informal competitive process to determine which Master Agreements to participate in through execution of a Participating Addendum. Financial obligations of Participating Entities who are states are limited to the orders placed by the departments or other state agencies and institutions having available funds. Participating Entities who are states incur no financial obligations on behalf of other Purchasing Entities. Contractor shall email a fully executed PDF copy of each Participating Addendum to PA@naspovaluepoint.org to support documentation of participation and posting in appropriate data bases.
- e. NASPO and NASPO ValuePoint are not parties to the Master Agreement.
- f. Participating Addenda shall not be construed to amend the following provisions in this Master Agreement between the Lead State and Contractor that prescribe NASPO ValuePoint requirements: Term of the Master Agreement; Amendments; Participants and Scope; Administrative Fee; NASPO ValuePoint Summary and Detailed Usage Reports; NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Program Marketing and Performance Review; Right to Publish; Price and Rate Guarantee Period; and Individual Customers. Any such language shall be void and of no effect.
- g. Participating Entities who are not states may under some circumstances sign their own Participating Addendum, subject to the consent to participation by the Chief Procurement Official of the state where the Participating Entity is located. Coordinate requests for such participation through NASPO ValuePoint. Any permission to participate through execution of a Participating Addendum is not a determination that procurement authority exists in the Participating Entity; they must ensure that they have the requisite procurement authority to execute a Participating Addendum.

h. Resale. "Resale" means any payment in exchange for transfer of tangible goods, software, or assignment of the right to services. Subject to any specific conditions included in the Master Agreement, or as explicitly permitted in a Participating Addendum, Purchasing Entities may not resell Products (the definition of which includes services that are deliverables). Absent any such condition or explicit permission, this limitation does not prohibit: payments by employees of a Purchasing Entity for Products; sales of Products to the general public as surplus property; and fees associated with inventory transactions with other governmental or nonprofit entities and consistent with a Purchasing Entity's laws and regulations. Any sale or transfer permitted by this subsection must be consistent with license rights granted for use of intellectual property.

6. Individual Customers.

Except to the extent modified by a Participating Addendum, each Purchasing Entity shall follow the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement and applicable Participating Addendum and will have the same rights and responsibilities for their purchases as the Lead State has in the Master Agreement, including but not limited to, any indemnity or right to recover any costs as such right is defined in the Master Agreement and applicable Participating Addendum for their purchases. Each Purchasing Entity will be responsible for its own charges, fees, and liabilities. The Contractor will apply the charges and invoice each Purchasing Entity individually.

7. Independent Contractor.

The Contractor is an independent contractor. Contractor shall have no authorization, express or implied, to bind the Lead State, Participating States, other Participating Entities, or Purchasing Entities to any agreements, settlements, liability or understanding whatsoever, and agrees not to hold itself out as an agent except as expressly set forth herein or as expressly agreed in any Participating Addendum.

8. Contracting Personnel.

Contractor must provide adequate contracting personnel to assist states with the completing and processing Participating Addenda. It is preferred that each Contractor be able to provide each Participating Entity with a primary contact person for that Participating Entity.

9. Changes in Contractor Representation.

The Contractor must notify the Lead State of changes in the Contractor's key administrative personnel managing the Master Agreement in writing within 10 calendar days of the change. The Lead State reserves the right to approve changes in key personnel, as identified in the Contractor's proposal. Such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. The Contractor agrees to propose replacement key personnel having substantially equal or better education, training, and experience as was possessed by the key person proposed and evaluated in the Contractor's proposal.

10. Contractor Verification.

The Contractor is responsible for delivering products or performing services under the terms and conditions set forth in the Master Agreement. The Contractor must ensure partners utilized in the performance of this contract adhere to all the terms and conditions. The term Partner will be utilized in naming the relationship a Contractor has with another company to market and sell under the contract. Participating Entities will have final determination/approval if a Partner may be approved for that state in the role identified by the Contractor.

11. Contractor Performance Meeting.

An annual performance meeting may be held each year with the NASPO ValuePoint Sourcing Team. Historically performance meetings have been held in Minnesota, but the Lead State may hold the meetings in person or virtually at the Lead State's discretion.

All contractors that are invited to participate must send their Primary Account Representative, unless an exception is granted in writing by the Lead State. It is possible that not all contractors will be invited to participate in a performance meeting.

12. Laws and Regulations.

Any and all Products offered and furnished shall comply fully with all applicable Federal, State, and local laws and regulations, including Minn. Stat. § 181.59 prohibiting discrimination and business registration requirements of the Office of the Minnesota Secretary of State. To the extent any purchase is subject to Federal Acquisition Regulations, as may be required by the terms of a federal grant, a Participating Entity and Contractor may include in their Participating Addendum terms that reflect such a requirement.

13. Price and Rate Guarantee Period.

All minimum discounts and rates must be guaranteed for the initial term of the Master Agreement. Following the initial Master Agreement period, any request for minimum discount or rate adjustment must be for a guarantee period as offered by the Contractor, and must be made at least 30 days prior to the effective date. Requests for minimum discount or rate adjustment must include sufficient documentation supporting the request. Any adjustment or amendment to the Master Agreement shall not be effective unless approved by the Lead State. No retroactive adjustments to minimum discounts or rates will be allowed.

14. Premium Savings Package Program.

The Lead State reserves the right to create a Premium Savings Package Program (PSP) as outlined in the Definitions, Paragraph 2.ee of Exhibit A. Participation by Contractor is voluntary. The details and commitments of the PSP will be detailed as a part of any request for Contractor to participate.

15. Services.

Participating Entities must explicitly allow services in their Participating Addenda for the approved services to be allowed under that Participating Addendum. The Participating Addendum by each Participating Entity will address service agreement terms and related travel.

16. Ordering.

- a. Master Agreement and purchase order numbers shall be clearly shown on all acknowledgments, packing slips, invoices, and on all correspondence.
- b. Purchasing Entities may define entity or project-specific requirements and informally compete the requirement among companies having a Master Agreement on an "as needed" basis. This procedure may also be used when requirements are aggregated or other firm commitments may be made to achieve reductions in pricing. This procedure may be modified in Participating Addenda and adapted to the Purchasing Entity's rules and policies. The Purchasing Entity may in its sole discretion determine which Master Agreement Contractors should be solicited for a quote. The Purchasing Entity may select the quote that it considers most advantageous, cost and other factors considered.
- c. Each Purchasing Entity will identify and utilize its own appropriate purchasing procedure and documentation. Contractor is expected to become familiar with the Purchasing Entities' rules, policies, and procedures regarding the ordering of supplies or services contemplated by this Master Agreement.
- d. Contractor shall not begin work without a valid Purchase Order or other appropriate commitment document under the law of the Purchasing Entity.
- e. Orders may be placed consistent with the terms of this Master Agreement during the term of the Master Agreement.
- f. All Orders pursuant to this Master Agreement, at a minimum, shall include:
 - 1. The service description or supplies being delivered;

- 2. The place and requested time of delivery;
- 3. A billing address;
- 4. The name, phone number, and address of the Purchasing Entity representative;
- 5. The price per hour or other pricing elements consistent with this Master Agreement and the contractor's proposal;
- 6. A ceiling amount of the order for services being ordered;
- 7. The Master Agreement identifier; and
- 8. Statement of Work, when applicable.
- g. All communications concerning administration of Orders placed shall be furnished solely to the authorized purchasing agent within the Purchasing Entity's purchasing office, or to such other individual identified in writing in the Order.
- h. Orders must be placed pursuant to this Master Agreement prior to the termination date thereof, but may have a delivery date or performance period up to 120 days past the then-current termination date of this Master Agreement. Contractor is reminded that financial obligations of Purchasing Entities payable after the current applicable fiscal year are contingent upon agency funds for that purpose being appropriated, budgeted, and otherwise made available.
- i. Notwithstanding the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Master Agreement, Contractor agrees to perform in accordance with the terms of any Orders then outstanding at the time of such expiration or termination. Contractor shall not honor any Orders placed after the expiration, cancellation or termination of this Master Agreement, or otherwise inconsistent with its terms. Orders from any separate indefinite quantity, task orders, or other form of indefinite delivery order arrangement priced against this Master Agreement may not be placed after the expiration or termination of this Master Agreement, notwithstanding the term of any such indefinite delivery order agreement.

17. Trade-In.

Any trade-in programs offered during the life of the Master Agreement must be approved by the Lead State. Participating Entities must explicitly allow trade-in programs in their Participating Addenda for the approved programs to be allowed under that Participating Addendum. Trade-in value shall not decrease the discounts offered through the Master Agreement.

18. Shipping and Delivery.

a. The prices are the delivered price to any Purchasing Entity for standard 3-5 day shipping. If an order is requested with expedited shipping, the Contractor must provide a firm "not to exceed" price for the expedited shipping on the quote. All deliveries shall be FOB Destination, freight pre-paid, with all transportation and handling charges paid by the Contractor. Responsibility and liability for loss or damage shall remain the Contractor's until final inspection and acceptance when responsibility shall pass to the Purchasing Entity except as to latent defects, fraud and Contractor's warranty obligations. Any order for less than the specified amount is to be shipped with the freight prepaid and added as a separate item on the invoice. Any portion of an Order to be shipped without transportation charges that is back ordered shall be shipped without charge.

- b. Specific delivery instructions, including FOB Inside Delivery, will be noted on the order form or Purchase Order. Any damage to the building interior, scratched walls, damage to the freight elevator, etc., will be the responsibility of the Contractor. If damage does occur, it is the responsibility of the Contractor to promptly notify the Purchasing Entity placing the Order.
- c. All products must be delivered in the manufacturer's standard package. Costs shall include all packing and crating charges. Cases shall be of durable construction, good condition, properly labeled and suitable in every respect for storage and handling of contents. Each shipment shall be marked with the Purchasing Entity's Purchase Order number and other information sufficient for the Purchasing Entity to properly identify the shipment as outlined in the Participating Addendum of the Purchasing Entity.

19. Inspection and Acceptance.

- a. Where the Master Agreement, a Participating Addendum, or an Order does not otherwise specify a process for inspection and Acceptance, this section governs. This section is not intended to limit rights and remedies under the applicable commercial code.
- b. Acceptance. Purchasing Entity shall determine whether all Products and Services delivered meet the Contractor's published specifications. No payment shall be made for any Products or Services until the Purchasing Entity has accepted the Products or Services. The Purchasing Entity will make every effort to notify the Contractor within thirty (30) calendar days following delivery of non-acceptance of a Product or completion of Service. In the event that the Contractor has not been notified within 30 calendar days from delivery of Product or completion of Service, the Product and Services will be deemed accepted on the 31st day after delivery of Product or completion of Services. Failure to reject upon receipt, however, does not relieve the Contractor of liability for latent or hidden material defects. Acceptance of such goods may be revoked in accordance with the provisions of the applicable commercial code, and the Contractor is liable for any resulting expense incurred by the Purchasing Entity related to the preparation and shipping of Product rejected and returned, or for which Acceptance is revoked. The warranty period shall begin upon Acceptance. If the parties agree to acceptance testing, the terms of subsection (c), below, apply.
- c. Acceptance Testing. The Purchasing Entity and the Contractor shall determine if Acceptance Testing is applicable and required for the purchase. "Acceptance Testing" means the process for ascertaining that the Product meets the standard of performance prior to Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity.
 - 1. The Acceptance Testing period shall be thirty (30) calendar days starting from the day after the Product is delivered or, if installed, the day after the Product is installed and Contractor certifies that the Product is ready for Acceptance Testing. If the Product does not meet the standard of performance during the initial period of Acceptance Testing, Purchasing Entity may, at its discretion, continue Acceptance Testing on a day-to-day basis until the standard of performance is met. Upon rejection, the Contractor will have fifteen (15) calendar days to cure the standard of performance issue(s). If after the cure period, the Product still has not met the standard of performance, the Purchasing Entity may, at its option: (a) declare Contractor to be in breach and terminate the Order; (b) demand replacement Product from Contractor at no additional cost to Purchasing Entity; or, (c) continue the cure period for an additional time period agreed upon by the Purchasing Entity and the Contractor.
 - 2. No Product shall be deemed Accepted and no charges shall be paid until the standard of performance is met. Products that do not meet specifications may be rejected. Failure to reject upon receipt, however, does not relieve the Contractor of liability for material (nonconformity that substantially impairs value) latent or hidden defects subsequently revealed when goods are put to use. Acceptance of such goods may be revoked in accordance with the provisions of the applicable commercial code, and the Contractor is liable for any resulting expense incurred by the Purchasing Entity related to the preparation and shipping of Product rejected and returned, or for which Acceptance is revoked. The warranty period shall begin upon Acceptance.

d. If any services do not conform to contract requirements, the Purchasing Entity may require the Contractor to perform the services again in conformity with contract requirements, at no increase in Order amount. When defects cannot be corrected by re-performance, the Purchasing Entity may require the Contractor to take necessary action to ensure that future performance conforms to contract requirements; and reduce the contract price to reflect the reduced value of services performed.

20. Title of Product.

- a. Definitions. For purposes of this section, the following terms are defined as follows:
 - 1. "Deliverables" means any reports, analyses, scripts, code, or other work results that Contractor delivers to Purchasing Entity within the framework of fulfilling Contractor's obligations to Purchasing Entity.
 - 2. "Equipment" means Contractor-branded hardware products.
 - 3. "Proprietary Rights" means all patents, copyrights, trademarks, trade secrets, and other intellectual property rights of a party.
- b. Upon Acceptance by the Purchasing Entity, Contractor shall convey to Purchasing Entity title to the Equipment free and clear of all liens, encumbrances, or other security interests. Purchasing Entity's rights to use the software delivered by Contractor are governed by the terms of the applicable end-user license agreement. Unless different terms have been agreed between the parties, the terms posted on www.dell.com/eula (the "EULA") shall apply. Contractor's EULA must be made available to Purchasing Entities for review prior to negotiating a Participating Addendum or the issuance of an Order and shall meet or exceed the terms set forth in this Master Agreement. Unless expressly otherwise agreed, microcode, firmware or operating system software required to enable the Equipment with which it is shipped to perform its basic or enhanced functions, is licensed for use solely on such Equipment.
- c. Contractor grants Purchasing Entity a non-exclusive, non-transferable, irrevocable license to use (without the right to sublicense) the Deliverables provided by Contractor for Purchasing Entity's internal business and governmental purposes, only and solely in accordance with the applicable service specification and subject to this Master Agreement. The grant of this license is subject to Purchasing Entity's compliance with the terms of this Master Agreement and Purchasing Entity's payment of applicable amounts due. Such license shall be perpetual unless granted pursuant to the purchase of a subscription, in which case the license shall be for the term of the subscription. Purchasing Entity may authorize its service providers to use the Deliverables, but solely on Purchasing Entity's behalf, solely for Purchasing Entity's internal business or governmental purposes, and Purchasing Entity shall be responsible for service provider's compliance with these restrictions. This section shall not affect a Purchasing Entity's right to transfer ownership of a product, and transfer, if permitted by Contractor or its licensors, licenses associated with such product, to another individual or entity as part of the Purchasing Entity's surplus program or sale of used products to employees or former employees.
- d. Contractor reserves for itself all Proprietary Rights that it has not expressly granted to Purchasing Entity herein. The license granted in this clause 20(c) does not apply to: (i) Equipment; (ii) Contractor-branded generally available software; or (ii) items licensed or otherwise provided under a separate agreement. Contractor is not limited in developing, using, or marketing services or products that are similar to the Deliverables or Professional Services provided hereunder, any service, specification, or, subject to Contractor's confidentiality obligations to Purchasing Entity, in using the Deliverables or performing similar Professional Services for any other projects. Notwithstanding the previous, Contractor's use of Deliverables created specifically for and paid for by a Purchasing Entity is subject to Purchasing Entity approval.

- e. Any and all licensing, maintenance, cloud services, or order specific agreements referenced within the terms and conditions of this Master Agreement are agreed to only to the extent that the terms do not conflict with the terms of the Participating Addendum or the terms of the Master Agreement as incorporated into the Participating Addendum, and to the extent the terms are not in conflict with the Participating Entity's applicable laws. In the event of a conflict in the terms and conditions, the conflict shall be resolved as detailed in the Order of Precedence defined herein. Notwithstanding the foregoing, licensing, maintenance, cloud services agreements, or order specific agreements may be further negotiated by the Contractor or, if applicable, the Licensor, and the potential Purchasing Entity, provided the contractual documents are duly executed in writing.
- f. If (i) Contractor is or becomes aware of any infringement claim made against a third-party branded product offered by Contractor through this Master Agreement, (ii) the third-party branded product is determined to infringe upon the intellectual property rights of another third party, and (iii) such infringement is not remedied by the third party so that the product is no longer infringing, Contractor shall immediately cease offering the product under this Master Agreement and notify the Lead State, NASPO, Participating Entities, and purchasers of the product.

21. Warranty.

The Contractor must ensure warranty service and maintenance for all equipment, including third party products provided. The Contractor must facilitate the Manufacturer or Publisher warranty and maintenance of third party products furnished through the Master Agreement. The Contractor shall provide the warranty service and maintenance for equipment and all peripherals on the Master Agreement.

22. System Failure or Damage.

In the event of system failure or damage caused by the Contractor or its Product, the Contractor shall use reasonable efforts to restore or assist in restoring the system to operational capacity. The Contractor shall be responsible under this provision to the extent a 'system' is defined at the time of the Order; otherwise the rights of the Purchasing Entity shall be governed by the Warranty.

23. Payment.

Payment after Acceptance is normally made within 30 days following the date the entire order is delivered or the date a correct invoice is received, whichever is later. After 45 days the Contractor may assess overdue account charges up to a maximum rate of one percent per month on the outstanding balance, unless a different late payment amount is specified in a Participating Addendum, Order, or otherwise prescribed by applicable law.

Payments will be remitted by mail or electronically. Payments may be made via a State or political subdivision "Purchasing Card" with no additional charge.

Prices are exclusive of taxes, duties, and fees, unless otherwise quoted. If a withholding tax is required by law, the tax will be added and identified on the applicable invoice. All applicable taxes, duties, and fees must be identified on the quote.

24. Leasing or Alternative Financing Methods.

Lease purchase and term leases are allowable only for Purchasing Entities whose rules and regulations permit leasing of software. Individual Purchasing Entities may enter into a lease agreement for the products covered in this Master Agreement, if they have the legal authority to enter into these types of agreements without going through a competitive process and if the applicable PAs permit leasing. No lease agreements will be reviewed or evaluated as part of the RFP evaluation process.

25. Contract Provisions for Orders Utilizing Federal Funds.

Pursuant to Appendix II to 2 Code of Federal Regulations (CFR) Part 200, Contract Provisions for Non-Federal Entity Contracts Under Federal Awards, Orders funded with federal funds may have additional contractual requirements or certifications that must be satisfied at the time the Order is placed or upon delivery. These federal requirements may be

proposed by Participating Entities in Participating Addenda and Purchasing Entities for incorporation in Orders placed under this Master Agreement.

26. Self Audit.

The Contractor must conduct at a minimum a quarterly self-audit, unless approved by the Lead State. The audit will sample a minimum of one tenth of one percent (.001) of orders with a maximum of 100 audits per quarter conducted. For example: Up to 1,000 sales = 1 audit; 10,000 sales = 10 audits; Up to 100,000 sales = 100 audits. This will be a random sample of orders and invoices and must include documentation of pricing. Summary findings must be reported to Lead State with actions to correct documented findings.

27. Assignment/Subcontracts.

- a. Contractor shall not assign, sell or otherwise transfer all or any part of this Master Agreement without prior written consent from the Lead State, such consent not to be unreasonably withheld.
- b. The Lead State, or Participating Entity, shall not assign, delegate or otherwise transfer all or any part of this Master Agreement without prior written consent from Contractor, except for assignment or delegation to a Participating Entity State agency or eligible Purchasing Entity. The Lead State reserves the right to assign any rights or duties, including written assignment of contract administration duties to NASPO ValuePoint and other third parties.

28. Insurance.

- a. Contractor shall, during the term of this Master Agreement, maintain in full force and effect, the insurance described in this section. Contractor shall acquire such insurance from an insurance carrier or carriers legally authorized to conduct business in the Lead State and in each Participating Entity's state and having a rating of A-, Class VII or better, in the most recently published edition of A.M. Best's Insurance Reports. Failure to buy and maintain the required insurance may result in this Master Agreement's termination or, at a Participating Entity's option, result in termination of its Participating Addendum.
- b. Coverage shall be written on an occurrence basis. The minimum acceptable limits shall be as indicated below:
 - 1. Commercial General Liability covering premises operations, independent contractors, products and completed operations, blanket contractual liability, personal injury (including death), advertising liability, and property damage, with a limit of not less than \$1 million per occurrence/\$2 million general aggregate;
 - 2. Contractor must comply with any applicable State Workers Compensation or Employers Liability Insurance requirements.
- c. Contractor shall pay premiums on all insurance policies. Contractor will use reasonable efforts to give thirty (30) days prior written notice to State prior to cancellation or non-renewal of any of the policies providing such coverage; provided, however that Contractor shall not be obligated to provide such notice if, concurrently with such cancellation or non-renewal, Contractor obtains coverage from different insurer(s) meeting the requirements described herein.
- d. Prior to commencement of performance, Contractor shall provide to the Participating Entity a certificate of insurance showing the Contractor's general liability insurance policy or other documentary evidence acceptable to the Lead State that (1) names the Participating Entity as an additional insured, (2) provides that written notice of cancellation shall be delivered in accordance with the policy provisions, and (3) provides that the Contractor's liability insurance policy shall be primary, with any liability insurance of any Participating Entity as secondary and noncontributory. Unless otherwise agreed in any Participating Addendum, other state Participating Entities' rights

and Contractor's obligations are the same as those specified in the first sentence of this subsection except the endorsement is provided to the applicable state.

- e. During the term of this Master Agreement, Contractor shall upon request provide to the Lead State and Participating Entities evidence of coverage that meets the requirements of this Section and the applicable Participating Addendum. Failure to provide evidence of coverage, within thirty (30) calendar days of receipt of request may, at the sole option of the Lead State, or any Participating Entity, result in this Master Agreement's termination or the termination of any Participating Addendum.
- f. Coverage and limits shall not limit Contractor's liability and obligations under this Master Agreement, any Participating Addendum, or any Purchase Order.

29. Administrative Fees.

- a. The Contractor shall pay to NASPO ValuePoint, or its assignee, a NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee of one-quarter of one percent (0.25% or 0.0025) no later than sixty (60) days following the end of each calendar quarter. The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee shall be submitted quarterly and is based on all sales of products and services under the Master Agreement (less any charges for taxes or shipping). The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee is not negotiable.
- b. The NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee in this section shall be based on the gross amount of all sales (less any charges for taxes or shipping) at the adjusted prices (if any) in Participating Addenda.
- c. Additionally, some states may require an additional fee be paid directly to the state only on purchases made by Purchasing Entities within that state. For all such requests, the fee level, payment method and schedule for such reports and payments will be incorporated into the Participating Addendum that is made a part of the Master Agreement. The Purchasing Entity may allow the Contractor to adjust the Master Agreement pricing to account for these additional fees for purchases made by Purchasing Entities within the jurisdiction of the Participating Entity. All such agreements shall not affect the NASPO ValuePoint Administrative Fee percentage or the prices paid by the Purchasing Entities outside the jurisdiction of the state requesting the additional fee.

30. NASPO ValuePoint Reports

- a. Sales Data Reporting. In accordance with this section, Contractor shall report to NASPO ValuePoint all Orders under this Master Agreement for which Contractor has invoiced the ordering entity or individual, including Orders invoiced to Participating Entity or Purchasing Entity employees for personal use if such use is permitted by this Master Agreement and the applicable Participating Addendum ("Sales Data"). Timely and complete reporting of Sales Data is a material requirement of this Master Agreement. Reporting requirements, including those related to the format, contents, frequency, or delivery of reports, may be updated by NASPO ValuePoint with reasonable notice to Contractor and without amendment to this Master Agreement. NASPO ValuePoint shall have exclusive ownership of any media on which reports are submitted and shall have a perpetual, irrevocable, non-exclusive, royalty free, and transferable right to display, modify, copy, and otherwise use reports, data, and information provided under this section.
- b. Summary Sales Data. "Summary Sales Data" is Sales Data reported as cumulative totals by state. Contractor shall, using the reporting tool or template provided by NASPO ValuePoint, report Summary Sales Data to NASPO ValuePoint for each calendar quarter no later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter. If Contractor has no reportable Sales Data for the quarter, Contractor shall submit a zero-sales report.
- c. Detailed Sales Data. "Detailed Sales Data" is Sales Data that includes for each Order all information required by the Solicitation or by NASPO ValuePoint, including customer information, Order information, and line-item details.

Contractor shall, using the reporting tool or template provided by NASPO ValuePoint, report Detailed Sales Data to NASPO ValuePoint for each calendar quarter no later than thirty (30) days following the end of the quarter. Detailed Sales Data shall be reported in the format provided in the Solicitation or provided by NASPO ValuePoint. The total sales volume of reported Detailed Sales Data shall be consistent with the total sales volume of reported Summary Sales Data.

- d. Sales Data Crosswalks. Reserved.
- e. Executive Summary. Contractor shall, upon request by NASPO ValuePoint, provide NASPO ValuePoint with an executive summary that includes but is not limited to a list of states with an active Participating Addendum, states with which Contractor is in negotiations, and any Participating Addendum roll-out or implementation activities and issues. NASPO ValuePoint and Contractor will determine the format and content of the executive summary.

31. NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Program Marketing, Training, and Performance Review.

- a. Contractor agrees to work cooperatively with NASPO ValuePoint personnel. Contractor agrees to present plans to NASPO ValuePoint for the education of Contractor's contract administrator(s) and sales/marketing workforce regarding the Master Agreement contract, including the competitive nature of NASPO ValuePoint procurements, the Master agreement and participating addendum process, and the manner in which qualifying entities can participate in the Master Agreement.
- b. Contractor agrees, as Participating Addendums become executed, if requested by ValuePoint personnel to provide plans to launch the program within the Participating Entity. Plans will include time frames to launch the agreement and confirmation that the Contractor's website has been updated to properly reflect the contract offer as available in the Participating Entity.
- c. Contractor agrees, absent anything to the contrary outlined in a Participating Addendum, to consider customer proposed terms and conditions, as deemed important to the customer, for possible inclusion into the customer agreement. Contractor will ensure that their sales force is aware of this contracting option.
- d. Contractor agrees to participate in an annual contract performance review at a location selected by the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint, which may include a discussion of marketing action plans, target strategies, marketing materials, as well as Contractor reporting and timeliness of payment of administration fees.
- e. Contractor acknowledges that the NASPO ValuePoint logos may not be used by Contractor in sales and marketing until a logo use agreement is executed with NASPO ValuePoint.
- f. The Lead State expects to evaluate the utilization of the Master Agreement at the annual performance review. Lead State may, in its discretion, cancel the Master Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 42 of Exhibit A, or not exercise an option to renew, when Contractor utilization does not warrant further administration of the Master Agreement. The Lead State may exercise its right to not renew the Master Agreement if contractor fails to record or report revenue for three consecutive quarters, upon 60-calendar day written notice to the Contractor. Cancellation based on nonuse or under-utilization will not occur sooner than two years after award of the Master Agreement. This subsection does not limit the discretionary right of either the Lead State or Contractor to cancel the Master Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 42 of Exhibit A or to terminate for default pursuant to Paragraph 44 of Exhibit A.
- g. Contractor agrees to notify the Lead State and NASPO ValuePoint of any contractual most-favored-customer provisions in any Cooperative Purchasing Agreements that may affect the promotion of this Master Agreements or whose terms provide for adjustments to future rates or pricing based on rates, pricing in, or Orders from this master agreement. Upon request of the Lead State or NASPO ValuePoint, Contractor shall provide a copy of any such provisions. For the purposes of this paragraph, Cooperative Purchasing Agreement shall mean a cooperative

purchasing program facilitating public procurement solicitations and agreements using a lead agency model. This does not include contracts with any federal agency or any federal contract.

32. Right to Publish.

Throughout the duration of this Master Agreement, Contractor must secure from the Lead State prior approval for the public release of information that pertains to the potential work or activities covered by the Master Agreement. This limitation does not preclude publication about the award of the Master Agreement or marketing activities consistent with any proposed and accepted marketing plan. The Contractor shall not make any representations of NASPO ValuePoint's opinion or position as to the quality or effectiveness of the services that are the subject of this Master Agreement without prior written consent. Failure to adhere to this requirement may result in termination of the Master Agreement for cause.

33. Records Administration and Audit.

- a. The Contractor shall maintain books, records, documents, and other evidence pertaining to this Master Agreement and Orders placed by Purchasing Entities under it to the extent and in such detail as shall adequately reflect performance and administration of payments and fees. Contractor shall permit the Lead State, a Participating Entity, a Purchasing Entity, the federal government (including its grant awarding entities and the U.S. Comptroller General), and any other duly authorized agent of a governmental agency, to audit, inspect, examine, copy and transcribe Contractor's books, documents, papers and records directly pertinent to this Master Agreement or orders placed by a Purchasing Entity under it for the purpose of making audits, examinations, excerpts, and transcriptions. This right shall survive for a period of six (6) years following termination of this Agreement or final payment for any order placed by a Purchasing Entity against this Agreement, whichever is later, or such longer period as is required by the Purchasing Entity's state statutes, to assure compliance with the terms hereof or to evaluate performance hereunder.
- b. Without limiting any other remedy available to any governmental entity, the Contractor shall reimburse the applicable Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity for any overpayments inconsistent with the terms of the Master Agreement or Orders or underpayment of fees found as a result of the examination of the Contractor's records.
- c. The rights and obligations herein exist in addition to any quality assurance obligation in the Master Agreement requiring the Contractor to self-audit contract obligations and that permits the Lead State to review compliance with those obligations.

34. Indemnification

a. General Indemnity. Contractor shall indemnify, defend (to the extent permitted by a state's Attorney General), and hold harmless an Indemnified Party from any claims or causes of action, including attorney's fees, to the extent arising from Contractor's intentional, willful, or negligent acts or omissions; actions that give rise to strict liability; and actions arising from breach of contract or warranty.

"Indemnified Party" means NASPO, NASPO ValuePoint, the Lead State, Participating Entities, and Purchasing Entities, along with their officers and employees.

The indemnification obligations of this section do not apply in the event the claim or cause of action is the result of the Indemnified Party's sole negligence. This clause will not be construed to bar any legal remedies the Contractor may have for the Indemnified Party's failure to fulfill its obligation under this Contract.

b. Intellectual Property Indemnification.

- 1. In the event of any such claim by any third party against the Indemnified Party that Products, Software, Services or Deliverables prepared, produced, or branded by Contractor and delivered pursuant to this Master Agreement infringe or misappropriate that third party's U.S. patent, copyright, trade secret, or other intellectual property rights ("Indemnified Claims"), the Indemnified Party shall promptly notify the Contractor. The Contractor, at its own expense, shall indemnify, defend to the extent permitted by the Indemnified Party's laws, and hold harmless the Indemnified Party against any loss, cost, expense, or liability (including legal fees) arising out of such a claim, whether or not such claim is successful against the Indemnified Party.
- 2. If Contractor receives prompt notice of such a claim that in the Contractor's opinion is likely to result in an adverse ruling, the Contractor shall at its option (1) obtain a right for the Indemnified Party to continue using such Products, Deliverables, or Software or allow Contractor to continue performing the Services; (2) modify such Products, Software, Services, or Deliverables to make them non-infringing without materially affecting their utility or functionality; (3) replace such Products, Software, Services, or Deliverables with a non-infringing equivalent; or (4) refund any pre-paid fees for the allegedly infringing Services that have not been performed or provide a reasonable depreciated or pro rata refund for the allegedly infringing Product, Deliverables, or Software.
- 3. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor shall have no obligation under this Section for any claim resulting or arising from (1) modifications of the Products, Software, Services, or Deliverables that were not performed by, on behalf of, or at the direction of Contractor; (2) the combination, operation, or use of the Products, Software, Services, or Deliverables in connection with a third-party product, software or service (the combination of which causes the claimed infringement); or (3) Contractor's compliance with Indemnified Party's written specifications or directions, including the incorporation of any software or other materials or processes provided by or requested by Indemnified Party. Contractor's duty to indemnify and defend under this Section is contingent upon: (a) Contractor receiving prompt written notice of the third-party claim or action for which Contractor must indemnify Indemnified Party, (b) Contractor having the right to solely control the defense and resolution of such claim or action, unless the Indemnified Party's law requires approval for a third party to defend the Indemnified Party and such approval is not received, and (c) Indemnified Party's cooperation with Contractor in defending and resolving such claim or action. This Section states Indemnified Party's exclusive remedies for any third-party intellectual property claim or action and nothing in this Master Agreement or elsewhere will obligate Contractor to provide any greater indemnity to Indemnified Party.

35. Limitations of Liability

- a. The Parties agree that neither Contractor nor the indemnified party shall be liable to each other, regardless of the form of action, for consequential, incidental, indirect, or special damages except any claim related to bodily injury or death; an unauthorized release or breach of not public data as set forth more fully in Minn. Ch. 13; or a claim or demand based on patent, copyright, or other intellectual property infringement.
- b. Contractor's liability is limited to 2 times the amount paid by Purchasing Entity to Contractor during the 12 months preceding the date of the dispute concerning any products and services, or \$5,000,000, whichever is greater. This limit on liability does not apply to claims for bodily injury or death or for intellectual property infringement.
- c. Contractor's obligations under this section shall not extend to any combination of the Product with any other product, system or method, unless the Product, system or method is:
 - 1. provided by the Contractor or the Contractor's subsidiaries or affiliates;
 - 2. specified by the Contractor to work with the Product; or

- 3. reasonably required, in order to use the Product in its intended manner, and the infringement could not have been avoided by substituting another reasonably available product, system or method capable of performing the same function; or
- 4. It would be reasonably expected to use the Product in combination with such product, system or method.

36. License of Pre-Existing Intellectual Property.

Intentionally deleted.

37. Assignment of Antitrust Rights.

Contractor irrevocably assigns to a Participating Entity who is a state any claim for relief or cause of action which the Contractor now has or which may accrue to the Contractor in the future by reason of any violation of state or federal antitrust laws (15 U.S.C. § 1-15 or a Participating Entity's state antitrust provisions), as now in effect and as may be amended from time to time, in connection with any goods or services provided in that state for the purpose of carrying out the Contractor's obligations under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum, including, at the Participating Entity's option, the right to control any such litigation on such claim for relief or cause of action.

38. Debarment.

The Contractor certifies that neither it nor its principals are presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction (contract) by any governmental department or agency. This certification represents a recurring certification made at the time any Order is placed under this Master Agreement. If the Contractor cannot certify this statement, attach a written explanation for review by the Lead State.

39. Governing Law and Venue.

- a. The construction and effect of the Master Agreement after award shall be governed by the law of the state serving as Lead State. The construction and effect of any Participating Addendum or Order against the Master Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the Participating Entity's or Purchasing Entity's State.
- b. Venue for any claim, dispute or action concerning the terms of the Master Agreement shall be in the state serving as Lead State. Venue for any claim, dispute, or action concerning any Order placed against the Master Agreement or the effect of a Participating Addendum shall be in the Purchasing Entity's State.
- c. If a claim is brought in a federal forum, then it must be brought and adjudicated solely and exclusively within the United States District Court for (in decreasing order of priority): the Lead State for claims relating to contract performance or administration if the Lead State is a party; a Participating State if a named party; the state where the Participating Entity or Purchasing Entity is located if either is a named party.

40. Confidentiality, Non-Disclosure, and Injunctive Relief.

- a. Confidentiality. Contractor acknowledges that it and its employees or agents may, in the course of providing a Product under this Master Agreement, be exposed to or acquire information that is confidential to Purchasing Entity or Purchasing Entity's clients.
 - 1. Any and all information of any form that is marked as confidential by one party (the "originating party") and is or would by its nature be deemed confidential obtained by the other party or its employees or agents (the "receiving party") in the performance of this Master Agreement, including, but not necessarily limited to (1) any Purchasing Entity's records, (2) personnel records, and (3) information concerning individuals, is confidential information of the originating party ("Confidential Information").

- 2. Any reports or other documents or items (including software) that result from the use of the Confidential Information by the receiving party shall be treated in the same manner as the Confidential Information.
- 3. Confidential Information does not include information that (1) is or becomes (other than by disclosure by the receiving party) publicly known; (2) is furnished by the originating party to others without restrictions similar to those imposed by this Master Agreement; (3) is rightfully in the receiving party's possession without the obligation of nondisclosure prior to the time of its disclosure under this Master Agreement; (4) is obtained from a source other than the originating party without the obligation of confidentiality, (5) is disclosed with the written consent of the originating party or; (6) is independently developed by employees, agents or subcontractors of the receiving party who can be shown to have had no access to the Confidential Information.
- b. Non-Disclosure. The receiving party shall hold Confidential Information in confidence, using at least the industry standard of confidentiality, and shall not copy, reproduce, sell, assign, license, market, transfer or otherwise dispose of, give, or disclose Confidential Information to third parties or use Confidential Information for any purposes whatsoever other than what is necessary to the performance of Orders placed under this Master Agreement.
 - 1. Each party shall advise each of its employees and agents of their obligations to keep Confidential Information confidential. Contractor shall use commercially reasonable efforts to assist Purchasing Entity in identifying and preventing any unauthorized use or disclosure of any Confidential Information.
 - 2. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the receiving party shall advise the originating party, and the applicable Participating Entity, and the Lead State if the originating party is a Purchasing Entity, and the Lead State if the originating party is a Participating Entity, immediately if the receiving party learns or has reason to believe that any person who has had access to Confidential Information has violated or intends to violate the terms of this Master Agreement, and the receiving party shall at its expense cooperate with advise the originating party in seeking injunctive or other equitable relief in the name of either party against any such person.
 - 3. Except as directed by the originating party, the receiving party will not at any time during or after the term of this Master Agreement disclose, directly or indirectly, any Confidential Information to any person, except in accordance with this Master Agreement, and that upon termination of this Master Agreement or at the originating party's request, the receiving party shall turn over to the originating party all documents, papers, and other matter in the receiving party's possession that embody Confidential Information.
 - 4. Notwithstanding the foregoing, Contractor may keep one copy of such Confidential Information necessary for quality assurance, audits and evidence of the performance of this Master Agreement, and Purchasing Entity may retain Confidential Information to the extent and for the duration required by applicable law.
- c. Injunctive Relief. Each party acknowledges that the other party's breach of this section, including disclosure of any Confidential Information, will cause irreparable injury to originating party that is inadequately compensable in damages. Accordingly, the originating party may seek and obtain injunctive relief against the breach or threatened breach of the foregoing undertakings, in addition to any other legal remedies that may be available. Contractor acknowledges and agrees that the covenants contained herein are necessary for the protection of the legitimate business interests of Purchasing Entity and are reasonable in scope and content.
- d. Purchasing Entity Law. These provisions shall be applicable only to extent they are not in conflict with the applicable public disclosure laws of any Purchasing Entity.
- e. The rights granted Purchasing Entities and Contractor obligations under this section shall also extend to the cooperative's Confidential Information, defined to include Participating Addenda, as well as Orders or transaction data relating to Orders under this Master Agreement that identify the entity/customer, Order dates, line item

descriptions and volumes, and prices/rates. This provision does not apply to disclosure to the Lead State, a Participating State, or any governmental entity exercising an audit, inspection, or examination pursuant to Paragraph 33 of Exhibit A. To the extent permitted by law, Contractor shall notify the Lead State of the identity of any entity seeking access to the Confidential Information described in this subsection.

41. Public Information.

This Master Agreement and all related documents are subject to disclosure pursuant to the Lead State's public information laws.

42. Cancellation.

Unless otherwise set forth in this Master Agreement, this Master Agreement may be canceled by either party upon 60 days written notice prior to the effective date of the cancellation. Further, any Participating Entity may cancel its participation upon 30 days written notice, unless otherwise stated in the Participating Addendum. Cancellation may be in whole or in part. Any cancellation under this provision shall not affect the rights and obligations attending orders outstanding at the time of cancellation, including any right of a Purchasing Entity to indemnification by the Contractor, rights of payment for Products delivered and accepted, rights attending any warranty or default in performance in association with any Order, and requirements for records administration and audit. Cancellation of the Master Agreement due to Contractor default may be immediate as set forth in Paragraph 44 of Exhibit A.

43. Force Majeure.

Neither party to this Master Agreement shall be held responsible for delay or default caused by fire, riot, unusually severe weather, other acts of God, or war which are beyond that party's reasonable control. The Lead State may terminate this Master Agreement after determining such delay or default will reasonably prevent successful performance of the Master Agreement.

44. Defaults and Remedies.

- a. The occurrence of any of the following events shall be an event of default under this Master Agreement:
 - 1. Nonperformance of contractual requirements; or
 - 2. A material breach of this Master Agreement; or
 - 3. Any certification, representation or warranty by Contractor in response to the RFP or in this Master Agreement that proves to be untrue or materially misleading; or
 - 4. Institution of proceedings under any bankruptcy, insolvency, court-ordered reorganization or similar law, by or against Contractor, or the appointment of a receiver or similar officer for Contractor or any of its property, which is not vacated or fully stayed within thirty (30) calendar days after the institution or occurrence thereof; or
 - 5. Any default specified in another section of this Master Agreement.
- b. Upon the occurrence of an event of default, except for material breach, the Lead State shall issue a written notice of default, identifying the nature of the default, and providing a period of 30 calendar days in which Contractor shall have an opportunity to cure the default. The Lead State shall not be required to provide advance written notice or a cure period and may immediately terminate this Master Agreement in whole or in part if the Lead State, in its sole discretion, determines that it is reasonably necessary to preserve public safety or prevent immediate public crisis. Time allowed for cure shall not diminish or eliminate Contractor's liability for damages, including liquidated damages to the extent provided for under this Master Agreement. The Lead State may immediately terminate this Master Agreement upon material breach of the Master Agreement by Contractor.

- c. If Contractor is afforded an opportunity to cure and fails to cure the default within the period specified in the written notice of default, Contractor shall be in breach of its obligations under this Master Agreement and the Lead State shall have the right to exercise any or all of the following remedies:
 - 1. Exercise any remedy provided by law; and
 - 2. Terminate this Master Agreement and any related contracts or portions thereof; and
 - 3. Impose liquidated damages as provided in this Master Agreement; and
 - 4. Suspend Contractor from being able to respond to future bid solicitations; and
 - 5. Suspend Contractor's performance; and
 - 6. Withhold payment until the default is remedied.
- d. Unless otherwise specified in the Participating Addendum, in the event of a default under a Participating Addendum, a Participating Entity shall provide a written notice of default as described in this section and shall have all of the rights and remedies under this paragraph regarding its participation in the Master Agreement, in addition to those set forth in its Participating Addendum. Unless otherwise specified in a Purchase Order, a Purchasing Entity shall provide written notice of default as described in this section and have all of the rights and remedies under this paragraph and any applicable Participating Addendum with respect to an Order placed by the Purchasing Entity. Nothing in these Master Agreement Terms and Conditions shall be construed to limit the rights and remedies available to a Purchasing Entity under the applicable commercial code.

45. Waiver of Breach.

Failure of the Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity to declare a default or enforce any rights and remedies shall not operate as a waiver under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum. Any waiver by the Lead State, Participating Entity, or Purchasing Entity must be in writing. Waiver by the Lead State or Participating Entity of any default, right or remedy under this Master Agreement or Participating Addendum, or by Purchasing Entity with respect to any Purchase Order, or breach of any terms or requirements of this Master Agreement, a Participating Addendum, or Purchase Order shall not be construed or operate as a waiver of any subsequent default or breach of such term or requirement, or of any other term or requirement under this Master Agreement, Participating Addendum, or Purchase Order.

46. Notices.

If one party is required to give notice to the other under the Master Agreement, such notice shall be in writing and shall be effective upon receipt. Delivery may be by certified United States mail or by hand, in which case a signed receipt shall be obtained. A facsimile or electronic transmission shall constitute sufficient notice, provided the receipt of the transmission is confirmed by the receiving party. Either party must notify the other of a change in address for notification purposes. All notices to the Lead State shall be addressed as follows:

Elizabeth Randa, Acquisition Management Specialist 112 Administration Bldg. 50 Sherburne Avenue St. Paul, MN 55155 elizabeth.randa@state.mn.us

47. No Waiver of Sovereign Immunity.

In no event shall this Master Agreement, any Participating Addendum or any contract or any Purchase Order issued thereunder, or any act of the Lead State, a Participating Entity, or a Purchasing Entity be a waiver of any form of defense

or immunity, whether sovereign immunity, governmental immunity, immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States or otherwise, from any claim or from the jurisdiction of any court.

This section applies to a claim brought against the Participating Entities who are states only to the extent Congress has appropriately abrogated the state's sovereign immunity and is not consent by the state to be sued in federal court. This section is also not a waiver by the state of any form of immunity, including but not limited to sovereign immunity and immunity based on the Eleventh Amendment to the Constitution of the United States.

Exhibit B: Minnesota Terms and Conditions

1. Change Requests.

The Lead State reserves the right to request, during the term of the Master Agreement, changes to the products offered within the Band(s). Products introduced during the term of the Master Agreement shall go through a formal review process. The process for updating the products offered within a Band is outlined in Paragraph 2 of Exhibit B. The Contractor shall evaluate and recommend products for which agencies have an expressed need. The Lead State shall require the Contractor to provide a summary of its research of those products being recommended for inclusion in the Master Agreement as well as defining how adding the product will enhance the Master Agreement. The Lead State may request that products, other than those recommended, are added to the Master Agreement.

In the event that the Lead State desires to add new products and services that are not included in the original Master Agreement, the Lead State requires that independent manufacturers and resellers cooperate with the already established Contractor in order to meet the Lead State's requirements. Evidence of the need to add products or services should be demonstrated to the Lead State. The Master Agreement shall be modified via supplement or amendment. The Lead State will negotiate the inclusion of the products and services with the Contractor. No products or services will be added to the Master Agreement without the Lead State's prior approval.

2. Product and Service Schedule (PSS).

a. Creating the Product and Service Schedule (PSS). Contractor will use the attached sample PSS to create and maintain a complete listing of all products and services offered under the Master Agreement. The PSS must conform to the contracted minimum discounts. Contractor may create and maintain a separate PSS for a Participating Entity based on the requirements and restrictions of the Participating Entity.

Contractors are encouraged to provide remote learning bundles for K-12 Education. These bundles can be included in the response to the PSS.

- b. Maintaining the PSS.
 - 1. In General. Throughout the term of the Master Agreement, on a quarterly basis, Contractor may update the PSS to make model changes, add new products or services, or remove obsolete or discontinued products or services. Any updates to the PSS must conform to the Master Agreement requirements, including the scope of the Master Agreement and contracted minimum discounts.
 - 2. Process. Contractor must provide notification to the Lead State of any changes to their PSS using the attached Action Request Form (ARF).
 - a) The Lead State does not need to approve Contractor's request to make model changes, add their own manufactured products, or remove discontinued or obsolete products or services, and Contractor does not need the Lead State's approval prior to posting an updated PSS.
 - b) The Lead State must approve Contractor's request to add new third party manufacturers to Contractor's PSS. If the proposed third-party manufacturer holds a NASPO Master Agreement for Computer Equipment, Contractor must obtain written authorization from that manufacturer. Contractor must have the Lead State's approval prior to posting the updated PSS.
 - c) Contractor must maintain a historic record of all past PSSs on their dedicated NASPO ValuePoint website.

d) Pursuant to the audit provisions of the Master Agreement, upon the request of NASPO ValuePoint, the Lead State, or a Participating Entity, Contractor must provide an historic version of any Baseline Price List.

3. Purchase Orders.

There will be no minimum order requirements or charges to process an individual purchase order. The Participating Addendum number and the PO number must appear on all documents (e.g., invoices, packing slips, etc.). The Ordering Entity's purchase order constitutes a binding contract.

4. Risk of Loss or Damage.

The Purchasing Entity is relieved of all risks of loss or damage to the goods or equipment during periods of transportation, and installation by the Contractor and in the possession of the Contractor or their authorized agent.

5. Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard and Cardholder Information Security.

Contractor assures all of its Network Components, Applications, Servers, and Subcontractors (if any) comply with the Payment Card Industry Data Security Standard ("PCIDSS"). "Network Components" shall include, but are not limited to, Contractor's firewalls, switches, routers, wireless access points, network appliances, and other security appliances; "Applications" shall include, but are not limited to, all purchased and custom external (web) applications. "Servers" shall include, but are not limited to, all of Contractor's web, database, authentication, DNS, mail, proxy, and NTP servers. "Cardholder Data" shall mean any personally identifiable data associated with a cardholder, including, by way of example and without limitation, a cardholder's account number, expiration date, name, address, social security number, or telephone number.

Subcontractors (if any) must be responsible for the security of all Cardholder Data in its possession; and will only use Cardholder Data for assisting cardholders in completing a transaction, providing fraud control services, or for other uses specifically required by law. Contractor must have a business continuity program which conforms to PCIDSS to protect Cardholder Data in the event of a major disruption in its operations or in the event of any other disaster or system failure which may occur to operations; will continue to safeguard Cardholder Data in the event this Agreement terminates or expires; and ensure that a representative or agent of the payment card industry and a representative or agent of the Purchasing Entity shall be provided with full cooperation and access to conduct a thorough security review of Contractor's operations, systems, records, procedures, rules, and practices in the event of a security intrusion in order to validate compliance with PCIDSS.

6. Foreign Outsourcing of Work.

Upon request, the Contractor is required to provide information regarding the location of where services, data storage, and location of data processing under the Master Agreement will be performed.

7. State Audits (Minn. Stat. § 16C.05, subd. 5).

The books, records, documents, and accounting procedures and practices of the Contractor or other party, that are relevant to the Master Agreement or transaction are subject to examination by the contracting agency and either the Lead State's Legislative Auditor or State Auditor as appropriate for a minimum of six years after the end of the Master Agreement or transaction. The Lead State reserves the right to authorize delegate(s) to audit this Master Agreement and transactions.

8. Certification of Nondiscrimination (in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 16C.053).

If the value of this Contract, including all extensions, is \$50,000 or more, Contractor certifies it does not engage in and has no present plans to engage in discrimination against Israel, or against persons or entities doing business in Israel, when making decisions related to the operation of the contractor's business. For purposes of this section, "discrimination" includes but is not limited to engaging in refusals to deal, terminating business activities, or other actions that are intended to limit commercial relations with Israel, or persons or entities doing business in Israel, when such actions are taken in a manner that in any way discriminates on the basis of nationality or national origin and is not based on a valid business reason.

9. Human Rights/Affirmative Action.

The Lead State requires affirmative action compliance by its Contractors in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600.

- a. Covered Contracts and Contractors. If the Contract exceeds \$100,000 and the Contractor employed more than 40 full-time employees on a single working day during the previous 12 months in Minnesota or in the state where it has its principal place of business, then the Contractor must comply with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600.
- b. Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600 implement Minn. Stat. § 363A.36. These rules include, but are not limited to, criteria for contents, approval, and implementation of affirmative action plans; procedures for issuing certificates of compliance and criteria for determining a contractor's compliance status; procedures for addressing deficiencies, sanctions, and notice and hearing; annual compliance reports; procedures for compliance review; and contract consequences for noncompliance. The specific criteria for approval or rejection of an affirmative action plan are contained in various provisions of Minn. R. 5000.3400 5000.3600 including, but not limited to, parts 5000.3420-5000.3500 and parts 5000.3552 5000.3559.
- c. Disabled Workers. Minn. R. 5000.3550 provides the Contractor must comply with the following affirmative action requirements for disabled workers.

AFFIRMATIVE ACTION FOR DISABLED WORKERS

- (a) The Contractor must not discriminate against any employee or applicant for employment because of physical or mental disability in regard to any position for which the employee or applicant for employment is qualified. The Contractor agrees to take affirmative action to employ, advance in employment, and otherwise treat qualified disabled persons without discrimination based upon their physical or mental disability in all employment practices such as the following: employment, upgrading, demotion or transfer, recruitment, advertising, layoff or termination, rates of pay or other forms of compensation, and selection for training, including apprenticeship.
- (b) The Contractor agrees to comply with the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.
- (c) In the event of the Contractor's noncompliance with the requirements of this clause, actions for noncompliance may be taken in accordance with Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and the rules and relevant orders of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights issued pursuant to the Minnesota Human Rights Act.
- (d) The Contractor agrees to post in conspicuous places, available to employees and applicants for employment, notices in a form to be prescribed by the commissioner of the Minnesota Department of Human Rights. Such notices must state the Contractor's obligation under the law to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment qualified disabled employees and applicants for employment, and the rights of applicants and employees.
- (e) The Contractor must notify each labor union or representative of workers with which it has a collective bargaining agreement or other contract understanding, that the Contractor is bound by the terms of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 of the Minnesota Human Rights Act and is committed to take affirmative action to employ and advance in employment physically and mentally disabled persons.
- d. Consequences. The consequences of a Contractor's failure to implement its affirmative action plan or make a good faith effort to do so include, but are not limited to, suspension or revocation of a certificate of compliance by

the commissioner, refusal by the commissioner to approve subsequent plans, and termination of all or part of the Contract by the commissioner or the State.

e. Certification. The Contractor hereby certifies that it is in compliance with the requirements of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36, subd. 1 and Minn. R. 5000.3400-5000.3600 and is aware of the consequences for noncompliance. It is agreed between the parties that Minn. Stat. 363.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600 are incorporated into any contract between these parties based upon this specification or any modification of it. A copy of Minn. Stat. § 363A.36 and Minn. R. 5000.3400 to 5000.3600 are available upon request from the contracting agency.

10. Equal Pay Certification.

If required by Minn. Stat. §363A.44, the Contractor must have a current Equal Pay Certificate prior to Contract execution. If Contractor's Equal Pay Certificate expires during the term of this Contract, Contractor must promptly reapply for an Equal Pay Certificate with the Minnesota Department of Human Rights and notify the State's Authorized Representative once the Contractor has received the renewed Equal Pay Certificate. If Contractor claims to be exempt, the Lead State may require Contractor to verify its exempt status.

11. Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA).

Products provided under the Master Agreement must comply with the requirements of the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA). The Contractor's catalog and other marketing materials utilized to offer products under the Master Agreement must state when a product is not in compliance. If any descriptive marketing materials are silent as to these requirements, the Contractor agrees that the customer can assume the product meets or exceeds the ADA requirements.

12. Nonvisual Access Standards.

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 16C.145, the Contractor shall comply with the following nonvisual technology access standards:

- a. That the effective interactive control and use of the technology, including the operating system applications programs, prompts, and format of the data presented, are readily achievable by nonvisual means;
- b. That the nonvisual access technology must be compatible with information technology used by other individuals with whom the blind or visually impaired individual must interact;
- c. That nonvisual access technology must be integrated into networks used to share communications among employees, program participants, and the public; and
- d. That the nonvisual access technology must have the capability of providing equivalent access by nonvisual means to telecommunications or other interconnected network services used by persons who are not blind or visually impaired.

These standards do not require the installation of software or peripheral devices used for nonvisual access when the information technology is being used by individuals who are not blind or visually impaired.

13. Accessibility Standards.

Contractor acknowledges and is fully aware that the Lead State (Executive branch state agencies) has developed IT Accessibility Standard effective September 1, 2010. The standard entails, in part, the Web Content Accessibility Guidelines (WCAG) and Section 508 which can be viewed at: https://mn.gov/mnit/government/policies/accessibility/.

The Standards apply to web sites, software applications, electronic reports and output documentation, training delivered in electronic formats (including, but not limited to, documents, videos, and webinars), among others. As upgrades are made to the software, products, or subscriptions available through this Contract, the Contractor agrees to

develop functionality which supports accessibility. If any issues arise due to nonconformance with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards, the Contractor agrees to provide alternative solutions upon request at no additional charge to the State.

When updates or upgrades are made to the products or services available through this Contract, the Contractor agrees to document how the changes will impact or improve the product's or service's accessibility and usability. This documentation, upon request, must be provided to the Lead State in advance of the change, occurring within an agreed upon timeframe sufficient for the state to review the changes and either approve them or request a remediation plan from the Contractor. Contractor warrants that its Products comply with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards and agrees to indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the Lead State against any claims related to non-compliance of Contractor's Product with the above-mentioned accessibility Standards. If agreed-upon updates fail to improve the product or service's accessibility or usability as planned, the failure to comply with this requirement may be cause for contract cancellation or for the Lead State to consider the Contractor in default.

14. Conflict Minerals.

Contractor agrees to provide information upon request regarding adherence to the Conflict Minerals section of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act (Section 1502).

See: http://beta.congress.gov/111/bills/hr4173/111hr4173enr.pdf#page=838 http://www.sec.gov/news/press/2012/2012-163.htm

15. Hazardous Substances.

To the extent that the goods to be supplied by the Contractor contain or may create hazardous substances, harmful physical agents or infectious agents as set forth in applicable state and federal laws and regulations, the Contractor must provide Material Safety Data Sheets regarding those substances. A copy must be included with each delivery.

16. Copyrighted Material Waiver.

The Lead State reserves the right to use, reproduce and publish proposals in any manner necessary for State agencies and local units of government to access the responses, including but not limited to photocopying, State Intranet/Internet postings, broadcast faxing, and direct mailing. In the event that the response contains copyrighted or trademarked materials, it is the responder's responsibility to obtain permission for the Lead State to reproduce and publish the information, regardless of whether the responder is the manufacturer or reseller of the products listed in the materials. By signing its response, the responder certifies that it has obtained all necessary approvals for the reproduction and distribution of the contents of its response and agrees to indemnify, protect, save and hold the Lead State, its representatives and employees harmless from any and all claims arising from the violation of this section and agrees to pay all legal fees incurred by the Lead State in the defense of any such action.

17. Publicity.

The Contractor shall make no representations of the State's opinion or position as to the quality or effectiveness of the products or services that are the subject of the Master Agreement without the prior written consent of the State's Assistant Director or designee of Office of State Procurement. Representations include any publicity, including but not limited to advertisements, notices, press releases, reports, signs, and similar public notices.

18. Performance While Dispute is Pending.

Notwithstanding the existence of a dispute, the parties shall continue without delay to carry out all of their responsibilities under the Master Agreement that are not affected by the dispute. If a party fails to continue without delay to perform its responsibilities under the Master Agreement, in the accomplishment of all undisputed work, any additional cost incurred by the other parties as a result of such failure to proceed shall be borne by the responsible party.

19. Organizational Conflicts of Interest.

An organizational conflict of interest exists when, because of existing or planned activities or because of relationships with other persons:

- a. the Contractor is unable or potentially unable to render impartial assistance or advice to the State;
- b. the Contractor's objectivity in performing the work is or might be otherwise impaired; or
- c. the Contractor has an unfair competitive advantage.

The Contractor agrees that if an organizational conflict of interest is discovered after award, an immediate and full disclosure in writing shall be made to the Assistant Director of the Lead State's Department of Administration's Office of State Procurement that shall include a description of the action the Contractor has taken or proposes to take to avoid or mitigate such conflicts. If an organizational conflict of interest is determined to exist, the Lead State may, at its discretion, cancel the Master Agreement. In the event the Contractor was aware of an organizational conflict of interest prior to the award of the Master Agreement and did not disclose the conflict to the Master Agreement Administrator, the Lead State may terminate the Master Agreement for default. The provisions of this clause shall be included in all subcontracts for work to be performed, and the terms "Contract," "Contractor," "Master Agreement", "Master Agreement Administrator" and "Contract Administrator" modified appropriately to preserve the State's rights.

20. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion

- a. Certification regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions. Instructions for certification:
 - 1. By signing and submitting this proposal, the prospective lower tier participant [responder] is providing the certification set out below.
 - 2. The certification in this clause is a material representation of fact upon which reliance was placed when this transaction was entered into. If it is later determined that the prospective lower tier participant knowingly rendered an erroneous certification, in addition to other remedies available to the federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and debarment.
 - 3. The prospective lower tier participant shall provide immediate written notice to the person to whom this proposal [response] is submitted if at any time the prospective lower tier participant learns that its certification was erroneous when submitted or had become erroneous by reason of changed circumstances.
 - 4. The terms covered transaction, debarred, suspended, ineligible lower tier covered transaction, participant, person, primary covered transaction, principal, proposal, and voluntarily excluded, as used in this clause, have the meaning set out in the Definitions and Coverages section of rules implementing Executive Order 12549. You may contact the person to which this proposal is submitted for assistance in obtaining a copy of those regulations.
 - 5. The prospective lower tier participant agrees by submitting this response that, should the proposed covered transaction be entered into, it shall not knowingly enter into any lower tier covered transaction [subcontract equal to or exceeding \$25,000] with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this covered transaction, unless authorized by the department or agency with which this transaction originated.

- 6. The prospective lower tier participant further agrees by submitting this proposal that it will include this clause titled, "Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility, and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transaction," without modification, in all lower tier covered transactions and in all solicitations for lower tier covered transactions.
- 7. A participant in a covered transaction may rely upon a certification of a prospective participant in a lower tier covered transaction that it is not proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, debarred, suspended, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from covered transactions, unless it knows that the certification is erroneous. A participant may decide the method and frequency by which it determines the eligibility of its principals. Each participant may, but is not required to, check the list of parties excluded from federal procurement and nonprocurement programs.
- 8. Nothing contained in the foregoing shall be construed to require establishment of a system of records in order to render in good faith the certification required by this clause. The knowledge and information of a participant is not required to exceed that which is normally possessed by a prudent person in the ordinary course of business dealings.
- 9. Except for transactions authorized under paragraph 5 of these instructions, if a participant in a covered transaction knowingly enters into a lower tier covered transaction with a person who is proposed for debarment under 48 CFR part 9, subpart 9.4, suspended, debarred, ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction, in addition to other remedies available to the Federal government, the department or agency with which this transaction originated may pursue available remedies, including suspension and debarment.
- b. Certification Regarding Debarment, Suspension, Ineligibility and Voluntary Exclusion Lower Tier Covered Transactions.
 - 1. The prospective lower tier participant certifies, by submission of this proposal, that neither it nor its principals is presently debarred, suspended, proposed for debarment, declared ineligible, or voluntarily excluded from participation in this transaction by any Federal department or agency.
 - 2. Where the prospective lower tier participant is unable to certify to any of the statements in this certification, such prospective participant shall attach an explanation to this proposal.

21. Government Data Practices.

The Contractor and the Lead State must comply with the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Minn. Stat. Ch. 13, (and where applicable, if the Lead State contracting party is part of the judicial branch, with the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch promulgated by the Minnesota Supreme Court as the same may be amended from time to time) as it applies to all data provided by the Lead State to the Contractor and all data provided to the Lead State by the Contractor. In addition, the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act applies to all data created, collected, received, stored, used, maintained, or disseminated by the Contractor in accordance with the Master Agreement that is private, nonpublic, protected nonpublic, or confidential as defined by the Minnesota Government Data Practices Act, Ch. 13 (and where applicable, that is not accessible to the public under the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch).

In the event the Contractor receives a request to release the data referred to in this article, the Contractor must immediately notify the Lead State. The Lead State will give the Contractor instructions concerning the release of the data to the requesting party before the data is released. The civil remedies of Minn. Stat. § 13.08, apply to the release of the data by either the Contractor or the Lead State.

The Contractor agrees to indemnify, save, and hold the Lead State, its agent and employees, harmless from all claims arising out of, resulting from, or in any manner attributable to any violation of any provision of the Minnesota

Government Data Practices Act (and where applicable, the Rules of Public Access to Records of the Judicial Branch), including legal fees and disbursements paid or incurred to enforce this provision of the Master Agreement. In the event that the Contractor subcontracts any or all of the work to be performed under the Master Agreement, the Contractor shall retain responsibility under the terms of this article for such work.

22. Survivability.

Certain rights and duties of the Lead State and Contractor will survive the expiration or cancellation of the RFP and resulting Master Agreement. These rights and duties include but are not limited to paragraphs: Indemnification; Limitations of Liability; State Audits; Government Data Practices; Governing Law and Venue; Publicity; and Administrative Fees.

23. Severability.

If any provision of the Master Agreement, including items incorporated by reference, is found to be illegal, unenforceable, or void, then both the Lead State and the Contractor shall be relieved of all obligations arising under such provisions. If the remainder of the Master Agreement is capable of performance it shall not be affected by such declaration or finding and shall be fully performed.

Exhibit C: Requirements

1. Contractor Verification.

Contractor must be a manufacturer of a Product in the Band(s) it is awarded a Master Agreement. "Re-branding" a product that is manufactured by another company does not meet this requirement. If the Contractor ceases production, sells or assigns their manufacturing to another vendor, or otherwise no longer manufactures a product during the life of the Master Agreement the Lead State reserves the right to terminate the Contractor's Master Agreement.

2. Warranty and Maintenance.

Contractor must ensure warranty service and maintenance for all equipment, including third party products provided. The Contractor must facilitate the Manufacturer or Publisher warranty and maintenance of third party products furnished through the Master Agreement. The Contractor shall provide the warranty service and maintenance for equipment and all peripherals on the Master Agreement.

Website.

Contractor must develop and maintain a URL to a web site specific to the awarded Master Agreement. Contractor's Master Agreement website must offer twenty-four (24) hours per day, seven (7) days per week availability, except for regularly scheduled maintenance times. The website must be separate from the Contractor's commercially available (i.e., public) on-line catalog and ordering systems. No other items or pricing may be shown on the website without written approval from the Lead State

a. Mandatory Specifications:

- Designated Baseline Price List(s) (e.g., MSRP, List, or Education)
- Product and Service Schedule (PSS)
- Product specifications, pricing, and configuration aids for the major product categories proposed that can be used to obtain an on-line quote,
- Service options and service agreements available on the contract. Please refer to Paragraph 5.
- Contact information for order placement, service concerns (warranty and maintenance), problem reporting, and billing concerns
- Sales representatives for participating entities
- Links to environmental certification, including but not limited to take-back/recycling programs, EPEAT, Energy Star, etc.

b. Desirable Specifications:

- Purchase order tracking
- Information on accessibility and accessible products
- Signed Master Agreement
- Online ordering capability with the ability to remember multiple ship to locations (if applicable to product)
- List of approved partners, if applicable

Within 30 calendar days of the notice of intent to award a Master Agreement, Contractor must provide a sample URL of the Master Agreement webpage to the Lead State for review and approval. The Lead State will review and determine acceptability of the website format and data. If the information is determined to be unacceptable or incorrect, the Contractor will have 15 calendar days to provide revisions to the Lead State. After the Lead State approves the website, Contractor may not make material changes to the website without notifying the Lead State through the ARF process and receiving written approval of the changes.

4. Environmental Certifications.

Contractor must include environmental or supply chain responsibility certifications and registrations for products sold through this Contract on their website. Contractor must provide these certifications and registrations for specific products to Participating Entities upon request.

5. EPEAT Registration.

Contractor agrees that applicable products offered that have EPEAT Standards provided under the Master Agreement must have achieved a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. This requirement does not apply to Band 3.

Contractor may propose the addition of a product that has not yet achieved a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. The Lead State, in its sole discretion may require Contractor to provide the following documentation to support the addition of the proposed product:

- A letter from the Green Electronics Council (GEC) on GEC's letterhead confirming that the verification process is underway; or
- A copy of Contractor's GEC contract, Conformity Assurance Board (CAB) contract, and a letter from Contractor's CAB stating that the relevant product has been registered with the CAB and that verification is underway.

The Lead State reserves the right to reject the inclusion of such product, or if approved, require Contractor to remove the product at a later date if the product does not achieve a minimum EPEAT Bronze registration. The Contractor must remove any products that subsequently exit the verification process without achieving EPEAT Bronze or greater from the Master Agreement.

6. Third-Party Products.

Some products offered may be manufactured by a third party. Contractor, however, must provide or facilitate the warranty service and maintenance for all Third-Party Products on the Master Agreement either directly or pass-through from the manufacturer. Contractor may not offer products manufactured by another Contractor holding a Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement for Computer Equipment without approval from the Lead State. Warranty for third-party products must be provided by the Contractor. Warranty documents for products manufactured by a third party are preferred to be delivered to the Participating Entity with the products. Contractor can only offer Third-Party Products in a Band they have been awarded.

Third-Party Products are intended to enhance or supplement a Contractor's own product line, and are not intended to represent more than a third of Contractor's total sales under this Master Agreement. The Lead State may limit the sale of Third-Party Products through the Master Agreement during the life of the Master Agreement should Third-Party Product sales be determined to consistently exceed one third of the total sales under this Master Agreement. Such limitation may take the form of any action the Lead State so chooses, up to and including non-renewal or cancellation of the Master Agreement.

7. Partner Utilization.

If utilizing partners, the Contractor is responsible for the partners providing products and services, as well as warranty service and maintenance for equipment the partner provides. Participating Entities have the option of utilizing partners. Contractor must provide a Participating Entity a copy of its plan for partner utilization upon request. Contractor must make available a list of approved partners for each Participating Entity. Participating Entities must approve specific Partners as outlined within the relevant Participating Addendum, and only partners approved by the Participating Entity may be deployed. The Participating Entity will define the process to add and remove partners in their Participating Addendum.

8. 2019 National Defense Authorization Act, Section 889(f)(3).

Under the 2019 National Defense Authorization Act, Section 889(f)(3), the US military is prohibited from purchasing video surveillance and telecommunications equipment from certain Chinese-owned technology firms. While US state are

not subject to this act, there is increasing concern for the security of state data. Contractor certifies for the term of this Master Agreement that it is not subject to laws, rules, or policies potentially requiring disclosure of, or provision of access to, customer data to foreign governments or entities controlled by foreign governments, and that Contractor's Products do not contain, include, or utilize components or services supplied by any entity subject to the same. Contractor also certifies that its Products do not contain, include, or utilize any covered technology prohibited under Section 889 of the National Defense Authorization Act, as amended.

Attached and incorporated into this Master Agreement as Exhibit D is the Price Schedule.

NASPO ValuePoint Computer Equipment (2023-2028)

CONTROL SET

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

Awarded Bands:

x Band 1: Personal Computing Devices (Windows)
x Band 2: Personal Computing Devices (Non-Windows)

x Band 3: Servers and Storage

Band	Catagony Code	Catagory Description	Discount off
Dallu	Category Code	Category Description	Baseline List
1	1B	Band 1 - Minimum Discount	18.0%
1	1T	Band 1 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%
2	2B	Band 2 - Minimum Discount	18.0%
2	2T	Band 2 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%
3	3B	Band 3 - Minimum Discount	18.0%
3	3T	Band 3 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%
	S-1	Standalone Services	4.0%
	S-2	Warranty Services	4.0%
	S-3	Training and Other Professional Services	4.0%

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

Baseline Price List: Posted on Contractor's dedicated NASPO ValuePoint website

Band 1: Personal Computer Equipment (Windows OS)				
Band	Category Code	Category Description	Discount off Baseline List	
1	1B	Band 1 - Minimum Discount	18.0%	
1	1B-1	Desktops - Alienware, Inspiron, Vostro, XPS	0.5%	
1	1B-2	Notebooks - Alienware, Inspiron, Vostro, XPS	2.5%	
1	1B-3	Projectors/Monitors/Other Electronics	2.5%	
1	1B-4	Displays	2.5%	
1	1B-5	Imaging	2.5%	
1	1B-6	Dell Branded - Printer accessories, parts, and toner	1.5%	
1	1B-7	Spare Parts related to Band 1	0.5%	
1	1B-8	Customer Kits	15.0%	
1	1B-9	Ready to Ship configurations	4.0%	
1	1T	Band 1 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%	
1	1T-1	Selected Third Party - Software and Peripherals	0.5%	

Band 2: Personal Computer Equipment (Non-Windows OS)				
Band	Category Code	Category Description	Discount off	
	<i>,</i>		Baseline List	
2	2B	Band 2 - Minimum Discount	18.0%	
2	2B-1	Commercial Chromebooks	15.0%	
2	2B-2	Consumer Chromebooks	15.0%	
2	2B-3	Projectors/Monitors/Other Electronics	2.5%	
2	2B-4	Displays	2.5%	
2	2B-5	Imaging	2.5%	
2	2B-6	Dell Branded - Printer accessories, parts, and toner	1.5%	
2	2B-7	Spare Parts related to Band 2	0.5%	
2	2B-8	Customer Kits	15.0%	
2	2B-9	Ready to Ship configurations	4.0%	
2	2T	Band 2 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%	
2	2T-1	Selected Third Party - Software and Peripherals (Non-discountable)	0.5%	

Band 3: Servers and Storage				
Band	Category Code	Category Description	Discount off Baseline List	
3	3B	Band 3 - Minimum Discount	18.0%	
3	3B-1	Spare Parts related to Band 3	0.5%	
3	3B-2	Customer Kits	15.0%	
3	3T	Band 3 - Third Party Product Minimum Discount	5.5%	
3	3T-1	Selected Third Party - Software and Peripherals	0.5%	

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

Bands 1 & 2

1. Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount(s)

Contractor provides a contractual volume discount program as follows based on dollars in a single purchase order or combination of purchase orders submitted at one time by a Purchasing Entity, or multiple entities conducting a cooperative purchase.

Min \$ Single Transaction	Max \$ Single Transaction	Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount
\$100,000.00	\$199,999.99	1.0%
\$200,000.00	\$399,999.99	2.0%
\$400,000.00	\$599,999.99	4.0%
\$600,000.00	\$999,999.99	6.0%
\$1,000,000.00	No Maximum	8.0%

Note: Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount does not apply to Category Exceptions, 3rd party products, services, and special promotional offers

2. Cumulative Discount(s)

Contractor provides a cumulative volume discount as follows based on dollars resulting from the cumulative purchases by all purchases made by Purchasing Entities for the duration of the Master Agreement.

Threshold	Discount Level
Up to 2B	0.0%
\$2B to \$4B	1.0%
\$4B to \$6B	2.0%
\$6B to \$8B	3.0%
\$8B to \$10B	4.0%
Greater than \$10B	5.0%

Note: Cumulative Discount does not apply to Category Exceptions, 3rd party products, services, and special promotional offers

3. Other Discount(s)

none

Band 3

1. Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount(s)

Contractor provides a contractual volume discount program as follows based on dollars in a single purchase order or combination of purchase orders submitted at one time by a Purchasing Entity, or multiple entities conducting a cooperative purchase.

Min \$ Single Transaction	Max \$ Single Transaction	Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount
\$250,000.00	\$499,999.99	1.0%
\$500,000.00	\$999,999.99	2.0%
\$1,000,000.00	\$1,499,999.99	4.0%
\$1,500,000.00	\$1,999,999.99	6.0%
\$2,000,000.00	No Maximum	8.0%

Note: Per Transaction Multiple Unit Discount does not apply to Category Exceptions, 3rd party products, services, and special promotional offers.

2. Cumulative Discount(s)

Contractor provides a cumulative volume discount as follows based on dollars resulting from the cumulative purchases by all purchases made by Purchasing Entities for the duration of the Master Agreement.

Column1	Discount Level	
Up to 2B	0.0%	
\$2B to \$4B	1.0%	
\$4B to \$6B	2.0%	
\$6B to \$8B	3.0%	
\$8B to \$10B	4.0%	
Greater than \$10B	5.0%	

Note: Cumulative Discount does not apply to Category Exceptions, 3rd party products, services, and special promotional offers.

3. Other Discount(s)

Additional discount(s) available.

none

Services

Exhibit D: Price Schedule

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

Each Purchasing Entity will determine if and how services will be offered in the Participating

Travel for Services will be negotiated with each Participating Entity in the Participating Addendum.

All Awarded Bands		
Category Code	Description of Service	Percent Discount
S-1	Standalone Services	4.0%
S-2	Warranty Services	4.0%
S-3	Training and Other Professional Services	4.0%

Lease Rates

Exhibit D: Price Schedule

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

All Awarded Bands

Optional: Lease Rates

Dell Financial Services (DFS') payment solutions offer flexible end-of term options designed to suit each entity's unique needs. Payment terms are generally from 24 through 60 months and are tailored to match the essential useful life of the equipment to the payment term. Payments can be billed monthly, quarterly, semi-annually or annually.

DFS payment solution rates are adjusted quarterly in accordance with a formula based on fluctuations in treasury notes. Our rates are a function of several factors including estimates of future residual values, prevailing interest rates, borrowing costs, general and administrative expenses, and solution structure. Once a payment schedule has commenced, the rate remains constant for the term of the schedule.

Prompt Payment Discount

Exhibit D: Price Schedule

Master Agreement: 23004

Contractor Name: Dell Marketing, LP

All Awarded Bands

		in 30
		in 15, Net 30
		in 10, Net 30
Χ		Net 30
	Other (s	specify):

Exhibit E: Contractor Terms and Conditions

Attached by reference as Exhibit E are the following Contractor document(s):

- Software Licenses. Customer's rights to use the Software delivered by Supplier are governed by the terms of the applicable end-user license agreement. Unless different terms have been agreed between the parties, the terms posted on www.dell.com/eula (the "EULA") shall apply. Supplier will provide a hard copy of the applicable terms upon request. Unless expressly otherwise agreed, microcode, firmware or operating system software required to enable the Equipment with which it is shipped to perform its basic or enhanced functions, is licensed for use solely on such Equipment.
- **Dell Return Policy.** Customer may return Products to Supplier pursuant to the return policy at www.dell.com/returnspolicy.
- **Equipment Warranty.** Unless provided otherwise in a Schedule, additional terms governing the limited warranties for Equipment are found at https://www.dell.com/learn/us/en/uscorp1/terms-of-sale-commercial-and-public-sector-warranties?c=us&l=en&s=corp or in the applicable documentation or Product Notice for the specific Equipment.
- Product- and Service-Specific Terms. Scope and details of Services and Product-specific terms are specified in the applicable standard service description that is attached to or referred in a Schedule or Quote, or is made available through the then-current Supplier website for product- or service-specific terms, currently located at www.dell.com/offeringspecificterms. Such standard descriptions are from time to time referred to as "Service Description(s)", "Product Notices" or "Service Briefs." The version of the applicable document that is effective as of the date of the applicable Quote, shall be deemed incorporated into the Order. Scope and details of customized Professional Services not covered by such a standard description shall be documented in a mutually agreed Statement of Work ("SOW").

These Contractor terms and conditions are being provided for **informational purposes only**. They are intended to be negotiated by Contractor and a Participating Entity as part of a Participating Addendum, or by Contractor and a Purchasing Entity as part of an Order, and shall apply only as agreed to in writing by the parties. Unless such terms are expressly accepted in writing, terms in the following document(s) that derogate the application to a Purchasing Entity of a corresponding term in this Master Agreement or applicable Participating Addendum shall be deemed void.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM NUMBER 7-23-70-55-01 AMENDMENT 2

Computer Equipment, Peripherals & Related Services
Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026

Dell Marketing L.P. (Contractor)

The parties mutually agree to amend Participating Addendum 7-23-70-55-01 as follows:

- 1) Agreement is extended from June 30, 2025, to June 30, 2026. **Section 2. TERM, subparagraph A** is revised to read as follows:
 - A. The term of this Participating Addendum shall begin upon signature approval by the State and will end June 30, 2026, or upon termination by the State, whichever occurs first.
- 2) Section 22. GENERATIVE ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE (GENAI) REPORTING is hereby deleted and replaced with the following:

22. GENERATIVE ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE (GENAI)

DEFINITIONS:

For purposes of this Section, the following terms shall be given the meaning shown below. Capitalized terms used below and not defined in this Section shall have the meaning set forth in Section 1 (Definitions) or in the text of the IT General Provisions (rev. 06/21/2022).

Artificial Intelligence (AI): an engineered or machine-based system that varies in its level of autonomy and that can, for explicit or implicit objectives, infer from the input it receives how to generate outputs that can influence physical or virtual environments (Gov Code §§ 11549.64 & 11546.45.5).

GenAl Training Data: any content, information, or data that is used to train, tune, test, or validate a GenAl, including text, images, video, audio, code, or similar types of input.

Generated Data: any output, results, content, or other data that is produced by GenAI, including but not limited to text, images, video, audio, code, or similar types of output.

Generative AI (GenAI): an AI system that can generate derived synthetic content, including text, images, video, and audio, that emulates the structure and characteristics of the system's GenAI Training Data (Gov Code §11549.64).

Participating Addendum 7-23-70-55-01 Amendment 2

Hallucination: Generated Data that is nonsensical, false, or misleading, and is not based on real or existing data, but is instead produced by bias or the GenAl's extrapolation or creative interpretation of its Gen Al Training Data.

Materially Impacts: shall have the same meaning set forth in State Administrative Manual (SAM) 4986.2.

Prompt: any written, spoken, or rendered information provided as a query, command, or other form of input, to any GenAl in connection with this Contract. For avoidance of doubt, Prompt includes any input automatically detected or created by the GenAl, as well as any derivate works of a Prompt or collection of Prompts.

GENAI DISCLOSURE OBLIGATIONS:

Disclosure Obligations:

- a) Contractor must immediately notify the State in writing if it: (1) intends to provide GenAl as a Deliverable to the State; or (2) intends to utilize GenAl, including GenAl from third parties, to complete all or a portion of any Deliverable that materially impacts: (i) functionality of the System, (ii) risk to the State, or (iii) Contract performance. For avoidance of doubt, the term "materially impacts" shall have the same meaning set forth in State Administrative Manual (SAM) § 4986.2 Definitions for GenAl.
- b) Such notification shall be provided to the State designee identified in this Contract.
- c) At the direction of the State, Contractor shall discontinue the provision to the State of any previously unreported GenAl that results in a material impact to the functionality of the System, risk to the State, or Contract performance, as determined by the State.
- d) If the use of previously undisclosed GenAI is approved by the State, then Contractor will update the Deliverable description, and the Parties will amend the Contract accordingly, which may include incorporating the GenAI Special Provisions into the Contract, at no additional cost to the State.

Failure to Disclose or Discontinue GenAl Use: The State, at its sole discretion, may consider Contractor's failure to disclose or discontinue the provision or use of GenAl as described above, to constitute a material breach of Contract when such failure results in a material impact to functionality of the System, risk to the State, or Contract performance. The State is entitled to seek any and all remedies available to it under law as a result of such breach, including but not limited to termination of the contract, for default pursuant to Section 23 (Termination for Default) of the IT General Provisions (rev. 06/21/2022).

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Participating Addendum 7-23-70-55-01 Amendment 2

All other terms and conditions of the Participating Addendum shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Participating Addendum as of the date of execution by both parties below.

CONTRACTOR

Department of General S	Services	Dell Marketing L.P.	
Agency Name		Contractor Name	
Julie Matthews Date: 2025.05.15 17:08:00 -07:00'	5/15/2025	Ana Pitti	May 5, 2025
Authorized Signature	Date Signed	Authorized Signature	Date Signed
Julie Matthews, MAU2 St	ıpervisor	Ana Pitti Paralegal Senior Analyst	
Printed Name/Title of Person Signing		Printed Name/Title of Person Signing	
707 Third Street		One Dell Way	
West Sacramento, CA 9	5605	Round Rock, TX 78682	
Address		Address	

STATE OF CALIFORNIA PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM NUMBER 7-23-70-55-01 AMENDMENT 1

Computer Equipment, Peripherals & Related Services
Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026

Dell Marketing L.P. (Contractor)

The parties mutually agree to amend Participating Addendum 7-23-70-55-01 as follows:

1) Section 22. GENERATIVE ARTIFIFICAL INTELLIGENCE (GENAI) REPORTING is hereby added to read as follows:

22. GENERATIVE ARTIFICIAL INTELLIGENCE (GENAI) REPORTING

The State of California seeks to realize the potential benefits of GenAl, through the development and deployment of GenAl tools, while balancing the risks of these new technologies.

Upon request by an ordering agency, Contractor must complete a <u>GenAl</u> <u>Reporting and Fact Sheet (STD 1000)</u> to identify if their solution or service includes, or makes available, any GenAl including, GenAl from third parties or subcontractors.

During the term of the contract, Contractor must notify the State in writing if their services or any work under this contract includes, or makes available, any previously unreported GenAl technology, including GenAl from third parties or subcontractors. Contractor shall immediately complete the GenAl Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) to notify the State of any new or previously unreported GenAl technology.

At the direction of the State, Contractor shall discontinue the use of any new or previously undisclosed GenAl technology that materially impacts functionality, risk or contract performance, until use of such GenAl technology has been approved by the State.

Failure to disclose GenAl use to the State and submit the GenAl Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) may be considered a breach of the contract by the State at its sole discretion and the State may consider such failure to disclose GenAl and/or failure to submit the GenAl Reporting and Factsheet (STD 1000) as grounds for the immediate termination of the contract. The State is entitled to seek any and all relief to which it may be entitled to as a result of such non-disclosure.

The State reserves the right to amend the contract, without additional cost, to incorporate GenAl Special Provisions into the contract at its sole discretion and/or terminate any contract that presents an unacceptable level of risk to the State.

If Contractor identifies GenAl in their solution, a copy of the STD 1000 must be submitted to the DGS State Contract Administrator.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Participating Addendum 7-23-70-55-01 Amendment 1

All other terms and conditions of the Participating Addendum shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Participating Addendum as of the date of execution by both parties below.

CONTRACTOR

Department of General Services		Dell Marketing L.P.	
Agency Name Digitally signed by Julie Matthews Basic 2024 10 25 17:34:21	10/25/2024	Contractor Name Katherine_Castil Digitally signed by Katherine_Castilion	
Julie Wattriews Date: 2024.10.25 17:34:21	10/25/2024	Date: 2024.08.23 15:42:23 -05'00'	
Authorized Signature	Date Signed	Authorized Signature	Date Signed
_		7.2	2410079
Julie Matthews, MAU2 Su	-	Katherine Castillo/P	-
Julie Matthews, MAU2 Su Printed Name/Title of Person	upervisor	_	aralegal Advisor
	upervisor	Katherine Castillo/P	aralegal Advisor
Printed Name/Title of Pers	upervisor on Signing	Katherine Castillo/P	Paralegal Advisor

STATE OF CALIFORNIA PARTICIPATING ADDENDUM NUMBER 7-23-70-55-01

Computer Equipment, Peripherals & Related Services
Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026

Dell Marketing L.P. (Contractor)

This Participating Addendum Number 7-23-70-55-01 is entered into between the State of California, Department of General Services (hereafter referred to as "State" or "DGS") and Dell Marketing L.P. (hereafter referred to as "Contractor") under the lead state of Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026.

1. SCOPE

- A. This Participating Addendum covers the purchase of computer equipment (desktops, laptops, tablets, servers, and storage, including related peripherals & services) under the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement. The Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement is hereby incorporated by reference. Product/service categories included under this Participating Addendum are identified in Section 5 (Available Products and Services).
- B. This Participating Addendum is available for use by California state agencies and local governments. A local government is defined as any city, county, city and county, district, or other local governmental body, school district or corporation empowered to expend public funds. The State Agency Listing (https://www.ca.gov/agenciesall/) provides a comprehensive list of state agencies.
- C. Each local government is to make its own determination whether this Participating Addendum and the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement are consistent with its procurement policies and regulations.

2. TERM

- A. The term of this Participating Addendum shall begin February 1, 2024, or upon signature approval by the State whichever occurs later, and will end June 30, 2025, or upon termination by the State, whichever occurs first.
- B. Lead state amendments to extend the NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement term date are not automatically incorporated into this Participating Addendum. Extension(s) to the term of this Participating Addendum will be through a written amendment upon mutual agreement between the State and the Contractor.
- C. Order placement and execution shall be on or before the expiration of this Participating Addendum. However, delivery of products or completion of services may be up to 120 days after the Participating Addendum expiration date.

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS/INCORPORATION OF DOCUMENTS

- A. Terms and conditions listed below are hereby incorporated by reference and made a part of this Participating Addendum as if attached herein and shall apply to the purchase of goods or services made under this Participating Addendum.
 - 1) General Provisions Information Technology (GSPD-401IT) effective 6/21/2022
- B. Terms can be viewed on the <u>DGS Procurement Division website</u> (https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Resources/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Resources-List-Folder/Required-Language-for-Solicitations-and-Contracts).

4. ORDER OF PRECEDENCE

- A. In the event of any inconsistency between the articles, attachments, or provisions which constitute this agreement, the following descending order of precedence shall apply:
 - 1) California Participating Addendum Number 7-23-70-55-01
 - 2) Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026

5. AVAILABLE PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

- A. The following product and service offerings from the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026 are allowed under this Participating Addendum:
 - 1) Band 1, Personal Computing Devices Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets
 - 2) Band 2, Personal Computing Devices Non-Windows Operating Systems: Desktops, Laptops, Tablets
 - 3) Band 3, Servers and Storage

6. RESTRICTIONS/DISALLOWED PRODUCTS AND SERVICES

A. Configuration limits: The dollar limits identified below are based on a SINGLE computer/system configuration. This is NOT a restriction on the purchase of multiple configurations (e.g., an entity could purchase 10 laptops at \$15,000 each, for a total purchase price of \$150,000).

ITEM	CONFIGURATION
Band 1	\$15,000
Band 2	\$15,000
Band 3	\$1,000,000
Peripherals	\$10,000
Services	Addressed in the customer specific Purchase Orders

- B. Services must be related to the procurement of equipment.
- C. The following restrictions apply to state agency purchases under this Participating Addendum:
 - Product and service categories that are available on mandatory California statewide contracts cannot be purchased from this Participating Addendum by state agencies without an exemption. State agencies are responsible for obtaining a mandatory statewide contract exemption from DGS prior to issuing a purchase order.
 - 2) Service-only purchases are disallowed. (Exception: Equipment maintenance service purchases are allowed).
 - 3) Services that fall within the definition of "public works" as defined in Public Contract Code section 1101 and Labor Code section 1720 are disallowed under this Participating Addendum and must be procured by alternate means. This restriction is not applicable to local governments.
 - 4) Leasing/rental is not allowed.
 - 5) Professional services are not allowed.
 - Cloud services are not allowed.

7. PRICING

- A. Contractor's pricing is outlined in the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026.
- B. Contractor shall notify the State Contract Administrator of any amendments and pricing adjustments approved and executed by the state of Minnesota.

8. AUTHORIZED RESELLERS

- A. Contractor may use State-approved Authorized Resellers under this Participating Addendum for sales and service functions as defined herein.
 - Authorized Resellers must accept purchase orders and accept payment from ordering agencies for products and services offered under this Participating Addendum.
 - 2) Authorized Resellers are responsible for sending a copy of all purchase orders and invoices to the Contractor for compliance with quarterly usage reporting and administrative fee requirements.
 - 3) All purchase documents to Authorized Resellers shall reference the Participating Addendum Number and Contractor Name.

- B. Contractor shall be responsible for successful performance and compliance with all requirements in accordance with the terms and conditions under this Participating Addendum, even if work is performed by Authorized Resellers. All State policies, guidelines, and requirements shall apply to Authorized Resellers.
- C. Contractor will be the sole point of contact with regard to Participating Addendum contractual matters, reporting, and administrative fee requirements.
- D. Subject to the approval of the State, Authorized Resellers may be added on a quarterly basis during the term of the Participating Addendum. Contractors shall notify the State in writing of any deleted Authorized Resellers or changes to current Authorized Resellers' information at any time.
- E. Contractor will be required to submit Authorized Reseller requests, in a format specified by the State, to the State Contract Administrator for approval.
- F. State-approved Authorized Resellers will be posted on the State's Cal eProcure website.

9. SUBCONTRACTORS

- A. Nothing contained in this Participating Addendum or otherwise, shall create any contractual relation between the State and any subcontractors, and no subcontract shall relieve Contractor of its responsibilities and obligations hereunder. Contractor agrees to be as fully responsible to the State for the acts and omissions of its subcontractors and of persons either directly or indirectly employed by any of them as it is for the acts and omissions of persons directly employed by the Contractor. Contractor's obligation to pay its subcontractors is an independent obligation from the State's obligation to make payments to the Contractor.
- B. Contractor shall perform the work contemplated with resources available within its own organization and no portion of the work shall be subcontracted except for subcontractors listed on the Bidder Declaration (GSPD-05-105) provided to ordering agencies at the time an order is quoted.
- C. As the prime Contractor, Contractor is responsible for reports and fees required by the terms and conditions of the NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement and Participating Addendum.
- D. Any subcontract in excess of \$25,000, entered into as a result of this Participating Addendum, shall contain all the provisions stipulated in this Participating Addendum to be applicable to subcontractors.

10. ORDERING AGENCY RESPONSIBILITIES

- A. State agency and local government use of this Participating Addendum is optional.
- B. State agencies and local governments must follow the ordering procedures outlined within the User Instructions guide, administered by the State Contract Administrator, to execute orders against this Participating Addendum. User Instructions are posted on the State's Cal eProcure website.
- C. All purchase orders executed under this Participating Addendum shall include the Participating Addendum Number 7-23-70-55-01.

11. STATE AGENCY BUY RECYCLED CAMPAIGN (SABRC)

- A. State agencies are required to report purchases made within the eleven product categories in the California Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery's State Agency Buy Recycled Campaign (SABRC) per Public Contract Code sections 12200-12217.
- B. Contractor will be required to complete and return a <u>Postconsumer Recycled-Content Certification form</u>

 (https://calrecycle.ca.gov/buyrecycled/stateagency/vendored/form74guide/) upon request by the state agency.

12. DELIVERY

- A. Delivery shall occur within 30 days after receipt of order, or as negotiated between ordering agency and Contractor and included in the purchase order, or as otherwise stipulated in the NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement.
- B. Free On Board (F.O.B.) Destination, freight prepaid by the Contractor, to the ordering agency's receiving point.

13. INVOICING AND PAYMENT

- A. Payment will be made in accordance with IT General Provisions Paragraph 30 (Required Payment Date).
- B. Invoices shall be sent to the address identified in the ordering agency's purchase order. The Participating Addendum Number and ordering agency purchase order number shall appear on each invoice for all purchases placed under this Participating Addendum.
- C. Contractor does not accept the State of California credit card (CAL-Card) for payment of invoices.

14. USAGE REPORTING

- A. Contractor shall submit usage reports on a quarterly basis to the State Contract Administrator for all California entity purchases using the report template attached hereto as Attachment A. The report is due even when there is no activity.
- B. The State Contract Administrator reserves the right to modify Attachment A and require Contractor to provide additional order information during the course of this Participating Addendum.
- C. The report shall be an Excel spreadsheet transmitted electronically to the <u>DGS</u> <u>Cooperatives mailbox</u> (PDCooperatives@dgs.ca.gov).
- D. Any report that does not follow the required format or that excludes information will be deemed incomplete. Contractor will be responsible for submitting corrected reports within five (5) business days of the date of written notification from the State.
- E. Tax must not be included in the report, even if it is on the purchase order.
- F. Reports are due for each quarter as follows:

Reporting Period	Due Date
January 1 to March 31	April 30
April 1 to June 30	July 31
July 1 to September 30	October 31
October 1 to December 31	January 31

- G. Failure to meet reporting requirements and submit the reports on a timely basis shall constitute grounds for suspension of this Participating Addendum.
- H. Time extensions may be approved only if all due reports have been submitted to the State.

15. ADMINISTRATIVE FEE

- A. Contractor is required to remit to DGS an administrative fee amount equal to 1.25% of the sales for the quarterly reporting period less freight, taxes, returned products and credits. (For example, if the net sales for the reporting quarter totals \$100,000.00, the incentive fee due to DGS would be \$1,250.00.)
- B. The administrative fee shall not be included as an adjustment to Contractor's NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement pricing.
- C. The administrative fee shall not be invoiced or charged to the ordering agency.

- D. Payment of the administrative fee is due irrespective of payment status from ordering agencies.
- E. Payment may be made in the form of an electronic payment using the <u>LPA Payment Portal website</u> (https://www.dgs.ca.gov/PD/Services/Page-Content/Procurement-Division-Services-List-Folder/Access-LPA-Payment-Portal) or by submitting a check payable to the State of California, Department of General Services.
- F. Administrative fee payments made by check must include the Participating Addendum Number on the check and be submitted to the following address:

Department of General Services Procurement Division Attn: MAPS Payment Processing 707 Third Street, 2nd Floor West Sacramento, CA 95605

G. Administrative fee payments are due for each quarter as follows:

Reporting Period	Due Date
January 1 to March 31	April 30
April 1 to June 30	July 31
July 1 to September 30	October 31
October 1 to December 31	January 31

H. Failure to meet administrative fee requirements and submit fees on a timely basis shall constitute grounds for suspension of this Participating Addendum.

16. CONTRACT MANAGEMENT

A. The primary Contractor Contract Manager for this Participating Addendum shall be as follows:

Contractor	Contract Manager
Name:	Ashley Salinas
Phone:	(512) 542-1237
Fax:	n/a
Email	A.Salinas@dell.com
Address:	Dell Marketing L.P.
	Attn: Ashley Salinas
	One Dell Way
	Round Rock, TX 78682

B. The State Contract Administrator for this Participating Addendum shall be as follows:

State	Contract Administrator
Name:	Katelynne Leisenring
Phone:	(279) 946-8129
Email	katelynne.leisenring@dgs.ca.gov
Address:	State of California Department of General Services Procurement Division 707 Third Street, 2nd Floor, MS 2-202 West Sacramento, CA 95605

C. Should the contact information for either party change, the party will provide written notice with updated information no later than ten (10) business days after the change.

17. TERMINATION OF AGREEMENT

The State may terminate this Participating Addendum at any time upon 30 days prior written notice to the Contractor. Upon termination or other expiration of this Participating Addendum, each party will assist the other party in orderly termination of the Participating Addendum and the transfer of all assets, tangible, and intangible, as may facilitate the orderly, non-disrupted business continuation of each party. This provision shall not relieve the Contractor of the obligation to perform under any purchase order or other similar ordering document executed prior to the termination becoming effective.

18. AMENDMENT

No amendment or variation of the terms of this Participating Addendum shall be valid unless made in writing, signed by the parties, and approved as required. No oral understanding or agreement not incorporated in the Participating Addendum is binding on any of the parties.

19. NEWS RELEASES

Unless otherwise exempted, news releases, endorsements, advertising, and social media content pertaining to this Participating Addendum shall not be made without prior written approval from the State.

20. EXECUTIVE ORDER N-6-22 - RUSSIA SANCTIONS

On March 4, 2022, Governor Gavin Newsom issued Executive Order N-6-22 (the EO) regarding Economic Sanctions against Russia and Russian entities and individuals. "Economic Sanctions" refers to sanctions imposed by the U.S. government in response to Russia's actions in Ukraine, as well as any sanctions imposed under state law. The EO directs state agencies to terminate contracts with, and to refrain from entering any new contracts with, individuals or entities that are determined to be a target of Economic Sanctions. Accordingly, should the State determine Contractor is a target of Economic Sanctions or is conducting prohibited transactions with sanctioned individuals or entities, that shall be grounds for termination of this Participating Addendum. The State shall provide Contractor advance written notice of such termination, allowing Contractor at least thirty (30) calendar days to provide a written response. Termination shall be at the sole discretion of the State.

21.AGREEMENT

- A. This Participating Addendum and the Master Agreement together with its exhibits and/or amendments, set forth the entire agreement between the parties with respect to the subject matter of all previous communications, representations, or agreements, whether oral or written, with respect to the subject matter hereof. Terms and conditions inconsistent with, contrary or in addition to the terms and conditions of this Participating Addendum and the Master Agreement, together with its exhibits and/or amendments, shall not be added to or incorporated into this Participating Addendum or the Master Agreement and its exhibits and/or amendments, by any subsequent purchase order or otherwise, and any such attempts to add or incorporate such terms and conditions are hereby rejected. The terms and conditions of this Participating Addendum and the Master Agreement and its exhibits and/or amendments shall prevail and govern in the case of any such inconsistent or additional terms.
- B. By signing this Participating Addendum, Contractor agrees to offer the same products/services available on the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement Number 23026, at prices equal to or lower than the prices on that agreement.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this Participating Addendum as of the date of execution by both parties below.

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

Department of General Services

Agency Name

Digitally signed by Julle Julie Matthews Date: 2024.01.23 13:54:09

1/23/2024

Authorized Signature

Date Signed

Julie Matthews, MAU2 Supervisor

Printed Name/Title of Person Signing

707 Third Street West Sacramento, CA 95605

Address

CONTRACTOR

Dell Marketing L.P.

Contractor Name

Katherine Castillo 01/22/2024

Authorized Signature

Date Signed

Katherine Castillo- Paralegal Advisor

Printed Name/Title of Person Signing

One Dell Way

Round Rock, TX 78682

Address

SPECIAL PURPOSE ADDENDUM

TO THE RESELLER TERMS

Dell Marketing L.P. (Dell) And (Reseller) The Drala Project, Inc dba The Redesign Group One Dell Way 2629 Manhattan Ave Suite 307 Round Rock, TX 78682 Hermosa Beach, CA 90254 Reseller Tax ID No.: 81-1775342 Reseller Contract Manager: Leah Lane Telephone: 424-207-1600 Email: Ilane@redesign-group.com Reseller Sales Contact: Phil Sanginario Telephone: 424-207-1600 Email: psanginario@redesign-group.com Reseller Reporting Contact: Leah Lane Telephone: 424-207-1600 Email: public-contracts@redesign-group.com

Purchase Path: Direct purchase from Dell

■Both

□Purchase from Dell distributor

1. INTRODUCTION; DEFINITIONS

- **1.1.** This Special Purpose Addendum (**Addendum**) to the Reseller Terms is made by and between Dell and Reseller (each a **Party**, and collectively, the **Parties**). "**Reseller Terms**" means the (a) APEX Reseller Agreement located at www.dell.com/Partner-APEX-Reseller-Agreement and the applicable APEX service offering description, which apply to Reseller's purchases of APEX outcome-based services from Dell for resale to End-Users, or (b) Dell's Reseller Terms of Sale located at www.dell.com/resellerterms, together with all updates made to (a) or (b) respectively. Reseller's purchases and resale of APEX custom services are outside the scope of this Addendum and require a separate agreement mutually signed between Reseller and Dell.
- **1.2.** Customer means the contracting entity with whom Dell has executed a Dell-Held Contract.
- 1.3. Dell-Held Contract means the following agreement(s) made by and between Dell and



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 1 of 9

Customer, together with all representations and certifications required by Customer in connection with those agreement(s):

The contract name is: <u>California NASPO Participating Addendum No. 7-23-70-55-01</u> <u>under the Master Agreement No. 23026 NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Program.</u> A hyperlink or copy of the Dell-Held Contract(s) will be provided to the Reseller.

- **1.4. End-Users** means entities that are eligible to purchase products and services under the Dell-Held Contract.
- **1.5.** Unless otherwise defined herein, capitalized terms used herein have the meanings ascribed thereto in the Reseller Terms. For purposes of this Addendum, the term "**Agreement**" as used in the Reseller Terms means the Reseller Terms as modified and supplemented by this Addendum (while such Addendum is in effect).

2. APPOINTMENT

- **2.1. Appointment.** Subject to the terms and conditions of this Addendum and Reseller's compliance therewith, Dell appoints Reseller to resell products and services to End-Users under the Dell-Held Contract. Reseller acknowledges that this appointment to resell under the Dell-Held Contract may not be exclusive. Reseller shall not claim to represent Dell as the exclusive seller of products and services in any state or region, or for any specific customer, under the Dell-Held Contract. Reseller shall not make any claim which might be interpreted as an offer of favorable pricing resulting from a preferred or exclusive position with regard to its authorization under the Dell-Held Contract. Reseller may only sell products and/or services listed on the Dell-Held Contract.
- **2.2.** Reseller shall not sell, and acknowledges it is not permitted to sell, its own products or services to Customer or End-Users under the Dell-Held Contract, including (but not limited to) Reseller's installation and/or deployment of products that were purchased under the Dell-Held Contract.
- **2.3. Approval by Customer.** Reseller acknowledges that its ability to sell to End-Users under a Dell-Held Contract is dependent upon the Customer's acceptance and authorization. Reseller will follow the Customer's reseller application and authorization process. Reseller shall not quote or sell any products or services under any Dell-Held Contract before the Customer grants authorization and, if applicable, publicly posts Reseller's name as an authorized reseller on that Dell-Held Contract.

3. TERMS AND CONDITIONS OF SALE

- 3.1 **Direct purchase path.** Subject to section 3.2 below, Reseller's purchases of products and services from Dell hereunder are subject to and governed by the Reseller Terms, this Addendum, and the Dell quote.
- 3.2 **Distribution purchase path.** Reseller may purchase products and services only from a Dell distributor that Dell has authorized for distribution under the Dell-Held Contract. If Reseller purchases products or services from a Dell distributor, all references and terms related to the purchase price, payments, cancellation or termination rights or similar financial terms in the Reseller Terms (a) will not apply and (b) will be separately agreed between Reseller and the Dell distributor.
- 3.3 Reseller's purchase and resale to End-Users shall be subject to and governed by the **Dell**



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 2 of 9

Technologies Partner Program Agreement which may be found at https://partner.dell.com/enus/partner/terms-and-conditions.htm, the Reseller Terms, the applicable Dell service terms (e.g., Dell Service Description, Dell Offer Specifications, APEX Service Offering Description), the applicable Dell-Held Contracts, and, if Reseller purchases directly from Dell, the Dell quote. The Reseller Terms, the applicable Dell service terms, and the Dell Technologies Partner Program Agreement are incorporated herein by reference in their entirety. In the event of conflicting terms, the following order of precedence shall apply, but only to the extent of such conflict: first, the terms and conditions of the applicable Dell-Held Contract; second, the applicable Dell service terms; third, this Addendum; fourth, the Reseller Terms; fifth, the Dell quote (if applicable); and sixth, the Dell Technologies Partner Program Agreement.

4. SPECIAL PURPOSE PROVISIONS.

- **4.1. Compliance.** Reseller shall familiarize itself (and ensure its personnel familiarize themselves) with all terms and conditions of the Dell-Held Contract. Reseller shall perform in accordance with and conform to all terms and conditions in the Dell-Held Contracts.
- **4.2. Reporting.** Reseller shall provide all reports and information that (a) are necessary for Reseller to comply or (b) Dell deems necessary for Dell to comply with the reporting requirements of the Dell-Held Contracts. Reseller shall submit all required reports in a timely manner, but in no event later than Dell's requested deadline, so as to allow Dell adequate time to prepare its own reports and meet its obligations under the Dell-Held Contracts. Should the reporting requirements of the Dell-Held Contracts change during the term of this Addendum, Dell will inform Reseller in writing, and Reseller shall respond acknowledging such change. Reseller agrees and understands that accurate and timely reporting is a primary criterion of Dell's compliance with the Dell-Held Contracts, and Reseller's failure to comply with any reporting requirement (including timeliness and accuracy requirements) established by Dell shall be a material breach of the Addendum. Reseller shall comply with the following requirements as well as any other that Dell may establish:
 - **4.2.1.** For each Dell-Held Contract, Reseller will be provided with a Dell contract code ("Contract Code") for each applicable purchase path (Reseller's direct purchases from Dell or Reseller's purchases from a Dell distributor) for each Dell-Held Contract. On every request for Dell quotes and every purchase order to Dell, Reseller must use the correct Contract Code linked to Reseller's direct purchases under the applicable Dell-Held Contract. On every request for quotes from a distributor and every purchase order to a distributor, Reseller must use the correct Contract Code linked to Reseller's distribution path purchases under the applicable Dell-Held Contract. The Contract Code enforces pricing and other terms and conditions of the Dell-Held Contract. It also helps Dell to pay the appropriate administrative fees and rebates owed in the Dell-Held Contract. Failure to use the correct Contract Code on all quotes and orders shall constitute a material breach of the Addendum and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Dell shall have the right to terminate this Addendum immediately upon written notice to Reseller.
 - **4.2.2.** Reseller shall provide, on a monthly basis, detailed sales reports on all products and services that Reseller purchased from Dell and distributors and resold to End-Users during the previous month under the Dell-Held Contract whether or not the Reseller had any sales during the previous month under the Dell-Held Contract. Reseller shall provide its report no later than Dell's requested deadline. Failure to provide detailed sales reports by Dell's requested deadline shall constitute a material breach of the Addendum and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Dell shall have the right to terminate this Addendum immediately upon written notice to Reseller.



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 3 of 9

- **4.2.3.** Each report shall include the following: (a) name and location of the End-User, (b) price, including unit price and/or rate per unit of measure, and the total price charged to End-User; (c) quantity, (d) total price charged to the End-User, (e) Dell-Held Contract required pricing to End User (if none stated, then the Dell-Held Contract ceiling rate), (f) any difference between the price in (d) and (e), and (g) any other data required by Dell or the Dell-Held Contract.
- **4.2.4.** Reseller shall provide its reports in a format specified by Dell (such as but not limited to .xls).
- **4.2.5.** Unless otherwise instructed by Dell, Reseller shall electronically transmit its reports to Dell. The specific method of electronic transmission will be specified by Dell.
- **4.2.6.** Changes in contact information is the responsibility of reseller to notify Dell in a timely manner to the PEI_Compliance@dell.com mailbox. Missed reporting activities as a result of wrong contact information is the responsibility of the Reseller and not an acceptable reason to not report. Failure to provide changes in contact information which results in breach of paragraph 4.2.1 shall constitute a material breach of the Addendum and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Dell shall have the right to terminate this Addendum immediately upon written notice to Reseller.
- **4.3. Fees.** Unless otherwise required by the Customer or the Dell-Held Contract, the fees payable under the Dell-Held Contract are Dell's responsibility and Reseller will not be responsible for payment of such fees either to Dell or to the Customer.
- **4.4. Records Retention.** Reseller agrees to provide requested data, retain purchase and sales records, and make such records available to Dell as requested and to Customer or End-Users as required by the Dell-Held Contracts or as by the state law governing the transaction in question.
- **4.5. Pricing.** Reseller is free to set its resale pricing of products and services to End-Users, provided that such prices conform to the Dell-Held Contract (including any minimum discount or maximum price limitations set forth in the Dell-Held Contract by Customer). Dell may require Reseller to issue payments to Dell or to End-Users for any overcharges that do not conform to the Dell-Held Contact. Overcharges to the Customer that do not conform to the Dell-Held Contract shall constitute a material breach of the Addendum and, notwithstanding anything to the contrary herein, Dell shall have the right to terminate this Addendum immediately upon written notice to Reseller.
- **4.6. Certification.** Reseller shall sign or provide all representations and certifications required by Dell in a timely manner.
- **4.7. Training & Security and Background Checks.** Reseller shall ensure that all personnel who will interact with third parties (including but not limited to End-Users and Customer) in connection with a Dell-Held Contract complete all training required by Dell, including but not limited to, sales training, compliance training, and refresher courses. In addition, Reseller shall perform security and background checks of its personnel in the same manner and to the same extent that Dell is obligated to perform security and background checks of Dell personnel as required by the Dell-held Contract, Customer and End-Users.
- **4.8. Minimum Revenue.** Reseller shall generate a minimum of \$250K Dell revenue annually, as determined by Dell in its sole discretion (the "Dell Revenue Obligation"). If Reseller fails to meet the Dell Revenue Obligation, then Dell shall have the right to terminate this Addendum immediately upon written notice to Reseller.



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 4 of 9

4.9. Shipping and Handling (if applicable).

- **4.9.1. Reseller to End-Users:** If and to the extent required by the Dell-Held Contract, and as reflected in Dell's quotation, Reseller will provide End-Users free standard ground shipping and shall also provide any associated logistics services such as (but not limited to) inside delivery to one location without charge. Reseller is not permitted to purchase products for the purpose of stocking inventory for resale to End-Users.
- **4.9.2. Dell to Reseller (for direct purchases from Dell):** If and to the extent required by the Dell-Held Contract, and as reflected in Dell's quotation to Reseller, and regardless of the End-User's specified ship-to location, Dell will provide, at no charge to Reseller, standard 3-5 day ground shipping. Dell will also provide any associated logistics services such as (but not limited to) inside delivery to one location without charge using Dell's selected carrier. If Dell's carrier is used, Dell will bear the risk of loss of, or any damage to, the Products during shipping from Dell. Nothing under this Section shall alter when title to the Products transfers. Any additional required logistics are available at an additional logistics fee and must be specified by Reseller at the time of order.
- **4.9.3. Value Added Logistics (VALS):** Any additional VALS, *i.e.* date/time specific delivery, de-palletization, inside delivery to multiple locations, set up, *etc.* must be added at the time the order is placed and must be paid to Dell by Reseller.
- **4.10. Return Policy.** Subject to subsections (a) through (c) below, and provided that the reason for return or service cancelation or termination is not due to Reseller's error, Reseller may return products and may cancel or terminate services purchased hereunder, but only to the extent that the intended End-User is entitled to return such products or cancel or terminate such services under the Dell-Held Contracts, and, in those cases, subject to the same terms, conditions and restrictions, including, without limitation, the product return period or service cancelation or termination period and any notice requirements, set forth in the applicable Dell-Held Contract. Reseller is solely responsible for ensuring that (a) it accurately translates the End-User's requirements into an accurate request for quote/proposal to Dell; (b) Dell's quotation in response thereto accurately and completely reflects the End-User's requirements; and (c) any resultant purchase order to Dell is compliant with the End-User's requirements. Reseller shall have no recourse to Dell (nor product return or service cancelation or termination rights) for any errors on the part of Reseller. Reseller will inform each End-User in writing of the Dell product return policy and service cancelation or termination policy at or prior to the time Reseller issues a quote for such products and/or services to the End-User.
- **4.11. Indemnity.** Reseller shall defend and indemnify Dell against any claim or action from Customer, any End-User, or any other third party resulting from or relating to any breach, alleged breach, or compliance failure by Reseller of this Addendum, the Reseller Terms, or the Dell-Held Contracts.

5. TERM AND TERMINATION

5.1.	Term . Unless earlier terminated as provided herein, the Term of this Addendum begins on
the o	date of Dell's signature below (Effective Date) and ends on the earlier of the dates checked ow:
	□ Coterminous with the Dell-Held Contract

	□ Addendum End Date:
5.2.	Termination.



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 5 of 9

- **5.2.1.** Should applicable Dell-Held Contracts be suspended or terminated during the term of this Addendum, Dell's authorization for Reseller to resell to End-Users will automatically be terminated on the same date as the termination of the Dell-Held Contract.
- **5.2.2.** This Addendum will terminate automatically if Reseller voluntarily withdraws, or is suspended or terminated, from the Dell Technologies Partner Program for any reason.
- **5.2.3. Thirty Day No Cause Termination.** Either Party may terminate this Addendum in such Party's sole discretion, with or without cause, upon at least thirty (30) days prior written notice to the other Party.
- **5.2.4. Termination for Cause**. Either Party may at its option, and upon written notice to the other Party, immediately terminate this Addendum if:
 - 5.2.4.1. a material violation or breach of this Addendum or the Reseller Terms by the other Party is not remedied within ten (10) days after the breaching Party's receipt of written notice of the violation or breach
 - 5.2.4.2. the other Party admits in writing its inability to pay its debts generally as they become due, files a petition for bankruptcy or executes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or similar document; (iii) a receiver, trustee in bankruptcy or similar officer is appointed for the other Party's property; or (iv) a majority interest of the equity or assets of the other Party is transferred to an unrelated third party or this Addendum is assigned by Reseller without Dell's prior written consent. In addition, Dell may immediately terminate this Addendum if Dell determines, in Dell's sole discretion, that Reseller engaged in unethical conduct or that continuing the Addendum will cause Dell to be in breach of any Dell-Held Contract or otherwise jeopardize that or any other contract Dell has with the Customer or an End-User.
- **5.3. Effect of Termination**. Upon any termination of this Addendum, the provisions of this Addendum shall continue to apply to all orders accepted by Dell prior to the Effective Date of such termination. Termination of this Addendum shall not relieve Reseller of any obligation to make payments that are owed to Dell. Termination shall not exclude other remedies for failure of a Party to perform its obligations. Upon termination of this Addendum, the rights and obligations of the Parties that are executory shall survive any termination or expiration of this Addendum. Dell may notify relevant distributors, Customers, and End-Users of the Addendum termination.

6. NOTICE

Any notice given under this Addendum must be in writing (for which email shall suffice) and will be effective when delivered to the other Party at the address set forth below for that Party. Notice addresses may only be changed in writing by the Parties by following the notice provisions of this Section. The Parties hereby appoint liaisons for notice and communication purposes under this Addendum as identified below:

DELL MARKETING L.P.

Attn. Contracts Manager Dell Legal Department One Dell Way Round Rock, Texas 78682 Public_legal@dell.com

RESELLER

Provide notices under this Addendum to the Contract Manager listed on page 1.



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 6 of 9

7. MISCELLANEOUS

- **7.1. Entire Addendum**. This Addendum (including the attachments hereto and the Reseller Terms) constitutes the entire integrated agreement between the Parties with respect to the subject matter hereof and supersedes all prior written or oral understandings or agreements between the Parties relating to the same. The terms of this Addendum will control and supersede the preprinted terms on Reseller's order or order acknowledgment.
- **7.2. Modification by Writing Only**. No modification of this Addendum, including any attachments hereto, will be binding on either Party unless and until the modification is set forth in a writing specifically referencing this Addendum and signed by an authorized representative for each Party. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the Parties agree the Reseller Terms of Sale located at www.dell.com/resellerterms, APEX Reseller Agreement located at www.dell.com/Partner-APEX-Reseller-Agreement, and the Dell Technologies Partner Program Agreement terms and conditions may be modified by Dell unilaterally from time to time, and the attachments hereto may be modified by Dell unilaterally to comply with Dell's obligations or covenants to the Customer or End-Users.
- **7.3.** Counterparts: This Addendum may be executed in counterparts (including by means of facsimile or pdf signature pages), any one of which need not contain the signature of more than one Party, but all such counterparts taken together shall constitute one and the same agreement.
- **7.4. Debarment Certification:** Reseller certifies, and shall certify on an annual basis hereafter, that Reseller has not been subject to a federal, state or local government suspension or debarment from the contracting process within the past five (5) years. Reseller agrees to notify Dell within ten (10) business days of any such debarment action that occurs during the term of this Addendum.

[Remainder of page intentionally left blank; signature page to follow]



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 7 of 9

This Addendum has been executed on behalf of the Parties by their duly authorized representatives, to be effective as of the Effective Date.

AGREED:

DELL MARKETING L.P.		RESELLER: The Drala Project, Inc	
By Name	Ashley Salinas Ashley Salinas	By Name	Phil Sanginario Phil Sanginario
Title	Contract Program Manager	Title	CEO
Date	April 12, 2024	Date	2/12/2024

SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 8 of 9

ATTACHMENT 1

- DELL-HELD CONTRACT(S): California NASPO Participating Addendum No. 7-23-70-55-01 under the Master Agreement No. 23026 NASPO ValuePoint Cooperative Purchasing Program
- 2. AUTHORIZED END-USERS & EXCLUSIONS:

1. SCOPE

- A. This Participating Addendum covers the purchase of computer equipment (desktops, laptops, tablets, servers, and storage, including related peripherals & services) under the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement. The Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement is hereby incorporated by reference. Product/service categories included under this Participating Addendum are identified in Section 5 (Available Products and Services).
- B. This Participating Addendum is available for use by California state agencies and local governments. A local government is defined as any city, county, city and county, district, or other local governmental body, school district or corporation empowered to expend public funds. The State Agency Listing (https://www.ca.gov/agenciesall/) provides a comprehensive list of state agencies.
- C. Each local government is to make its own determination whether this Participating Addendum and the Minnesota NASPO ValuePoint Master Agreement are consistent with its procurement policies and regulations.

Link to the California NASPO ValuePoint contract 2023-2025:

https://s3-us-west-2.amazonaws.com/naspovaluepoint/1706100617 PA%207-23-70-55-01.pdf

Link to the Dell NASPO 23026 contract website:

https://www.dell.com/en-us/lp/dt/naspo-computer?hve=learn+more



SPA Reseller (July 2023) Page 9 of 9

EXHIBIT C

City's Insurance and Indemnity

Exhibit C

Insurance and Indemnity

INDEMNIFICATION

To the furthest extent allowed by law, VENDOR shall indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and each of its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers from any and all loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs and damages (whether in contract, tort or strict liability, including but not limited to personal injury, death at any time and property damage) incurred by CITY, VENDOR or any other person, and from any and all claims, demands and actions in law or equity (including reasonable attorney's fees, litigation expenses and cost to enforce this agreement), arising or alleged to have arisen directly or indirectly out of performance of this Contract. VENDOR'S obligations under the preceding sentence shall apply regardless of whether CITY or any of its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers are passively negligent, but shall not apply to any loss, liability, fines, penalties, forfeitures, costs or damages caused by the active or sole negligence, or the willful misconduct, of CITY or any of its officers, officials, employees, agents or volunteers.

If VENDOR should subcontract all or any portion of the work to be performed under this Contract, VENDOR shall require each subcontractor to indemnify, hold harmless and defend CITY and each of its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers in accordance with the terms of the preceding paragraph.

This section shall survive termination or expiration of this Contract.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

- (a) Throughout the life of this Agreement, VENDOR'S shall pay for and maintain in full force and effect all insurance as required herein with an insurance company(ies) either (i) admitted by the California Insurance Commissioner to do business in the State of California and rated no less than "A-VII" in the Best's Insurance Rating Guide, or (ii) as may be authorized in writing by CITY'S Risk Manager or his/her designee at any time and in his/her sole discretion. The required policies of insurance as stated herein shall maintain limits of liability of not less than those amounts stated therein. However, the insurance limits available to CITY, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds, shall be the greater of the minimum limits specified therein or the full limit of any insurance proceeds to the named insured.
- (b) If at any time during the life of the Agreement or any extension, VENDOR'S or any of its subcontractors fail to maintain any required insurance in full force and effect, all services and work under this Agreement shall be discontinued immediately, and all payments due or that become due to VENDOR'S shall be withheld until notice is received by CITY that the required insurance has been restored to full force and effect and that the premiums therefore have been paid for a period satisfactory to CITY. Any failure to maintain the required insurance shall be sufficient cause for CITY to terminate

this Agreement. No action taken by CITY pursuant to this section shall in any way relieve VENDOR'S of its responsibilities under this Agreement. The phrase "fail to maintain any required insurance" shall include, without limitation, notification received by CITY that an insurer has commenced proceedings, or has had proceedings commenced against it, indicating that the insurer is insolvent.

- (c) The fact that insurance is obtained by VENDOR'S shall not be deemed to release or diminish the liability of VENDOR'S, including, without limitation, liability under the indemnity provisions of this Agreement. The duty to indemnify CITY shall apply to all claims and liability regardless of whether any insurance policies are applicable. The policy limits do not act as a limitation upon the amount of indemnification to be provided by VENDOR'S. Approval or purchase of any insurance contracts or policies shall in no way relieve from liability nor limit the liability of VENDOR'S, vendors, suppliers, invitees, contractors, sub-contractors, subcontractors, or anyone employed directly or indirectly by any of them.
- 1. PRODUCTS LIABILITY INSURANCE: VENDOR'S shall maintain, and provide the City with verification of, manufacturer's products liability insurance policy in excess of \$1,000,000 by providing a certificate of insurance on said Bid Item(s) equipment. Certificates shall be issued by an insurance company meeting the requirements to conduct business in the state of California. City is required to be an additional insured with primary and non- contributory coverage in favor of the City on this General Liability Policy.

If the scope of work includes delivery or install, the requirements below apply in addition to the above requirements.

Coverage shall be at least as broad as:

- 1. The most current version of Insurance Services Office (ISO) Commercial General Liability Coverage Form CG 00 01, providing liability coverage arising out of your business operations. The Commercial General Liability policy shall be written on an occurrence form and shall provide coverage for "bodily injury," "property damage" and "personal and advertising injury" with coverage for premises and operations (including the use of owned and non-owned equipment), products and completed operations, and contractual liability (including, without limitation, indemnity obligations under the Agreement) with limits of liability not less than those set forth under "Minimum Limits of Insurance."
- 2. The most current version of ISO *Commercial Auto Coverage Form CA 00 01, providing liability coverage arising out of the ownership, maintenance or use of

automobiles in the course of your business operations. The Automobile Policy shall be written on an occurrence form and shall provide coverage for all owned, hired, and non-owned automobiles or other licensed vehicles (Code 1- Any Auto).

3. Workers' Compensation insurance as required by the State of California and Employer's Liability Insurance.

MINIMUM LIMITS OF INSURANCE

VENDOR'S shall procure and maintain for the duration of the contract, and for 5 years thereafter, insurance with limits of liability not less than those set forth below. However, insurance limits available to CITY, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers as additional insureds, shall be the greater of the minimum limits specified herein or the full limit of any insurance proceeds available to the named insured:

- COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY
- (i) \$1,000,000 per occurrence for bodily injury and property damage;
- (ii) \$1,000,000 per occurrence for personal and advertising injury;
- (iii) \$2,000,000 aggregate for products and completed operations; and,
- (iv) \$2,000,000 general aggregate applying separately to the work performed under the Agreement.
- 2. COMMERCIAL AUTOMOBILE LIABILITY

\$1,000,000 per accident for bodily injury and property damage.

- 3. Workers' Compensation Insurance as required by the State of California with statutory limits and EMPLOYER'S LIABILITY with limits of liability not less than:
 - (i) \$1,000,000 each accident for bodily injury;
 - (ii) \$1,000,000 disease each employee; and,
 - (iii) \$1,000,000 disease policy limit.

UMBRELLA OR EXCESS INSURANCE

In the event VENDOR'S purchases an Umbrella or Excess insurance policy(ies) to meet the "Minimum Limits of Insurance," this insurance policy(ies) shall "follow form" and

afford no less coverage than the primary insurance policy(ies). In addition, such Umbrella or Excess insurance policy(ies) shall also apply on a primary and non-contributory basis for the benefit of the CITY, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers.

<u>DEDUCTIBLES AND SELF-INSURED RETENTIONS</u>

VENDOR'S shall be responsible for payment of any deductibles contained in any insurance policy(ies) required herein and VENDOR'S shall also be responsible for payment of any self-insured retentions.

OTHER INSURANCE PROVISIONS/ENDORSEMENTS

- (i) All policies of insurance required herein shall be endorsed to provide that the coverage shall not be cancelled, non-renewed, reduced in coverage or in limits except after thirty (30) calendar days written notice has been given to CITY, except ten (10) days for nonpayment of premium. VENDOR'S is also responsible for providing written notice to the CITY under the same terms and conditions. Upon issuance by the insurer, broker, or agent of a notice of cancellation, non-renewal, or reduction in coverage or in limits, VENDOR'S shall furnish CITY with a new certificate and applicable endorsements for such policy(ies). In the event any policy is due to expire during the work to be performed for CITY, VENDOR'S shall provide a new certificate, and applicable endorsements, evidencing renewal of such policy not less than fifteen (15) calendar days prior to the expiration date of the expiring policy.
- (ii) The Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance policies shall be written on an occurrence form.
- (iii) The Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance policies shall be endorsed to name City, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers as an additional insured all ongoing and completed operations. Additional Insured endorsements under the General Liability policy must be as broad as that contained in ISO Forms: GC 20 10 11 85 or both CG 20 10 & CG 20 37.
- (iv) The Commercial General and Automobile Liability insurance shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, that VENDOR'S insurance shall be primary to and require no contribution from the City. Primary and Non Contributory language under the General Liability policy must be as broad as that contained in ISO Form CG 20 01 04 13. These coverages shall contain no special limitations on the scope of protection afforded to City, its officers, officials, employees, agents and volunteers.
- (v) Should any of these policies provide that the defense costs are paid within the Limits of Liability, thereby reducing the available limits by defense costs, then the

requirement for the Limits of Liability of these polices will be twice the above stated limits.

(vi) All insurance policies required herein shall contain, or be endorsed to contain, a waiver of subrogation as to CITY, its officers, officials, agents, employees and volunteers.

PROVIDING OF DOCUMENTS

VENDOR'S shall furnish CITY with all certificate(s) and applicable endorsements effecting coverage required herein. All certificates and applicable endorsements are to be received and approved by the CITY'S Risk Manager or his/her designee prior to CITY'S execution of the Agreement and before work commences. All non-ISO endorsements amending policy coverage shall be executed by a licensed and authorized agent or broker. Upon request of CITY, VENDOR'S shall immediately furnish CITY with a complete copy of any insurance policy required under this Agreement, including all endorsements, with said copy certified by the underwriter to be a true and correct copy of the original policy. This requirement shall survive expiration or termination of this Agreement. All subcontractors working under the direction of VENDOR'S shall also be required to provide all documents noted herein.

SUBCONTRACTORS

If VENDOR'S subcontracts any or all of the services to be performed under this Agreement, VENDOR'S shall be solely responsible for ensuring that it's subcontractors maintain insurance coverage at levels no less than those required by applicable law and is customary in the relevant industry.